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Adjusted operating profit

£17.0bn £1,435m
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before tax per share

£1,356m
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EraRET ey TR R TR,

Dividends per share

Basic earnings
per share

Fiuie R PTG S v R B g WP R R 2 ”

Net cash before % Net debt including iease
i lease liabilities g liabilities
2

£1,488m

12027 £1,307 00

!

!

b R BT .

Operating profit

£1,178m £1,076m

(20771 £808n (2077 £725m
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Financial leverage
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Gross investment
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AT A GLANCE

Our operating businesses

Revenue Adjusted operating profit
Our Grocery division employs more than £3,735m £399m
15,000 people and comprises brands which 2021 £3.59301] (7021, £412m)

occupy leading positions in markets across
the globe. In the UK, nine out of 10
households use our brands. Our Twinings and
QOvaltine brands are enjoyed in more than 100
countries worldwide.

AB Sugar is a leading producer of sugar and £2,016m £162m
sugar-derived co-products in Africa, the UK, (3071 ©1 650m] 2021 £152r)
Spain and north east China. T ' -

AB Agn isa Ieadmg mterna’uonal agri-food £1,722m £4Tm
husiness operating across the supply chain, 2025 F1 B3I 2071 £
producing and marketing animal feed, ' ;
nutrition and technelogy based products

and services.

Our Ingredients businesses are leaders in £1.827m £15%m
yeast and bakery ingredients as well as in 3071 £1 508 2021, £151m)
specialty ingredients for the food, human and ‘ i
animal nutrition, pharmaceutical and various

other industries.

L5

% < : ) Ui B

# %» Lol Wae ow s SRR o e - i

Primark is one of the largest clothing retailers £7,687m £756m

in Europe, the largest by volume in the UK 2021 £5 EG3m) (2021 £321m;

and has a growing presence in the US. In
total, we have 408 stares in 14 countries
across Europe and the US.

Qur brands
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values and how we operate.

132,000

employees

53

countries operated in,
across Europe, Africa, the
Americas, Asia

and Australia

One of the
largest

food producers in the UK

84%

of the waste* we
generated was sent for
recycling, recovery or
other beneficial use
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54%

of our total workforce
are women

84%

of our people have
access fo an employee
assistance programme

185

food manufacturing
sites globally

54%

of the energy we used
came from renewables
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Associated British Foods ple Anrual Re

Group revenue and profit
were much stronger this year
than last, demonstrating that
our businesses have emerged
robustly from the disruption
of the pandemic.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATFMENT ANt el

Qur commitment to ESG

This year the Group continued to make
further significant and wide-ranging
progress in its environmental, social and
gavernance activity.

In May we presented to investars the
environmental factors which are most
rnaterial for our businesses. With regard
to groonhouco gas emissions, our foeus
hns hren an delivering an oo 2010

& oals rlenl on

Ot ent s Pt vaes ar
arhimving nnt aorn by 2060 ar petantially
sooher. Some 4% of the Group's total
energy needs are already met from
reiewalile sudiues which ale muostly
from hic-mass by-products in oyr Sugar
businesses; furthermore, we tughlighted
that ntir Sugar hisinesses provide
rnpraduets that in i are eritira)
feedstock for other impaortant industries.

Inflation is most onerous to pecple on
lower incomes. We take the wellbeing of
our people seriously. Across the Group
our businesses are taking steps to
mitigate wherever possible these higher
fiving costs. In the UK we have deliverad
several initiatives to support our people.
These include differentiated szlary
increases, so that those on lower
incomes have higher increases, short-
term financial support, benefits hubs
oftering discounts on goods including
groceries, and other measures The detail
of this support varies by business and
country, as we are a decentralised group,
but the principtes are clear and gur
businesses across the world are adopting
a similar approach.

Prograss on ESG must be owned by
management at all levels, starting with
the most senior. Effective from the
2022123 financial year, 16% of the
short-term incentive opportunity for the
Chief Executive and Finance Director will
he linked to ESG priorities inciuding those
that are climate-related.

Looking ahead, we recognise that there
is likely to be further significant regulation
ard legisiation from governments to drive
ESG progress and bring transparency to
related corporate activity. Whilst we will
of course comply with all new
requirements, our focus will be on
actions which make the Mmost material
difference.

QOur latest Responsibiiity Report js issued
with this Report and it details the large
number of actions being taken across the
Group. it can ho found on tho Group
wabsite,

Board

| have only one instance of succession
planning to report this vear, butitis
unusually noteworthy. In July we
announced that John Bason would be
stepping down as Finance Director of the
Group, and from the Board on 28 Agpril
next year after a long and distinguished
period of sarvice. Jehn 100k up the post
of Finance Director in May 1988 and his
tenure has been marked by clear
analys:s, excellent judgement and tireless
commitment to the {Sroup. Un behalf ot
the Board | would like to place on record
our deep aratitude for his excentional
contribution. | am dalighted that we are
retaining John's experience and experiise
in Primark whera he will become Senior
Agvisor and Uhairman ot the newly
constituted Strategic Advisory Board
from May next year. In his place we
welcome Eoin Tonge from Maiks and
Spencer Group Plc where he is currently
Chief Finangial Officer and Chief Strategy
Officer, Eoin was previously Chief
Financial Ctficer of Greencore Group ple
and so imporiantly he has experience of
both food and retaill industries. He will
join the Board no later than February
2023 and | am confident that he will
make a strong contribution.

Executive remuneration

The Reruneration Committee has
carried out its triennial review of the
Group's remuneration policy. The key
change is the propossl to replace the
current leng-term incentive plan for the
Group’s senior management, including
the executive directors, with a restricted
share plan starting in the 2022/23
financial year. Full details of ithe proposal
are set out in the report of the
Remuneration Committesa,

Her Majesty The Queen

On the death of Her Majesty, George
Weston, Chief Executive, issued the
following staterneni: “It is with the
greatest sadness that we note the news
today of the death of Her Majesty The
Queen. Her Majesty worked consistently
to bring peoples from different nations
and cultures together and she personified
so many of the best human values, With
businossoes in B3 countries around the
waorld including in 20 Commonwaealth
nations, we at ABF place on record our
gratitude for all she has done to promote
a sense of shared humanity and
ourpose.”

4 Associated British Foods plc Annual Report 2022

AV

Our employees

In the first half of this year our
businesses had te contend with
considerable disruption from the
pandermic, and the second half of the
year saw the emergence of high inflation
and volatile prices. | would like to thank
our people for the way in which they
responded to the many challenges of the
year in a fast-changing business
aenvironment. {he skills and
professionalism ot cur people continue to
impress me hugely.

Looking ahead

The Group continues to face considerable
headwinds from high inflation, particularly
in energy costs, volatile exchange rates
and pressure on consumer discrationary
spending. However, | remain confident
that the Group has the business model
necessary to deliver a year of resilient
performance with further growth in sales.

We look forward to Prirmark’s accelerated
rollout of stores, especially in the United
States, and to further digital development
including the launch of the new Click and
Cellect trial in stores in the north of
England and Wales. Our Food businesses
continue to plan to recover rising input
costs both through pricing and efficiency
improvements, to launch new products
and to invest in brand developmeant.

In a Group as diversified as this, there
are no shortages of cpportunities:

we shall continue to invest wherever
and whenever our return thresholds
can be met,

Michael Mclintock
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
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Operating review
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This year benefitted from higher interest
income compared to last year and other
financial income was higher driven by a
further increase in the surplus in the
Group's UK defined benefit pension
scheme. As expected, the Group's full
year effective tax rate declined from
28,1% last tinancial year to 22.2% this
year. As a result, adjusted earnings per
share increased by 64% from 80.1p to
131.1p per share. Basic earnings per
share were 88.6p, an increase of 46% on
the reporled 60.5p per share last year.

There was & cash cutflow for the Group
this year mainly dug to an increase in
veerking eapitnl af aame C750m. The
innreace inworking capital was driven by
the timing of receipt of Primark auturmn/
winter inventary of £440m in total around
bath financial year end dates, the effect
of infiation across our businesses and,
where necessary, some planned higher
levels of inventory to mitigate potential
supply chain disruption.

As a result, nat cash before lease
liabiities at the financial year end was
£1.5bn, a reduction on £1.8bn at the end
ol the last financial year.

The Group remains financially strong with
good cash generation and substantial
liquidity and we are announcing this year
a share buyback programme of £500m.

ESG

We have made considerable progress in
understanding the environmental factors
most material to our businesses. Qur
focus is 1o deliver on our 2030
commitment to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and we intend fo achieve net
210 by 2080 o putetiiglly suoner, Sume
54% of the Group's total energy needs
are already met from renewable sources,
maostly from bio-meass by-products from
our Sugar and Agriculture businesses.

Our Sugar businesses produce by-
products that act s critical feedstock for
important industries. We have a clearly
identified pipeline of capital projects, all
of tham delivering above our reguired
return on capital employed, and which
will deliver the 30% reduction
commitment in carbon emissions for
Sugar by 2030.

Qur businesses play 2 crugial role in
providing products to help other
companies and customers reduce their
own emissions. For example, AB
Enzymes hoa recently lounched cold
cellulase products which enable cotion
production to take place ot lower water
tormperatures and enzymes tor the
detergent industry, which enable
consumers to wash at lower
temperatures and reduce their
elprtrinity tsage

We have incorporated in our annual
raport our reparting on the {ask Force on
Climate-related Financiai Disclosures
framework (TCFD). We have engaged
with the spirit as well as the letier of the
scenario planning that is central to TCFD.
More broadly eur understanding of the
opportunities and risks ahead has been
enhanced by an improvement in our data
collection and analysis. We conducted a
comprehensive risk assessment across
the Group’s supply chains which led t1c a
focus on the most material risks: AB
Sugar, Primark and Twinings. Taking into
account different scenarios for climate
change, we beliave that the risks to the
Group are not matenial 1o 2030. In doing
this work we recogrised that the main
consequence of climate change for us
will be that we will be affected by a
pattern of more frequent and mors
extremne weather conditions, The effects
of cyclones and severe flooding in lllove,
and the flooding in the eastern part of
Australia, are examples of such events
and our businesseas are inevitably already
building on their capabilities to deal with
the consequences of these. Over the
perod to 2030 there 1s more confidence
in the chmate change models and hence
the outcomes, Not surprisingly the
varigbility of outcoman for longer-term
scenarios to 2050 is much greater, and
s0 we use the 2050 data to check our
sense of direction. Our actions are
focused on the period to 2330. The
benefit we have seen from developing
the long-term scenarios, however, is that
they have added impetus to, and
provided focus for, our businesses’
strategic plans.

Qur social commitments romain an
important as ever to us. We believe
firmly in the pursuit of & “just transitron”
that balances action 10 protect the planet
with a concern for the welfare of our
employees and the people in our value
chain. Partnership with suppliers
becomes more important than ever in the
face of geopalitical uncertainty and
econormic volatility and enables us to plan
much more effectively for disrupticn.

Outlook

As we look ahead, we expect further
significant input cost inffation, and
ongoing high volatility inavitably has
made forecasting mare difficult.

We expect the aggregate profit of our
Foed businesses ta be ahead of the
2021722 financial year. Adjusted
operating profit is expected to be well
shoad in AB Sugar, and broadhy in lirg in
AB Agri and Ingredients. We expect
some further margin erosion in Grocary
with significant additional inflation in input
costs which should be recoverad through
orcing N the course of the year.
Investment in our Grocery brands will
increase with higher marketing spend.

Associated British Foads ple Annual Report 2022

We expect Primark sales growth 1o be
driven by the price increases
implamented for autumnfwintar this year
and those already planned far spring/
summer next year and the increase in
retail selling space. Input cost inflation is
expected to be significant, with inflation
in raw material and energy costs and in
tabour rates, alongside higher purchasing
costs which have resulted from the
strengthaning of the US dallar against
sterling and the euro. Given s context of
& likely reduction in consumer disposable
income we have decided this year not'to
implement further price increases on the
autumnjwinter and spring/summer
ranges beyond those already
implemented and planned. We believe
this decision is in the best interests of
Primark, supporting our core proposition
of everyday affordability and price
leadership and supporting market share
growth over the longer term. We expect
Primark’s adjusted operating profit
margin for next year to be lowsr than 8%
but locking further ahead, we remain
focused on returning to an adjusted
operating profit margin of some 10% as
commiadity prices moderatg and
consumer confidence improves.

Finance income is expected 1o increase
reflecting higher interest rates on our net
bank balances, Cther financgial income
will increase substantially as a result of
the further increase in the surplus in the
Group's defined benafit pension
schemes. We expect an increase in the
effective tax rate to around 25%, driven
by an adverse change in the profit mix of
the Group and higher UK corporation tax
rates.

Cur outlock remains unchangead.

For the full year, we continue to expect
significant growth in sales for the
Group, and adjusted operating prafrt and
adjusted earnings per share to be lower
than the financial year just ciosed.

George Weston
Chief Executive
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Creating value
together

Uur Group strategy and

Long-term view

Organig and
acquisition growth

Devoived
operating model

Entrepreneurial flair
Capital discipline

Prudent haiance
sheet management

Commitment to
ethical conduct

Sustainable
business practice

For buginess segment
atratr.girs plerase spet

Grocery: page 16
Sugar: page 26
Agriculture: page 34
Ingredients: page 42

Retail: page 50
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...applicd ocross our five
devolved operating model... business segments...

Qur way of operating — entrepreneurial but
also financially prudent and focused on the
long term — has achieved growth over many
vears and creates long-term valuc for our
shareholders and other stakeholders alike.

...craates long-term value
for all cur stakeholders.

Customers

Investors and
shareholders

Employees
Suppliers
Communities

Governments



Associated British Foods is a highly diversified group with a
wide range of food and ingredients businesses, more than
40 well-known grocery brands, and our flagship retail brand,
Primark. We have a strong social purpose: to provide safe,
nutritious and affordable food, and clothing that is great
value for money. We are a global organisation with 132,000
employees, operations in 53 countries, suppliers in many
more, and customers in more than 100 countries. More than
hatf of our senicr leaders are non-UK citizens, representing
26 different nationalities between them.
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Delivered through our devolved operating model
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Read more

about Grocery's
performance and
brands in acticn
this year, including
how Acetum is

and desrisules prodLcis primarly 85 oss
Austiala ard MNewe Zealard, The mac
orends are Tip Top ozhed ["rc-ducts Don
¢ neats and runt's chil ed dins
0 s, ACH operates m
the WS, Canada and Mexico, packaging
»mn distabuurg wuetanle g s.ch as
Vare a erd Capulo 25 we | as corn starch

on pages 14 to 23.
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sxporied o \oc lgnds. We see

Read more about
Sugar's performance
and the development
of our business this
year, including how

ID [

ENCITG P <ﬂ‘ i thro _ CT'T wae produce valuable
eading-ed ge ec I“ cEAaru co-products, on
coeptruoas mprove ment. pages 24 to 31,

i

gl
£
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fer

Read more about
Agriculture’s
performance and
the expansion of
our husiness this
year, including

the acquisition of
Greencoat, on pages
32 to 39.

s ishad position of stengthan tho
yoincdustry

Read more about
Ingredients’
performance and
the innovation in
our husiness this
year, including the
development of our
sourdough product
portiolio, on pages
40 to 47.

customer-ceine cultuie The breadth
ana lovy cyclicality of cur products

ser base and appehcetons

g nnercisl resilience. Our
strategy 13 for growth Soth through
ACGLLSITIONS an oo 3 mcaly througn
3,

SRR AN AT TV ]

RS

Read more about

our performance

and investment

in Primark this

year, including the
transformation of our
digital capabilities,
on pages 48 to 59.

nabiity program
2o of trese 3
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

How we
track progress

Financial

Group revenue

{Ebn}
- o et
&
e iz P A

RovanLe §arroasnre w3 CBES U
fea

Constant cuTrency CoMPAansors ars
1

‘'so used
o praveee rewel Lie ty of pertonmang

Dividends per share

{pence}
kY
v .'M
o Ll
~
o G4 70 o3 Z?

Tre Group's organ ¢ growtlh chiective aims to
deliver steady growth in dividends over the
‘ong term. In 2027 this ncluded the paymernt
of 8 13.80p special d'vdend

Cash generation

{Em)
AL
I S 5
. b & =
[ oy A1 :

S

AT OICTIT 5 o7 LE

future nvestment ang o etun

Co wm e e e - T
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We use key performance indicators (KPls)

to measure our progress in delivering the
successful implementation of our strategy and
to monitor our performance

Adiusted operating profit

{£m)
N .
. -
AN ke B
s Jius
i pos
[
7
So 13 s 21
Adozed prut TaTE BET g TToasUEs oy de

g ronsisient mdicaar of parformance year-
on-yesr and are ahigned with mansgement
INCENt v targets.

Return on capital employed

(%)
< e 13 0 “

This measare monitars the level ¢ return
generated by ine Group's investmeant n
15 operating assets 1t1s also a key part of
maragement incentive targets

Net cash before lease liabilities

£re

T st 21

Tnis nessure moters the Group's
[awdty and capital siructare and 15 used o
celcuizte rauns szsac-ated witn the Group's
benking covenanis

Adjusted earnings per share

{pence)
e =
. .
s g
i\ o
® &
13 175 Z0 2% 27

The Group’s organic growth objective aims

‘o delver steady growh in earnings over the
long term Adusted earmings per share is a key
rmanagement INCentive meassure

Gross investment

(£m}
wm
- X
ix 14 eyl 21
A

Aomgasd @ of the cotmerriant (o me ey

tarms development of the business

Financial leverage

it i ‘ 23

Tmis meagure s only provided sirce the
implementauon of IFRS 16 This measura
meniers tre Group's fimanoal stre~gth to
ensu-e lorg-term Arancia siab ity

The 2013 ficurg 1s given on an IFRS 16 pro
forrra basis.




Non-financial

Lost time injuries and fost time
injury rate {%)

P

A measure cf the Group's management af

e e = of s orvnlovees - e
rumiber of lost time in:unies resulting from an
accident ansing out of, orin cormection with,
work activities and the proportion of the 1ol
frre equivalent worktorce exper encing a lost
e rnjury.

- Read more on page 77

Number of employees, highlighting
percentage of women in workforce

Weasure of the scale and diversiy of our
operations Reflecting all empioyecs \n the
Group with g cortiact ¢ erployntent, whetker
full-time, part-urre, contracior or seasoral
worker a~g lighirghting the propertion of cur
amployees thal have d'sclosed their gender as
fernalefwoman i lire voith the local legielatior,
~¥ Read mare on page 78

ABF Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions

{000 tonnes of CO.e)

SGuh

IR T

B 17 pas 20

The amawnt of ABF Group Scope 1 and 2
greenhouse gas ermissions.

% Read more on page 74

Primark selling space and number of
countries of operation

{000 sq ft)

Trese two Measures represert e retal space
q-owith ang breadgth of Frmaik's presencs

-» Read mare on pages 50 and 52

Primark Scope 1, 2 and 3
GHG emissions**

{000 tonnes of CO,e)

il

Gt

A7
¥

g 20 g
The armount of Primask's Scope 1, 2
and 3 greenhouse gas emIss ons.

=% Read mare on page 53

Proportion of clothing sales {units)
containing recycled or more
sustainably sourced materizls

(%)

Pronark Cares procucts ere essessed against
Primark's protocols regarding moirimum
conient ieve s wiich w il vary by matenzl
These pro ocols have cvolved cuninig the year
wWiIth progucts assessed against protocnls
ex.5: ng at the date of moductior

- Read mare on page 53

P T I
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Number of farmers trained in Primark
Sustainahle Cotton Programme (PSCP}

i
&

|
G

£

o

This incl.des ‘armers that are cutrent v beirg
trained and those that have completed traming
under 1ne progranime

- Read more on pages 56 and 89

Total energy consumed and
proportion from a renewable scurce

{Gwh)
15,000
N ] N o
aan » @ 3 -
20,000 ¥ & L i
- b3 :-.E‘E prs
@ S
060
1] o w
. N »
0 0sD ?e 2 R
£,0C0 .
o 18 19 20 21 22

Total erergy wsed and the proportion of which
1s fram rerewab e scurces. Renewahle
anelyy i3 Mainy gengrated on our sites
frorm bogenc souress,
—> Read more on page 75

Total water abstracted

{million m-*)

o
. a - ol
- w g &= 2
~l -t
a,
oo 32 13 20 21 B

Th's rmeazare moudes wealsr supphed by thind
partas or from loce. waler "es0J4rces

~# Read more on page 76
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OPERATING REVIEW | GROCERY continued

The new cak barrels
at Acetum’s new
facility in Cavezzo,
Modena, italy

18 Associated B

When Associated British
Foeds deqguired Acetunt in
2017 we proudly added the

wortd's leading producer of

certified Balsamic Vinegar
of Medena PGl to an alread
strong porifolio of grocery
staples. The acquisition of
Acetum illustrates perfectly
cur strategic approach to
Luilding our brands as well
as the benefits of ABF's
decentralised operating
model and the fact that

we celebrate the
indesendenice and distinet
cultural identities of our

individual businesses.
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OPERATING REVIEW | GROCERY conty

Sleep is something we all
need, but tha struggle to

get to sleep and stay asicep
is semething which affects
millions of neople every day.
Globelly the Sleep atd market
is valued at £59bn and with
the pace of lifa seemingly
ever increasing, aleng with
our reliance on tech, it is not
surprising that this market is
forecast to continue to grow.
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Founded by food enthusiast
Sam Jacol, the ideas D e Fave groven
behind the Al'Fez brand were e rand by dravong opon o
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The

Gofden brand is

synonymous with crumpets
for Australians. Golden heas
been producing crumpet
roeunds since 1929 and was
acquired by ABF in 1987.

VWe guickly began to expand
our product range to include

pikelets, similar to a scotch
pancake, and pancakes.
Encouraged by our success,
we continued to innovate
in subsequent decades,
introducing mini pikelets,
flavoured pikelets, sliced
qnacking loaves and, most
ecently in 2018, waffles.
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OPERATING REVIEW | SUGAR v

Our culture of innovation

to improve manufacturing
processes and make the most
of our raw material sits firmly 1,
alongside our belief that there
is no such thing as waste.
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OPERATING REVIEW | SUGAR -

We run some of the most
sophisticated and efficient
production processes in

the food industry. But that
capability counts for little
without a supply of two
agricultural crops: sugar beet
and sugar cane. And the
viability of these crops each
year depends in turn on our
growers in the UK, Spain
and Africa.
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At lllovo we believe there is
a significant opportunity for
growth as we increase our
domestic and regional sales.
Accordingly we aim to make
our branded sugar pre-packs
accessible and affordable for
all consumers, in both urban
and deep rural markets.
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" Quality control
_testing at ABN's
Enstone feed factory,
Oxfordshire
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ihe recant popularity of
sourdough has been hard to
miss. From Pug,em"'llkets to
CLTua ﬁcm akeriss to home
, seurdough bread
cecome one of the most
[sletial ﬁod products on
offer in todayv's multi-choice
wotrld. So nzuch 50 that the
;i 2al sourdough ingredients
market is expected G grow to
some L,SD 35.8bn1in 2025, a
huge market by Ny standard,
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Qur stores are at the heart of
our husiness. We work hard
to create experiences
customers can only find in
our stores hecause we know
they are a hig part of what our
customers love about Primark
and what makes us different.
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Cotton is the main natural
fibre used to make Primark’s
clothes and it can be found in
more than half of the clothes
we sell, That's why the way
in which the cotton we use

is grown Is so important

to making Primark a more
sustainable business.
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Primark was founded with
the aim of making great ltane Ot epa s
guality clothing affordable to e ane o neste ‘smp in ss\-f

cveryone. We have stayed gestinatons vothin cur stores and offer
true to that core principle as
we have extended our offer
bevond clothing into new
praduct areas over the years,
including beauty, accessories
and homeware.
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FINANCIAL REVIFW

Financing of the Group has
been strengthened over the
last financial year.

Group performance

Group -avenuse was weil ahead of last
year on a reporied basis at £176n In

o Food Lusinesses, iitgiiel 18veliugs
IF—H”H"H—‘F' 'l.H (=4 f-H'"il\Hk’ AHJ" [LARENRLRI *3
husnesses, volume increases, in
pantuolae AT ligredmn s B Franark,
ravenses were significantly mcher

and retericd the emcrgenoe from the
pandenic dunrg ths last trisscal year

W1 our markets. Adiusted cperaing profit
for the Group of £1,435m was 425
ahead of lzs1 financia! year on a repatted
basis. The adjusted coerating orofit 1s
danved by ad usTing the Tol 1) et
0 the statutery operatmg proit: the
emrt-sation charge on non-operetrg
intanaitres, profiis icss iosses o disposal
of non-currant assets, ranszclon costs.
zmorzsation of acqared mventory fa-
valug austments and 8xc nal imerns.

Tre income siatement this yea: incl.ceo
an exceptional charge of £206m
cornprising nen-cash wrredowns of
assets in Primark Germany, £72m
agamst nroperty plant and egquipment
and £524m aganst right-ot use asssts.
We first ertersd the Germar markst
rigved very tign salas
ensites in our edrly slores. We then
n MmEny city centras with
a1l se |J g spaces much larger than
the av ge tor the rest o the Primark
estate. ~1 cwaver, sales densites dechined
i ater years up to the 2018 finarcial
f flar weaker than expected trading
ir tne second helf of this firancal year
#© consider that a stravid recovery
fon Inese sales densil s s unikely.
Germany is a high cost-lo-serve marxet
for retailers. As a consequernce, the
discounted cashilow of our revised
forecast for clr German stores reguires
the recegnitinn ot an impairment which
has been charged in these financial
statements. Wa rema:n comimitted 1o
our lovai customers in this important
Zuropean markat and we are novy
rev evIPg oplioNs 10 reTurn our DUSH ess
i Gerrany 1o ‘ong-rerm profiiabliiny.
These ozticns nclude the poterusl to
crv.'m!se the retail s2:ling space by slore
el as raviewing tne ooipum of the
<ware portfolic. Tre Group's wotal
arge includes g £83m exc epw“\
rich £50m relates to1n
wribun wl the deferedd (ex
10 the immpaired Cerman 2s

1antly
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The Group's commiited Bevolving Credit
Facility, due to expire in 2023, was
renewed in June. The new facility ts
for £1.5bn, up from £1.1bn previously,
is now free of perfarmance covenants
and runs for five years wilh two 1-year
extension options. Our inaugural public
bond of £400m, 2.5 per cent due 2034
was launched in February. During the
year £221rn of private placsment rnotes
were repaid with the remaining £87m
due March 2024,

At the year end, the Group had total
committed borowing taciities of £1./0n,
comprising £1.5bn provided under the
RCF, £0. ibn of U5 ptivate placement
notes and £0.1bn of local committed
facilities in Atrica.

Cash and cash equivalents totalled
£2.1bn at the year end. Total liquidity
increased during the year and is

now £3.4bn.

Pensions

The surplus of the Group's defined
benefit pension schemes increased
materially st the financial year end to
£1,314m compared to fast year's £493m,
The LI scheme, which accounts for 90%
of the Group's gross pension assots, was
in surplus by £1,366m {2021 — £633m}.
The increase in the UK pension surplus
was driven by a significant increase in
bond vields, placing a lower valug on the
defined benafit obfigations, marginaily
offset by fugher infiation expectations.
The pension surplus for the Group at the
end of the previous financial year resulted
in an increase in other financial income
this financial year and the increase in this
financial year end will result in a further
increase in the next financial year.

The last triennial valuation of the UK
scheme was undertaken at 5 April 2020
and determined a deficit of £302m,

The date of this valustion was just after
the introduction of the first COVID-19
rastrictions and the adverse reaction

of the financial markets. We agreed

a recovery plan with the trustees, but
no deficit recovery payments were
made given the recovery in the financial
markets over the next year. 1he next
tricnnial walugtion ic duo at 6 April 2023
and ia curremtly cxpected to reveal a
surplus. The Company is consulting with
the frustess on both new investment
and funding strategies and will also agres
the Company contribution as part of this
valuation procass.

Its currently envisaged the Company
will ba able to reduce a very significant
proportion of the employer contributions
required for both the defined benefit
and defined contribution sections of the
scherne.

The charge for the year for the Graup's
defined contribution schermes, which
was equal to the contributions mads,
amounted to £87m (2021 — £81m). This
compared with the cash contribution 10
the defined benefit schemes of £38m
{2021 - £42m).

Non-financial metrics and TCFD

We have now carried out 8
comprehensive review of the climate
risks and opportunities most material

ta the Group and this led to & focus on
Primark, AB Sugar and Twinings. Kay
risks were assessed using scenario
analyses, in our Annual Report we have
set out our progress in accordance with
the requirements of TCFD. We do not
see TCFD as simply a disclosure exercise
and our busingsses have been actively
engaged in the analysis which has helped
them confirm the actions they need

to take to either adapt to or mitigate
the impacts of climate change, and
consider opportunities where value can
be created.

We also recognise the imporiafice of
accurate non-financial metrigs to enable
stakeholders to understand oyy ESG
performance. We continue to evilve
the role of Finance in non-financial data
bringing skills historically applied to
ensure the accuracy of financia! data

to non-financial data. This year we also
increased the number of metrics subject
to external limited assurance.

BEIS

In refation to the Government's
response to the BEIS White Paper:
Restoring Trust in Audit and Carporate
Governance, which was published in
May 2022, we are nearing completion
of & Group wide programme, supported
by external consultants, to formalise our
approach and to provide & documented
trail to support our goacasment of the
effectiveness of key controls.

New accounting policies

The following accounting standards and
amendments wers adopted during the
year and had no significant impact on the
Group:

+ Amendments 1o IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts — Extension of the Ternporary
Exernption from Applying IFRS 8

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases
({COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021)

Amondments 1o [FRS g, IAS 38, (FRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 — Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform -~ Phase 2. Financial
authorities have announced the

timing of key interest rate benchmark
replacements such as LIBOR in the UK,
the US end the EU and other territories,
with remaining USD tenors expected to
cease in 2023,

John Bason
Finarnice Director
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Engaging
with our
stakeholders
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The following section
describes how the directors
take into account stakeholder
and other matters in carrying
out their duties and the
impact on decision-making.
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Employees

The Group employs 132,000
people. OQur people are central to
Outr success.

s Heeltih and safety
+ [Tiversity and nclusion

» Dngasement and deveicpment

* el = Mot -.,e Doaids
+ ntranet .

s Messeshatiors

+ Survays

* TTEINING *

=d mesting
2 o of
each DUsIness drysion
fically repomis (o the Board
orgagenrert ywilnn
The Beard slsn receives
Tes a0k Veur o
Lforce engegamrent

wth
Ddsings=s
alszo spec

3N “.'-:,rkfor-"
v SICn

. P Safety and Ervirenirenrt
?v‘anau *nrovides ihe Board wath
Jpdates or gafety vends ard

OMOQUESS AQANST FEY perionnzLe
“ators, supplemented oy undates
frr-m the drasons.

o Finance
engage wiih

secutive an

D-rec‘rm conunaed 1o

. Jany cmiplovess [ﬂ & Lornorate

re threngh virtal foan b
SaLes SUCH a8 busmess

znn BESG tonios

COVENNG

L= SN
e
g £5G

J,)'%»'J(;‘,E'- Nt evert

i b=

whlch include detauls of some of the
outcomes from waorkforce engagement.
See also pages 77 to 80.
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Suppliers

As a diversified international
Group, we have many complex
supply chains,
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Customers/Consumers

The buyers of our safe, nutritious and
affordable food, and clothing that is
great value for money.
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- See further details on the decision to
launch the UK Click and Collect trial on
pages 67 to 68.
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Communities and
the environment

Supporting society and respecting
the environment are two of the key
ways we live our values and make
a difference.
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Shareholders and
institutional investors

The Company has a mix of individual
and institutional shareholders,
including bondholders, whose

views are valued.

Lt

Retura on in
* Bisiress anot
ESG

Feri

nencal pertornarcs

“aticn

« Wishaitas

= Annual gensral meastirg

* Annual Bepot

* Responsidlty -

s oress releﬁses

= Results CUNCEIMETIs

. ME;'

.

. I NES

holdars

. B euhc—r

CImpany
3 Talsod
1,|".’(_‘Jg\"0‘ it 'hp CoArse Cf the yezr.

* Regu'atory News Service (RS
anrounce: ie heep irvesiors
vpdated on busnass @d friancial
weriormance :mc. other

v Bacn year 1he
the Corroan,
sharehciaer
t%wer al el

s The Chief Executve sndfer Francs
D‘rector meet witn nvestors
througrout ihe year.

. flr each Board me e direciors

are briefes on meeln het have
takan place vith insti.,
snarenaldars ard on

+ The Ru wuneration Corpractee Chas

meata \'-‘H Westers and nmdly“‘s to
-k zrourd
.
.

- See further details on page 112, which

includes details on this year’s annual
general meeting.

Governments

The Group is impacted by changes in
laws and public policy.
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Principal decisions

Tty detisiong htougnou
ihe course of the financil year

there was a need to ensure that the
conzeguencas of decis.ons were ine
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a reputancn for high stanuarrjm of
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Decision to pay a final dividend
and a special dividend in
January 2022 and an interim
dividend in July 2022,
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Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact

on decision-making
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Decision to launch an inaugural
public bond.

Which stakeholders most affected?
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Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact on
decision-making

TI 2 E‘vcﬂs of 2020 and 2021

wcent finarcial rescurces ara credit
swergth to neet aperatioral i
W continued to focus on tig
managing cash “ow and maintaning
avery strong level of ligudity, O 10

SONG
o bond,

0 T
I .

fundirg base.

by 2072
IR E EJ‘n Iz

) (5158

hoof the pul
SULINES

e successful laung
Lond dversited the Growp's
of rurding aro exdendes the duration

of o benowve nas, running a'cruside
vihang Credit Faciily wh chowas
sefiar o duting the course of the
firarcie year This enhancaa cur igadity
and =un ad the continueas nvestnrant

for grosvthin tre busnesses

ouess anr dac -
ctof the cond
FTLNPETS 108 3
oy Fna mee Director v th
1o Felp deternune ind ¢z LWP
2.4 r\r*lw. T ves £
ciding Lr'd
g the "rul [EINEES

A part ot h
mak g n e
o g weth

i W
werg he's

8}
=1
o3

Decision to launch a Primark
Click and Collect trial.
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Decision to expand Primark’s
presence in the United States,
France, Italy and lberia.

Which stakeholders most affected?
= Cusromers/Consunters
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v Suppers

p

Consideration of stakeholder

views/interests and impact on
decision-making
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Decision to set up a Primark
Strategic Advisory Board.
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Decision to hold ESG Day 3.

Which stakeholders most affected?

« Sharelald ’
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s Erployaes

tatonal investors

rent

Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact on
decision-making
: “he senes of ESG
ents started in 2021 to Letter
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Evecunve, Firarce Diracior, Daector of
gal Serv ces and C ompﬂf" Sacreiary,
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RESPONSIBILITY

Invested in
our future

2022 has been another
challenyiny year, bul une
thing has remained constant:
our commitment to operating
responsibly at all times.

Cr purposa s 1o provide sate, mm'r
and atffordsble food, amd ¢ oining tha
grestvalus for money. N ao.ng he\.
WIrgs el vee ko es Sre noing (JOOd

“whions of pe pl

‘{1 lwelp‘ 5
fits for our peenla,
3, custemers énd

Treze donct replace aach business's
own values, but ratier censohdate ard
summ-ar s the most common thenres
feund acress the Growp

How materiality fits into our
value chain

i}elwermg social m’zpacts
improving the
environmental

Qur operations

« Focusing on climate
change

« Making finite
resources go further

Qur values are:

Respecting everyone’s dignity
Ve sthive 10 po et ine dignity of
evaryone within and beyoend our
opcrations, sc that the people wiho

MakE Cur pIOaLCTs 1ee! Sate, respacien

and incudeéd.

Acting with integrity
We proudly promote and pretect
a culture of trust, fairmess and

agooumnall-ly that s ethes first
From tasms and {actones .\q} through

Lo our hoardroom, we a (_Of'ﬂllu[tEf‘
tc embedding inlegrity nto

T & every action.
Tie e
A 2
& Associated
‘ British Foods )
Delivering with & Progressing
rigour F o through
: S -
From the products o iF collaboration
vee make 10 the L 5;3 Ve wote with Gtners
g - R ¥ ;g"}‘*‘;};r’;} to leverage our global
s

rESCUICES WE raly en
and supporl 1be paople
W WO AWITH, WE are aWays
iearning and F‘COFHOT:‘}TE"O betier
DIAcIICEs, ALTOSS CUr DLSIT25SES,
Wi are gartnerng wath industry

Our kuse

thein st matena neks and cpporiarte

value chans.

Ther
e
‘L'E'Sf" Grimna

and irough oo producis
2 rgporurg sectons

Associated British Foods plc ~nres: =

3808 el ol Thair strategles &rid 1ake au
at relevent nporis m the s

Sform e

gxpartse for local good.
Thraugh collzboration
mciuding non-goverrrental
organisatiors (NGQs), we are working

Ton 10 address

[;H()I fsed anlions — @ our suppy char ard aserations, for our
1asie of e follow ng
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RESPONSIEBILITY corstinued

Our suppliers

Togeiner with our suponers,
from large bisinesses tn

smallholder farmer
are working hard o hule
Hable, el

g gy

544,000

lives improved through
Twinings’ Sourced with
Care programme

252,800

farmers trained in the
Primarle Sustainable
Cotton programmeo
[(PSCP)?

2,400

Prirnark supplier faclory
audils conducted

Tei o -'?:? -V.“_

We are cutiing carbon
SrMISI0NS 1Y CUr Operatians,
making them nors ensrgy-
sHicient, and us es0uICes

Coaucly &S water e Lo alar

ways {o reduce thae impact of

CORCIVING Our CUSiomers.

54%

of the energy we used
came from renewables'

929GWh

" of cnergy generated

and exported from our

- aoperations; cquivalent

to the electricity uscd

. by 300,000 UK houses

84%

of operational waste
was sent for recycling,
reuse or other beneficial

use

70 Associated British Foods ple &

remigins our prionty and that

Our businesses aim to make
a lasting contribution to
society and the environment.

Our people:

Qur peeple dive Cur SUCLoss,
angin a waorld that s char
fast, they will need rew skijs
1o heip us stape that chenae
e rUE 1O IRvest in

deeponnig their undarstanding

of sustainanuity, =o they can

Al
W

actto drive our business

forward, We benefit from their
diverse talents and are abways
work1ng to ensure their

salety, health ard weltbeing
they Can come 10 wWork avery

g1

they Teel incicded.

132,000

~ people employed

36%

of senior management
arc women

84%

of all employees
across the Group have
access to an employee
assistance programme
(EAP)

Our products:

We are united by our purpose
1o provide safe, nutritious and
attaresb'e Tood, and clething
that is greet value for nrorey

500,000
tonnes

of CO.e avoided
through the use of
E10 petrol containing
bicethanol from
Vivergo

o)
45%
of clothing sales (units}

oontaining recycled
or more sustainably

. sourced materials.

89 million

Kingsmill 50/50 range
‘healthier white’ loaves
baked and distributed
by Allied Bakeries
across the UK



Non-financial reporting
requirements

The Conrpar s
trne Com

JTES

&ct 008 e
10 disc'ose
g

the

marcal reporin
Araal Booot and Acconr:
wgly, the disclosures requned in
Company's ner-minancial :formmation

T

statenent can be found on the {oi'owing
peges in e Strategic Renort for aro

i ; 'u?d into the Strateaic Rep

1UI these purposes frem e

toages 77 srd 78

e RfCIMIALON O Cul Anti-Br Qerv anid
Corrug : 8

= information on ou” Spear Up lMoticy
inags 83},

= inform *icn T Ol Bproach to e
IGrts €S 772 and 73

< infarmiation on social rmatters o
72,73 and 81} ard

« formialion on our

ervironmental management
ipawes 7310 78 3nd 81, 82).

“¥ Further information on these can also be
found in our 2022 Responsibility Report and
our series of ESG Insights.

Further Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG)
disclosures

This year,

staeshol nc.A_]‘

‘o better support oar

ur‘-r:'c-r ~ancing of our

Wl cur appresch 1o
WOy sCCTon of

B focused on the
Duﬂ‘nec%ea toy tive tnost
-l drrJ 5004l

of oL
ANt _rvirenn 0
s affect ng the EJ O..

© OuUr peorie, ana

= O Drud\,.

formore cele lec ESCreiated infomns

such as husress comaulmenis ana

nariorvance data

Oour ESG \rw;g% 15 r‘m\‘d additen
stonrel o0

approach, pe fur‘

A2F and our busresses

We engeged Ernst & ‘r'ouwg kYo
provide ~depandettimiled 8
ovel the 24 envirom:.er.t ard safetly

I<F"=‘ ‘or he vear enrced 31 July 202Z.

arrer informaton on our
u‘k-’l':b,;w"“” A"

v aot.on,

webs e at vy
wlueh inciuess « t A pre\-»ouq
respons Dty repors, our Modern Slavery
Satement and cur cimate, weater ard
forests ~eporis to COF

Engaging with stakeholders

Ve gimnl oy 122,000 pzople across
eperations n 53 countres, and our scale
reans that cur activiues matter to, or

ave &1 0 pact on, many pecple and
the planat. Qur reporting s nlendsd
o provide 211 stakehoigess vath an
overviens of cur apnroach to aj "”sw‘q

art of daly

}\kn’h

o b ene of 173 gicbs
onded 1 2021w
s Initiative (WED,
s {0 RTINS0 ATE
oy ane sccountablity on
suues, Ve ara in tha g
‘uf sLMING QLT Tesponse 1o 1S

UlVEY.

Society and supply chains
TP"lJH

Jand our Dusme
Lnibher L-f crgarnisatens on
sand rurman nghts, noiud
“ate Hummar Rights Benen
i bEteesl T dilﬂ‘ nitat d’ETU
an d M.LaTI (e . Qur non-Reta’l
resses also coulaborate with

: shreugn Sedex (&
D.:tj Ercnzngel and AIMV-PROGR

E»anpes of basir Hevel ey
vity NGOs anlocal and sub
specific natters are shared n our 2022

Rroancas Lilty Report,

Environment
ugh COP repors

o

TN, W share cur
orreance .0 mincating the nisxs
with climars channe, o wtﬁr
?* N, aswell a8 maxim
1he Gus ~ess gpportunities and any
ne v aperational m"‘r mMmJ

Tre Grewp and cur businesses also
e-gage w b ndustry Cordes ard cibers m
03 on oA rangs of envronntental
de energy.
charnge and w‘ar&“
np. This reccanises thatwhen
moraie wiith Gthiges, vee can all
=ar0 roin each other and orve greater
positive ndustry impact

Gl seuU

SELeR

susta nabie

Tnoge g

ESG assessments

lrvestor rigrest n ESGrelaten
S5UES NAS growwn 1 TECENT Vaa'S A8
more embhasis g placed on val Lrg
s Ineo-erm waorth of comparnes,
ther contnbut.on to socety and the
enprer et and on rUbuST anc

Transparent governanc
O ovelEve midtip e recLesis nrougr
ine year and we erg w v

1vestons and ‘r‘-vesh,
resealch agences o prov.ee the
1

ntormaton they rec
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RESPONSIBILITY crit

Ou supply;'t_:hﬁiﬁs: :

Together with our suppliers,
from large businesses to
smallholder farmers, we

are working hard to build
more equitable, ethical and
sustainable supply chains.

We are focuseo onowhat reelly matiers
v proteciny bumian nghs and
« delivening soeal impacts, ano

s imiprov.ng the environmentat
nericrma dr gupphars’ farms

arid factores,

Protecting human rights and
labour rights

Human rights due diligence
across our Group

lzsues affecting the nghts and condtorsa
of those who work in our many supply
chains are of senious concern 1o us,

0G5S cUr bus nesses, tme range of
152165 t1at anse ate wide ranging and can
vary from are factory or f20m fo another,
even i the same 1eg.on of country. We
worh vl many different stakeroders o
O QLT & sCh o humian rgris due
dlgerce, rotuting MGOs, rads uruens,
goverents, other husinesses (subject
to gl re evanit compettion ard artetrust
avsn, ard industry had)

25,

ar 1 years 1he Uiriteo
&5 on Du:me

chemn due
VIS e conlirue 1o
T-r,-ramar ol e UNG
roalilenval ard

D pRcYRoin
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Ihe foisnng examys

zunpied l;) an
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iIEPESHES

50

.u

i'ntp% fleornorate Df'ﬂ’\r' VCoe
EChiaur corrim tntents

SN G

Governance — r&<ponshility rmd
zecountal ity for nsk marage
lomng hiuman Cghts, st 0w
executives ot cach ABF Lush
Group Boad provides perodic
and SupperT to e

Transparency — vho ard whe'e

busmesses source from can enns
undersianc’ g f rumen fights nsks and
drive co'laooration to resolve them both

lucaily and eCross cur innusine

z, neluding Primark,
shish gobal
provide information
susut the r processes, proaress ard
challenges through coicorate repons,
veelsites, stekeroider engagerisnt

reodern slawve
o forced lzonas

S50 8
o' Corg

stateine

sbhe s one
LG ET e el

[ kN

LT e S0 A e

fgrn G practines

Risk analysis — ;ur b
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aming locls tosdentfy satent

dghits rsks ntheir supply chanms,

auTEn

e rtactable,
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\rAI a,
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. r“\-imﬁxwk
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i 1S suRDY

I the faticr case, Primmark collaboratad
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sourciry from Kyvanmar and the ETI
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IN"Dact a focuging onthe

nrospect Tor fespon €

SLECEINSNT

sl busine
NMyanmar. The fiacings of
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maren frem the Primark Ethicsl
T‘-me team and reviewed oy the Primark
Nyarmar Stesrina Comnittes to guide
further zcniors Conzeguently Primark
concluded tweult work Towards a
szposibite et frant Wyanimer.

o

r ~ale, our
cary Businesses montor then
stpnly cnam s and engage supphers
Ly Laing the onling datlabase provided
by Sedex. Over the past 12 months
cur UK Grocery businesses have Ceen
working wilth g central specialist data
maragen “eam vathin the division
to embed pew wrocedures 1o mors tor
suppder engagerment vith Sedex

Mo ago!

Grievance me‘:hamsms —cur
bus ness
mv(,l'!e X ‘s
.
f

VOCE C

: C vanca
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ne szues they fzcein the
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AT
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aspect of responaibie supply chan
tuvcrkars whose
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Delivering social impacts

Our buzimcssas nay “"artaut =

standards 0 the Greup Suppler Code
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COrTILT LGS That gre a5 and hetbs
It go rg oo, it zims to address salient
ruman tighisissees in its supply chams,
Im 2022, Tyamngs was rzcognised wvith a
Highy Cormmended dwani Tor the "Best
sustaingh’s tea nand’ .n the Merie Clare
Sustamabilty Aveards an d alzo Highly
Com mm(*ed i the Big Inpact Sveard

od Secier Awards for ts

i rgsz, Brght Futlres
Ltk Save the Chld

.F'l"O,'(‘Cl

ran

“Uark s ioc‘:k'r‘ug “or ways o bents
destand ‘l\‘l I

tof s
gl

1A

i "'o_.cﬁ

,Ule

NLRouse e

Peue

Improving the environmental
performance of our suppliers’
farms and factories

The inronmental impacts of farming
Almost all of cur husinesses der
Greclly or ndirectly on agnc U
natural ecosysterts Tl
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up;JO'*
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RESPONSIBILITY ¢

Qur operations

Nfm = A e,
VWS 216 GG

» fou

maring e

on what teally

15ing o clmate change, and

gsources go furthar

naiters:

e NNSES D MATEnAl nek i

ang ther supp'y ¢

Cliv=te oA
Cul DUSINesse

URPOIT ooic.es 1with the

P:% (ff\" Pars Ci

re comimitted to cuttirg
2 2 GHG ermissinns
rom 'ha upuohu 5. 1o, they
ary carrertly calculatung el Scops
TSRONR, focLE iy 1 tally on ther
CPrimark has completed
ard now reports s L
an Scope 3 em asio:

3

Ulf.l'watc to l
fale! ‘:L,-JIJW Ch; NS, AL
ave now announced ther

sugs Grs teducnon plans, noluding
Ic:rgﬁzs anc dazes,

Abhar

« AB Sucaris e gelng 2 2090 redacion
i Scepe 1and Scope 2 eivissions by
20320, against a4 2015 lire;

.

UK Crorery division e targeling a 5075
reductior across ail three Sccpes hy

20z0, against a 2015 bascelneg —in lina
ilie Courtau'd Commitnie

L

Frimalk 1= targC=
zduct on a ross al thrwe
20320 agahst g

Fovnngs aims te migke 2l of 45 tea ana
i jons carnon newtral by 2030,

o=

L

Scope 11000 tornes of CO,

Scope 2 Locznon-hased: (000 torres of CO &) 26
Scope 2 lviarkel-based: (000 tonnes of CO el 152
Total Scopes 1 and 2 location-based: (000 tonnes of CO,e) 1,130 2
Scope 3 Indrect enrssicns fram use of d-narly iansport:

1000 tonnes of CO el

Scope 3 Priurark s scope 3 evvssiens, 1000 tonnes ¢f CO 2

Total Scope 3: 000 torres of CO.2)

Biogenic carbon emissions. (CC0 tonnes of CO &) 30 4,
Intensity ratio Scope 1and 2 Iocation-based emissions per £E1m

revenue \Soopes T and 7 onngs CO ¢ -
Energy consumed: (G\Vhi L2632 17,

[

5 : :
d 10 gel scence-hased
ibe Srience Sased
Culectively,
H5E Lalgeis wot.d result
requctior nonr Scoue | ard
18 Dy 2030, aganst a 2012
la 37 % reduction s
Paris Agreement.

Ince e

Gescing
atopton of ihe

LA

Based on aur tack rencrd and plans up
0 2020, we are contident trat we are
weell- p"i&-u 0 nare sign T eart progress
s ”O 0 endd up to 20506, HD\\-ever
acrass ASF b alzo
‘ber of fzcters - Iwat are
oo Example, the
wergy and
e1s ard
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Vo rengaat

decarbonszion of vehic.a fle
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wider salutions.
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TCrD arnd cur correspanding action
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with the wequ’ ements of Listing Sule
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finenmiat disciosur stent vt

the TCFD recomnrencea: ons and (he
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NS IuLn g the

e for &'l sectors

2022

UKonly Non-UK  Total

08 £9° 1,003 1,315 zZ.4tEh
525 711 90 609 SRS
625 777 124 596 /234
031 2881 1,184 1,923 51075

521

ERAEA0N

1B 3,208 14

3,865

3,879

kit
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Our pecople drive our success,
and in a world that is
changing fast, they will need
new skills to help us shape
that change. We continue

to invest in deepening

their understanding of
sustainability, 50 they can act
to drive our business forward.
We benefit from their diverse
talents and are always
working to ensure their
safety, health and wellbeing
remains our priority and that
they can come to work every
day in an environment where
they feel included,
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RESPONSIBILITY

Championing diversity, equity
and inclusion
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RESPONSIBILITY continued

Engaging and supporting
our people
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES {TCFD)

Climate-related Financial Disclosures {TCFD)

We recognise that climate change represents a material risk
throughout our supply chains and poses challenges to some
of our businesses worldwide. We wholly support policies
that are aligned with the goals of the 2015 Paris Climate
Agreement to limit the rise in global temperatures to well
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (TCFD} contiiund

Scenario analysis
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (TCFD} corntinved

Example of cotton yield analysis —
India and Pakistan PSCP* locations
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Results of the climate»related risks and opportunities assessment
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (TCFD) connnued

Impact of climate on lHlovo's
sugar yirlds (Eswatini, Malawi,
Mozambique, South Africa,
Tanzania, Zambia)*
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CLIMATE-BRELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES ({TCFD) roaiinued

Impact of carbon pricing
mechanisms on AB Sugar and
Primark

Impact assessment

7020

Why this potential risk is important:
carbon prices are likely to increase

as governments take action to
decarbonise. AB Sugar represents
some 65% of ABF's Scope Tand 2
emissions and Primark has significant
Scope 3 upstream emissions, Impacts
quantified below are based on carbon
prices assumed in IEA’s hypothetical
scenarios. The NZE and SDS scenarios
assume a significant increase in global
carbon prices.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Managing our risks
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UJNCERTAINTIES o

External risks
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Context and potential impact
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Operating in global markets
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES cuiiy

Operational risks
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Context and potential impact
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Breaches of IT and information security

Context and potential impact
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES coninoed

Our use of natural resources and managing our environmental impact coniisy
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Our supply chain and cthical business practices

Context and potential impact
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VIABILITY STATEMENT AND GOING CONCERN

Viability statement and going concern

Viabllity statement

Tre crectors have detenmined that the
HIOLE apbtoptate poricd over which 1o
assews the Commany's viability, i
accordarce with the 2018 UK Comarate
Gevarsancs Lode, 15 three years. This s
conshient welh the Group’s busiess
nictdel which devolves opsrational
devsivn raking 16 the busmesssas tagn
Esy seTs g stratege planaing rmea
har'zon appronnate 10115 achivit |LS ang
which are wypcalty of athreg o

“ve yeal

duratian. 1he du’{—;m:’»m Al rnnsidered
the diverse naluse of the Group's

2L a3 and the degre-’* 10 which the
businesses charge and evaive I thg
relatively short iarm.

Tre drectors considered the Group's
p'owtablnty cash flows arnd key frarcial
ahcs over this per.od and e polenta

mpaf‘T that tha Principal Bisks ang
Uncertaruies set out on nages 94 to 101
could fave on future parformance,
solveney or hguidity of the Croup ard its
resiiencs o Lhrea{s tots visbihly poused
by severa but Die SCenanos,
Sensitidily aralyss wes apol ed 1o <hese
matrics and the proiectad cash flows
~ElR £1 0SS toated agsinst a rarge
C:f SCONAI0SE.

[he directors
periormance ing
1o exhaust its available hawdiny, tThe
finanenal implications of making any
strategic acquisitions and a variety of
add icnzal facters that have (he potennal
to reduce profit or to consume cash
Sub%tpmiaﬁy The dyectors considerad
actions wilch could damage the Gioun's
reputation for the iong tomm, macro-
economic influe csuch as Fuctuations
Ir commiodity markets and climate-
relztes business risks. Spscific
COHC;CGIFUCH ias been given io the
otert d| c,mgomg risks a%Suc\ateH wilh

on S e paTee
recession, regucing don‘amd fcr qoovls
in both the Food busiresses and

Primark, ’V‘d contmu‘ng inflationary
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The Board’s treasury :
to maintain a strong capitas bas
v e Groupes
ligui duy 10 ensure ionyg-tenm financ
stabiity These poices ze the basis for
fvesat, Ctedittr &0d markel conliderce
e godble theg suetEsdTul development
of the Losiiiess, The gvents of the last
dennuisialed e imnportance
af sulliv el ldnciEl tessurces and crec?
shienygth o mesT any operational
cha gs of business disruption events.
The finencie: isvereqe pelcy renuies
that, in the oidnary course of business,
Dz Bodrd preters o see the G oup 8 ratio

Lalalt

PO yeals

of nat debt.roluding lease babittes
adjusted EBITDA (0 ba w der 1.5,
At the ﬂmd ot this fnancal \,Par the
financial leverage ranc was 0.8x and ihe

Croup hat net cash befoie I'C—‘-cxae liab hties
of £1,188n and an undrawn conmniided
Revolving Cradit Facility of £1,500m

In Movermier last yaar, S&F Gle
Ratings d'”‘UL need they had as
Group an 'a" graae long term
credit rating. n Februzty thisy
Group announced 38 \Haugura|
puty o tond, duen 2034, furth

I |.:chIf\ g it fur*;:;ilr":g pase.

sighed the
sSLer

rengwe Jure. T. & N2y {r.C\“[y is for
ja "um o from £ By
nowe oo of porfaormocs covena

sl s

A

The cive sily of the Grosp s such that
we have sore 80 diferent businesses
operating in different markets, seclors.
CUSTAMar rouns, geoaraphies and
produeis Whils the principai ngks
considered all have the potential Lo
futire peformence, none af i
considerad : ually or collectively to

threaten the viahility of the Carnpany for
The e et of

the assasoimont

a track record of delvering
wes, with In excess of £1hn
50 DEING qcmaatbd e
tten years. This has beer

'75.‘1 o meest not ony

GLT 190 ng tinancmo cblaations bur

aiso o lund ite Growz's enparsionary
cag 1¢I BTN

Even in a veoist-case scenars, with neks

n oteiled o .'m—,term\ =2 s multarecusiy
td tur a sustanaed penod, the poss hitity
of the Group having in SJ icent
resourcas 1o meet 11s 1 ancial oblicarnns
15 considerad rernote. Based on this
assasament, the directors confirm that
they have a 1easora

=34

BCLo
Hle sertation {hat

*1
the Compary will De e 1o continue @
cperation and rneet 13 liabililes as thev
{all dug over 1ne three-year period o 13

Septemoer Z075

Going concern

Atter makirg erguines, tha diraciors
nave a reascrable evpecianon that the
Gioup nzs adequate 'esourcss to
continug in ogerational esisterce for the
torseeeabie future. For this rseson, they
contnue ¢ adop the going concam
hasis in prepsing tne censol'dsted
tirancial staiemeanta.

Tre furecas: lor the goma concern
asseszant penod 10 2 March 2024 nas
een undated husinase’s latast
tradieg i Cotober and 12 the best

-te of cashtiow in the period.

[ a5t and having
side sensitiv ty anaysls
“E0 4 reverss siress est,

re Cconsiger it @ rerote

&l headroom

5 for {he

e e
possiility &
coud oe exhausted,

Tre Board's vea
o mamntan a S-I‘G’lg ‘:Iap*'
Tanage ine G“”L n'sh
LOuinity 1o ensdre long v finanges:
stability. Thesa pole e the besig for
Imvestor, crecitor andg marke? confidence
and enania the successiul developrnent
of the business. The events of the last
rnsirated the importance
financial rescurces and credit
s‘[fu ’J'** 1o meet any uperational
crallenges or husiress disruption events
Ihe tnancal leveiage poricy states that,
in the orgmnary course of business, the

ase and
e shizat and

Board mrefers to gee the Group's ratic of
net nsbt including lesse lablities o

isted EBITDA to be well under 1.6«
Arohie enc of tig financia: yeat, the
rancial leverage ratio was 0.8x ang the
Groun had ret cash betore i2ase liahilities
0i Fl marr 'md a unar itted




In November last year, S&P Global
Ratings announced they had assigned the
Group an "A" grade long-terny issuar
rrel !’ATing In Q‘Qbrl,lar\n thig Woar, the
Group announced 13 inauaural F400m
public bund, due in 2034, further
diversifying its funding base.
Furthermare, the Group's commitied
Revolving Credit Facility, due to expire in
2023, was renewed in Juna. The new
facility is for £1.5bn, up from £1.1bn
previously, is now free of performance
covenants and runs for five years to
2027, with twe 1-year extension options.

In reviewing the cash flow forecast for
the period, the directors reviewead the
trading tor both Primark and the Food
businesses in light of the experience
gained from events of the last two years

of trading and ernerging trading patterns. -

The directors have a thorough
understanding of the risks, sensitivities
and judgements included in these
elerments of the cash flow forecast and
have a high degree of confidence in
theae rash fimars,

As a downside scenarin the directors
considered the advarse sgenario in which
inflationary costs are not fully recovered
and in which energy casts are twice the
farecasted increase and other inflationary
cost pressures are 25% higher. It also
includes further adverse foreign
exchange impacts combined with a
global recession, reducing demand

for goods further than the base |evels
forecast. This downside scenario was
modelled without taking any mitigating
actions within their control, Under

this downside scenario the Group
forecasts liquidity throughout the

peried and compliance with financial
covenants in the remaining $100m of
outstanding private platemant notas
{due March 2G24).

in addition, the directors alse considered
the circumstances which would be
nepded tn evhaust the Group's total
liquidity over e sssessinent periud — 8
1kverse siraee 18gL This indicotos that
increasing inflation {rising energy costs
ard other inflationary cost pressures; and
adverse forgign exchange impacts}
combined with a global recession,
reducing demand for goods, would need
to exceed £2.4 billien more than the level
forecasted by the Group, without any
roiligating actions being taken before
total liquidity is exhausted. The likelkhood
of these circumstances is considered
remote for two reasons. Firstly, over
such a long period, management could
take substantial mitigating actions, such
as reviewing pricing, ¢ost cutting
measures and reducing capital
investment. Secendly, the Group has
significant businecss and asset
diversification and would be able to, if it
were nacessary, dispose of assets and/or
businesses to raise considerable leveis
of funds.

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board and signed on its behalf
Michael McLintock /\
Chairman

w\/\/ ’
(A L\x

George Weston
Chief Executive

John Bason
Finance Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s introduction

Dear fellow shareholders

I 3 pleased 1o present the
Aszsocated Briush Foods ple
Corporate Goverranca Report tor the
year ended 17 Septarnbear 2022

Michael McLlintock
Chairman

We continue to operate a
devolved decisicn-making
modei. This is a distinctive
characteristic of ABF, and cne
which we believe empowers
management of our
businesses to take decisions
at the level we consider to be
the mast effective — in other
words, closest to the markets,
customers and stakeholders
relevant to each business.

Your Corrpany's ~lear senze of social
puUTpoSe, (0 provide sate, nutntous g|u
affardable food, and clothing tha:
value for maney, feeis more re'eval T T
aver. As | stated last vear e bebel th
businesses do well when thay adt wal
15 agramed throughout the Group and
manasgernert continue 1o be enduaged
10 take & leng-term view and 10 conLnLe
invesung in the future.

VWe continue 10 operate a aevolved
detision-making rredel. This is a
distinctive characteristic of ABF. and
one which we believe ampowers
maragemens: of our businesses to take
cecisions a1 the level we consider to
ne the most effective — n other words,
closest 1¢ the marsets. custamern
ana stakehalders relevart to each
business. The semor management of the
businesseas are supnorted with rescurces
and expertise from throughout the Gioup
and, es we arnounceg n Ju
v wall pe adding adolit on I
gapeTIse I Primark news yea” m';u.u.»
ihe creation of a Prirnark Strategic
Achdisery Brarn

Ycomirues o be ey
2ngagod oty Huz

=

;
aed
i
o]
w
4

Sl B, 2000
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The annug! husness updstes are an 2023
that we have dentfied in this year's
‘nterral 3oarg evaluation ag a subjoct for

greater Tocus and imiprovement,

Succession plznning, both at Soard evol
and exacutive level, has continued 1o be
Armily on 1k sgenda Dunne the surnmer
we announced that John Bason woud
be stepp ng down as Bnance Direntar
next Aprd after a leng ard dwstir".gmshed
pered of senvice. Jobin took up t
nost of Hirance D rector in May 109’5
enure has bee~ marked by
ar cmalyss ewcellent judgeament and

ire\ews corrmitment 1o the ,L\LF CausE.
We wall miss nim enormously, both as 4
colezgue andasaf talthea
same ime bewrg delghved that we wil
continue 1o benefit Irom his exgertee
wher, he becames Chair of the Primark
c Advisory Boara from May 2023,

aend, wohils

We veeme very preased w e atie 10
noance in Juiy that sobn would be
j*“t]' uy Foin Tonge, Cb-’;—:ﬂdy
Firnarcial Cthcer and Chief Strateay
icer at Maorks and Spencer Groop Pic,
and we loox forward to welceming —am
by nolater thar Fenruary 2023,

| &n alse happy 1o revort that the Boand
contnues o meet the recomnmendations
of the Paiker Review and plans 1o meet
rnore recently announced largats set by
the FTSE Woren Laeaders Rev.ewr and
iha FCA going forward.

During the summer we
announced that John
Bason weuld be stepping
down as Finance Director
next April after a long

and distinguished period
of service. We were very
pleased to be able to
announce in July that John
would be succeeded by Eoin
Tonge and we look forward
to welcoming Ecin by no
later than Fehruary 2023.

Ihe Company a<es 1s compliance waith
ihe 2018 UK Corperate Governarce Code
tthe "Z0° 8 Co sencusly, [nrespect
of the 2012 Cods provision relating to
altcrmert of ewecutive cirelor pensgon
contricutions with the workforce, an
exp!a zhan of ur D ouress 1o cate end
ns 0 Enng the Cenmpany nre e
"'=e 2018 Code is sci outf o7 pages
123, 13710 1378 {141 of the
Remuneaten Repot,

BoTors”



This vear we held cur third ESG
{envirocnmental, social and governance)
nvestor day in response to increasing
requests from investors 1o understand
more about what we do as a Group

in respect of ESC matters. This third
event focused on the most material
envirunnmiental factors acroas a broad
range of compeanies in the Group. As
Wwa3d the cose with tho provious o BEEG
investon days, the feedback receivad has

Richard Reid is cur Non-Executive
Director wha is designated for
engagement with the workforce. Further
details on progress on workforce
engagement are provided in Richard's
letter on pages 110 to 111 and 10/,
Directors’ visits to sites, business
divisions” updates to the Board on
workforce engagement, nput from our
Speak Up programme and Richard's
activities are key ways that we continue
to assess and monitor culture.

We will hold a physicat AGM in
December 2022 but, as was the apgreach
taken last year, will alsa stream the event
online for those shareholders who are
not able to attend in person. Shauid you
not be able to attend the 2022 AGM in
parson, with your proxy form you will
have regeived details of how to register
to follow proceedings at the 2022 AGM
theewighe e inleaed slosaon the, AGN
website and how to vate by proxy in
advance of the meeting. Details are

also provided of how you can put any
questions to the Board in advance of the
meeting {or during the meeting if you join
via the AGM website). Pleasa note that
you will not be able to vote on the day if
you do not attend in person, so please
vote in advance by proxy if you cannot
attend in parson.

Qur four values, namely respecting
everyong’s dignity, acting with Intagrity,
progressing through collaboration, and
delivering with rigour, are illustrated
through the various case studies in this
Annual Report, through our Section 172
Statement on pages 64 to 68 and through
the Responsibility section on pages 69

to 82. Further examples can be found in
our 2022 Respeonsibility Report and in our
ESG insighls, which ara available on the
Company's website at: www.abf.co.uk/
recpansibility.

Miclrael MeLinluch
Chairman

SN

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

As a premium listed company on the
London Stock Exchange, the Company
is reporling in accordance with the
2018 Code. The 2018 Cede sets out
standards of good practice in relation
to: {i} board leadership and company
purpose; (i division of responsibilities;
(i} board composition, succession and
avaluatinn; (iv} audit, risk and internal
control; and {v) remuneration. The 2018
Code is published by the UK Financial
Reporting Council {{FRC’} and a copy is
available from the FRC website:

wwwy. fro.org.uk.

The Board considers that the Company
has, throughout the year ended 17
Septernber 2022, applied the principles
and compliad with the provisions set
cut in the 2018 Code except provision
38 in relation to alignment of executive
director pension contributions with the
workforce. In this regard, please see
the explanation on pages 127, 128,

131 to 133 and 141 of the Directors’
Reruneration Report, which explains
our plans 1o bring the Company into ling
with the 2018 Code. '

The Company's disclosures on its application of the principles of the 2018 Code

can be found on the following pages:

Board leadership
and Company purpose
> See pages 104 to 112

Chairman’s introduction

-> See pages 104 to 105
Leadership, values, culture
and purpoese

> See pages Bto 11; 6910 71;
108 to 112

Strategy

=* See pages 8to 11; 108
Stakeholder and sharehoider
engagement

-» See pages 64 to 68; 69 to 82;
10810 112; 114

Division of responsibilities
-> See pages 113to 114

Commitment, development and
information flow

> See pages 110to 111
and 113 1o |14

Composition, succession
and evaluation
-» See pages 11510 118

Board evaluation

-> See pages 11510 118
Nomination Commities Report
- See pages117 to 118

Audit, risk and internal control
> See pages 11910 125

Risks, viability and going concern
- See pages 94 to 103; 120

Audit Committee Report

> See pages 12110 125
Remuneration

Directors’ Remuneration Report
- See pages 126 io 153

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

= See pages 129to 130; 133 to 140
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1. Michael MclLintock N
Chairman
waha

slevem™

elveas annoired a director 1

ber 2007 end Crarman 0 Apn!
2018, He wes Tomeily Chiel Exeeutive
W N&G retinng i 2018, haarg cined
the compary n 1932 a~d
(\‘Ew ceeC

mewap‘ it
1(‘149»|t

w0 Frudental
L nuuve
lev.,LJJ\

ant in

an Gr NER

Cther appointments:
e Tristes of the Cr
» Moa-Exacutive CF

Group Lim
« Charman n
LT hv f\d

or Corog
1 of Grosvenor

g lhvestn

r Fo';m cC

o

| Soad

-

. M'cmt,e of the v CC Lunmmee

2. George Weston
Chief Executive

Georgs was appointed o e 2oard in
1999 and ol v e current apco riment
55 Chvef Exzcutive in Apnl 2005, 'n his
former roles at Asseaated Banish Foods
was Nanza ng Director of
is, Allen Babcies and Ceorg
Wesior Fooos | mited fAnsirali:

Cther appointments:
« Mon-Evecutive Direcusr of Wiltingtan
1S L-r‘."ied
ve of the Garte
Foundauzn
« Trustee of the Sntisiy Museam

AW ten

3. John Bason
Finance Director

r=cterin May 1299, He
rhatioral bushess eeperenee and ¢

'1I\ wr o_ulefi Qe of k‘\)fh the fr“o1 and
:. He
ctoer of Bung! p‘r~
L Direcior at Comg

‘Wcoe dern

_C andis a member of the inst
m’ Chartered Accountenis n Eng'ana
and Weles

Gther appointments:
foc-Executive Direcior of Sleomanury
._)}t

s Non-Cwecutiee Di
Charnanef Fa

‘ur of SSE ple

4. Ruth Cairnfe &34 R
Independent Non-Executive Director

agpo
i has been

f-'vr\ e Yoo Pros er

5 ‘O\e

ple. T 0 oued anun
‘merrahiona! ro'es within Sh
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s of Ke'ler Siaop
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Hie Doar
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:;Ic. Cor
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ot ana Chair of Babcock
| Group FLC
| ’aor | earlerst
s Ensan

Aseon ation

fliul VWoresir

Charre:

» Patron o
Dafence

5. Emma Adamo

Non-Executive Director

appomted a direstor i

milber 2011, She weas eaucated &t
Stanford Us versity and bas 2n MBA S
IMNSEAD She hoa setved oy g doecior/
trustes cn g sunther of ron-rrofit and

Faundaton Doards i tha UK and Cane

o

Other appointments:

< Drecter 2f Wittnglon Inves
Lirniterd

« Directol _;f Vitt rolos Invesimenis,

raetts

6. Graham Allan @
Independent Non-Executive Director
Grahem was appe nted 3 directer in
Swpm’nt@r 2018, Greham was forn
> Group Corel Evecusve of Da oy
F':!Tﬂ srnatonal Hold ngs Limited,

a pan-Asien retsion Frior o oy
Dary Farny, he was Fresident arnd Chisf
Frecu D‘.":\, at Yum! Restaura
Imerngmional. Greham hes previcusly Ied
VETOUS seror p(.swl\o‘ 150 mutnations!

appomtments
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7. Wolfhart Hauser &3 €5
Independent Non-Executive Director

recter n

ited a o
rting s carcar vth
e went on
ra ae ct

s g
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canaary 2015, &
Vallons "esesrch activities,
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was previousy Chief
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8. Dame Heather Rabbatts &) ¥

Independent Non-Executive Director
flarme Meather
adirecioron 1 March
has helda numib

ver
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2027 .H alner

g n Ium
irdrastruclure, media and

25 prevoucly been a Non-
Director of Grosvero Brntan &
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aoverametil,

T

Other appointments:
ceutve Dirccwor of kier Group oo

31075

3. Richard Reid G A

Independent Non-Executive Director
Frehiarg was zppoented A ¢ recior in
Al 2010, He was formardy = pas
at KFMG LLP (KPRG, paving o
the S v 1980 Fiom Z(J 18, R
s London Chaiman at KPMG
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was kPG s U Chairmean of L'm H-gh
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]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Buard leadership and
company purpose

The Board
The Ewm! I LU f\'—;umely 16

d:rer;l!o noar d [eX=T g
o ersue s Iur:g-t(:r\ D
s setung the Cor
vehichiig described i the
Aepot. The Boz
roug!

surgess, This

: sometmes vath
mdividue miginbels dlencing visteali
spprove the Group's strateg e ob ect
to end tha G,r’ 5} v-;imn a framaveds

o Cotes

VL e carcrate govert
wehsite,

 of the Coirpary's

e hio resps
4 1o the 3oard Commrt
& Mominat o, Aucit and
ration Corma
cathin clasrhy fotinad tarens of
r2 ard report reqularly to the
Bead. Men'b shp of these Comnin
soevigved annually, Minutes of
Committes F_-(:Llruga arg mane ava: altis
Grs5 on a time'y basis, For
s, please see the Reports of
each of 1%’:_3; Co BIMILEEs belows.

LEes

Purpose, business model and strategy
Tee purpoce of the Company s 1o
provide sate, nutttious any &

food, and c'otr ng 0TS g
maonrey. A desa e Comipary s
lusiress model for sustanable growsh

1 suppot of this purpese s set out In
the Group business model and srategy
sectian o pagss 816 11 Tnese sect.ors
are r\q'a aN ex :m;."m cf the Das’s an

= s value and
long term ard it
fu: detvaring s ob ectives
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The work of the Board during the year

Lsuring the iviancal year, key

Strategy
» corducting ragular strategy upcate
sessicns woth the owsions in Boera
meatgs; and

1eceving a strategy update iem the
Cirecior of Susiness Developmen!
Acquisitions/disposals/projects

. consider“! "a;*prov%!fg vanous
Iudwwg thc—'

develops so em:ﬁ-n_a‘ly :
aCive rutrienss for Raman b

sha Greencoal an'mal supplement
and care Qusin CDad's P

cors dering ard approving vancus

capital investment proects ooluding

in relztion 1o new stores, automation
at depots and LED hghung upgrades

for Privnark; and

receiving regdla updatas on

proposed acquisitions end dispossis.

Financial and operational
performance

»receiving reguise rep@r‘v to the Soaird
trom g ‘\-h\@* Faeitve

recenying, an a roling nasis, senr
viar wagcm@n* nrese rtanons

from each of the Group

OUSINESS BgMeis

dernng the Grodp nudgs? Tor the
3 financial year;

g the Company's full year
and iterim resusts,

cecidiry o recornmnend payment of
3 2@21 fnat divi pw' and a sperial
cividend (hoth pald i Jaruary 20221
ANd « 1(—3-” ding to recomirmend paymant
ot a 2027 intenm dividend, pad in
July 202%,

approving the 1ssue of an inaugural
public hond, znd

approving banking mandate

updates and vanous other U&asury-
refated marters.

Gavernance and risk
revieveing of the matenal fingncial
and nonfinancial fisks facing the
Group's businesses,

"eCenving reguiar undatas on
corporate governance and
requlatny matters,
partcipat’on in, as wall
and discussior of rece
rem, the internal Bfaar eve}uaticn,

LT D
atls

acuvibes of the Board included

¢ recering reports frong the Eoard

Committee Chairs as apoiapiizie;

continming direciors’ independence

ard conflicts of interest:

revievving and approvirg gendar pay

recorting ard the Modern Stavery

and Haman Trafficking Staiement,

and

urdertakirg dappropriate preparations

for the Felding of the AGM

includd ng considerng ard approv.ng

an ‘oullcok’ statement ard,

sequertly, discussing any ssues
arisirg fram the AGM.

Corporate responsibility

surg o seppon the entanced

!‘[qrc:;

nagement

.

on E5G ma
Qg rediitar ma
&il a5 annual
nresentations on neaith ard safety
and on environmasntal 1I2suas; and
receiving an undate on ESG maﬂess
mcludmg priontizs, Comnuiments,
nsks and wriunities, and on

the Task larce on Chimate-relatec
Fimancial Disclosures.

Investor relations and other
stakehnlder pngagement

vhe of micte of the Charmnan, Chair
of 11e Remanerauon Comnuttae,
Chief Executive and Finance Direcior

atien meetings with inglituticnal
nvestorns o haar then views; and
v feCelvIng e
ac:

LOrts on invester
relaticns acivites ana regular
feedback on dirsciors’ meetings held
it nsututoral investors

People

« deciding ic appomnt Eo n Tonge as
the rew Fnance Drector of the
Company 1o comimence in 2023;
Frehard Rewd, Non-Executive Directon
for engagemant with the workiorce,
continuing o work with the
busiesses o ensure that the vo'ce
of the workiorce is heard and acted
cpen — see further detalfs or pages
P10 1o VT,

receiving vppdates from Semﬁr
nanagemert of the bust
hove they heve en
work forces and ing ouicomes of
such engagement, and

recewving ard consxdenng
presertations on auccesscn

2id talent maragement
fromy the Chief Pespe and
Ferloimanae Oficer.

ClEnning




Culture and values Whist!eblowing Engagement with stakeholders
‘ The Group's S,_uﬂa Up ”w"y comtains Curerae, en".p'cyn“a 132,000 pecole ard
endentl v L cperatons n B3 ot tes an 0ss

A anygEienils forann o
exiernsal service provider l
1 dewern-g will* rgcu '1 S3Tentia confaence twhere ega 'y permittedh,

cente arcund doeimng the nght thy repal ts uf amy INapproniate, mproner,

Cur devolved des sion-rmating nrode degal o dangeioas behaviow

2iva, in e wolld, Imeans 1nat cur astivilies

> gn mpact on, many

t, the Comipany

darly watl s sizhahcldes at

4

a

emncwer s The pe s closest o rsas o g e the Addt Commitice Group ardfor business level, sepending
&r1s to mingate Cropnate. The Audit Cormrrmiites ar the part.cular 1ssue

ndle tna r.ght ju

| £
those nsks ard to fird coportunities, reviews reports Tior internal aucit and

At a Gm ‘D \eve‘ wWe engage Wit a

out iH‘[_j v awvith ercouragement, the act'ong ansing from thaze and e .
; y groups nlud ng
yagemert e suppoit from the on these o the Soard. N 7
e : nerts, meda and
CE:,:I;‘. rat support can t2ke e “orm N . el . .
DO i N N The Audit Comirit'ee reporis ot hH vestons I' Tou gr“ ai ‘anqc Cf me-hous
of resoarces and expsitisa of 1 can be ; o
lull Board ¢n for all Board membe PR

proviced shrougr chasiiznas, Wea bel sue
e rou erduning va-ue creation
‘ocus or buding ehiect ves

T The h oM Lp ratner than rom the

1re relevant narts of r d nm aud t MU BT L.rcd ;"m.

Comemirige m»zmr’g 0 outa N Je

wlnehs Co’npw &
Finane al Control. Arrar 1
Culture s neo~tored by the Boarg niace for propodhionate and rod

her of afferant wvestgatons of gliegetons and ‘ﬁl

’l

B
Q.
O
=

S yLar cEn Ba

szioeches arm Feia's waork or ‘Gilove-up action Further detals of the a8 1w el contam our

. - e ol y _ N . i a8 BT CChitallh O
workforce engagement luesr:(:: o] Spaak Up Policy and nrocesses i place, | e i Sl e
' ior 172 Statemont o0 engaaing

more detad on pages 110 and 1117, as wail asiiformat.on on the status of
et e suppert of the Cn'el Pacpie notificat' ors received n the year to Jure
erformarce Officer, 15 a <uy 2022 are provided on pags 80 X

.1 osta<ehol Hﬂrc) rages B2 10 B2
ard m the

q.:c% |I1|5 ‘s sup pcrwd by business E. ,‘\. e Oy ;P ‘{ EIArG e T
fromi gerinr maragarie Conflicts of interest procedure xOLLY Ve rector for & W\.M'.»JE'” 1B AN
h business dvisien a ihe kEoeru The Corpany has procedares nplace 1o @ vordorce
~inelude infarration on safeny deg weith the situation whera a direcior i
1 bealth and voe ‘bcr asaconfict of wterest As part of tois We believe the route to
,:[a.a 1IE G v m\;al crocess, the Board. enduring value creation lies
. nocomt ot sdusbion in our focus on building
7 ts partcier facts, objectives from the bottom
1 engagement interact s . e coenfher situation M up rather than from the
' Cthere are s 18 5oy other comunct on il thie rest of ne ‘ ;(}{3 {'}‘\\J i
o it e\._m{c atienced by the cortlictad director's duties unuer the
CoL e Companies Act 2008,
c « keeps records and Beard nminates as o
e anvoducticn of the neve Sp=al Up aatlonssirors gramned oy directars and
Foloy and processas i Seplembsr 2021 e scope of any apmovals giver; and
"o beped Lo ensure ihatworkicree  regulatly reviewes conibct awihonsaton,

25 ard practices COonsisTent
tee Cornany’s vaiuas and that
upport ihe leng-term succass of
h.: Cmn[‘awy by orovid ng an egsy weay
‘of the workiorce (o 1ame any Tatters

[

e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continved

Board leadership and company purpose coifinu

&
Iy

Non-Executive Director for engagement

with the workforce

Our devolved operating
model has people at its core.

| am passionate about our
responsihility, at a Board level
and through the lcadership
learns, (0 ensure the voices of
our employees are heard and
present in Board discussions
and business decisions.

110

Assogniated Briticsh Faods ple &

The comiplexty, size and scale of our
Group require our leaderstip teams to
connect with therr people i a vanety of
ways depending on location, workplace
and stvle of operai.on. ensufirg ihey
are lIsten ng 1o views ar‘d rpemm}’im
accordingly. My o i

workforce 1s 10 make certain !
MGCesses are in place and that th e
culture of the busnessaes s ene

~hers employees are listensed to

znd feedback acted upon. This roe
continues to avolve due 1o the Workfore
Engagament initiative overall, and as ow
busiresses deveion.

| believe this vear we have ma
significant progress in encuning engaging
with gur workforce is at the heart of
lsaders’ actvities and that we have
enfanced the processes in place both o
yet feedhack anc to act on it

fex

In ty last ietter | spoke of strengthening
the drasional updates o tha Board and
enhancing the flow of conversation
between the Board and leadership
1eanis. | have spent mora tme this year
with the divisional Feople/HR direcics
%5 a group @ understand ther «ows

and 10 ensure that the cenversalions we
have are VdUcb\a and drive Nuﬂ"b\CB
engagemen cur busmesses | havae
recular discussions veth ow divisiona
chict exgcutives and Paeople/HR directors
o understand their act:.ene or workforce
engagemert and to skare fesdoack and
noehts from my Swen interag
cur peop's soross the Groun,

4 e
LSS el

A Bepnm 0o

In adeit.on w tha intorT: > alhared
with thie B
leads
|8t OuLr cur acn‘[ \\orrforce +;mg 1

Lut also pay attention to the insi

caresr elsewrere. This nsight and
perspect ve 18 now part of the Board's
conversations with lhe busingsses.

We cortinue 1o expect our leadsais to
fing veays 1o expand the remit of ther
engagameant surveys, explonng how best
0 overcome cultural s techrological
bzrers they tace in getting the viewes
and oprions of our empioyees. The
Buatd Tully supports leaders’ focus on
iy all eripioyess ate reacked and
thatthe vowees Gl nrmorty Groupsin
ABF st heard. | am 'J|6c1'§€‘d ior examole
hat our lerasrship teain in Morarnbigus
'(u jaway o get feedback from

. be they wer, \ng 17
ds, tactory ot othe

uc;m cane tis

ast update in 2021
visited a variely of cur bhusinesses
acoss cur Group, saeakmg with our
pearle to ensuie they know how 10,

and feel they can, snare their vievws and
opinions and have them listened o 2nd
addressed aunropnately  1his yvear i1 has
baen wonderiul to return to face-to face
conversations with ocw people st ther
place of wo'k. My s have neludea

wrce I have

- relal asmstants, nawe store mdﬂrv‘wp
teams and head of fics toarmy o Pl

[ . . _
i Raky and ratand,

cperatiens and customar service s
teams from AB Neo i cuwr AB Agri
division;

Cal, ang early carser
haisamic

operat’ ons, technj
eMpIoyaas n AceiLm, our
viregar business,

arange of empioyers woerking within
the ABF Centre;

employeeas at the Inte 'Imc Te
Centre in lreterd, part of cu

division; and

agricuilure and operations employees i
our Hiovo suger busmesses in Malawn,
Morzamilxngus and Eswatin.

ns1s | have generally
nd inclusive
saed an exignsive
Gur

Curirg all my v
tound @ positve, supporive 2
uiuie whers we discls

ranage of issuss and,

N the mam,

sned how to gwve opintons. Wh
‘r'xcai 155LES havc Pmc-rged, I




Other Board directors also interact
directly with our businesses and
employees, details of which can be found
on paae 114,

Workforco cngagement is discussed in
depth at two of the Bnard moetings, with
the Chief People and Performance Qifficer
presenting a group view of progress

on workforce engagement, including
metrics, process enhancements, ang
stories from across the Group that
highlight the *we asked, you said, we
listened, we did’ feedback loop. There

is also an annual Board session focused
on talent, succession and progress on
inclusian. In addition, at every Board
meeting there are chief execulive
presentations or papers submitted
covering workforce engagement to
ensure all areas of the business are
reviewed in depth during the year. The
Chief Executive and Chief People and
Performance Officer alsc meet twice 2
year with each givisional chiet execuive
and People/HR directer for in-depth
discussions on organisation and talent
that include workforce engagement,

The dwvisional People/HR directors,
facilitated by the Chief People and
Performance Officer, also come together
regularly to learn and share with each
other across a variety of topics, including
workforce engagement.

As a result of the ongoing focus and
expectations of myself and the Board,
and the commitment of business
leadership, | have been pleased to see a
range of examples from across the Group
where our people have voiced ideas,
suggestions, issues and concerns, and
these being acted on promptly. Such as:

AB World Foods has introduced
support and training on Effective
Meetings;

ACH US & Canada has run 2 series

of webinars for all its people covering
mental health, stress management,
healthy eating, emaotional inteligence,
personal investing and estate planning;

GWF's Mauri business has

developed and introduced a range of
communications, including podcasts
and briefings, to help people feel more
connected to the business strategy,

GWF's Tip Top business has
adopted wellbeing checks and
support, as well as workload and
resourcing adjustments;

GWHF's Tip Top business alsa launched
an e-boak and videos to explain the
strateqgy for its employees, enabling
digital engagement with the purpose,
key initiatives and outcomes;

-

-

.

.

.

Sitver Spoon has used the feedback in
its engagement survey to implement
changes at a team level targeting

the needs nf that aroun. for examnle
improving recognition in the sales
tgam, which is now an area of focus at
each team meelng;

Twinings in Australia, SEADM (South
East Asia Developing Markets), Tea
Supply Chain and Central Europe have
enhanced their communal and informai
breakout spaces in the ottice;

Twinings Tea Supply Chain teams have
held workshops to explain the pay
process to emplayees;

Westrmill continues to use its "Westmill
Says’ engagement survey to listen to
and respond to feedback in its business
in a variety of ways, such as its
rmonthly ‘Westmail’ magazine keeping
employees up 1o date on initiatives in
the business;

Azucarera has increased internat
communication with regular updates
from its Board and Managing Director;

lllovo has implemented the Lumina
i.eadership Development & Team
Effectiveness Training o drive line
manager effectiveness - 65% of
leaders have completed the training so
far with excellent feedback;

AB Agri has formed a project team of
employees to create an engagement

plan and toolkit, with the aim of mare
consistent communication of strategy
and goals across the business;

ABF has started a technical careers
project in response to feedback on
career development,

ABFI is working to gevelop an approach
to recognition to address the needs of
its employees;

our European AB Mauri businesses
have impiemeanted line management
training on performance management
and return to work discussions;

AB Mauri in the Netherlands has
introduced a consistent employee
Wellbeing Programme;

AB Mauri in Sri Lanka has a new
process for allocating duties with
its employees;

AB Mauri in Brazil is making
improvements to publication ot internal
vacancies to increase the likelihood of
internal applicants;

Primark has set up pricrity champion
groups for themes identified in its
engagement survey;

+ Primark has launched Zing, an internal
social media platterm, providing
information to all colleagues,
including articles snd messaqges
from senior leaders. In addition, it is
developing plans to increase
the focus on recognition through
internal communication;

Primark is developing the new Fwd
Think platform to encourage innovation
and o allow employees to share their
ideas; and

ABF Centre is supporting line manaders
to work with their teams to drive their
chosen actions to address Welilbeing
and DEL

Despite the energy and effort from the
Board and all our leaders to give our
people a voice, there may be occasions
when employees do not feel comfortable
1o raise issues directly, Our new Speak
Up Palicy launched last year is now
embedded n our husinesses and
provides an alternative route for our
employees (o raise concerns, You can
read more on page 80 about how Speak
Up has been used since it was launched.

in the year ahead we contnue to
expect our businesses to widen

their mechanisms for understanding
workforce engagement wherever they
can, and to understand this infermation
through a variety of lenses, such as
under-represented groups or frontline
workers, so they can target their
actions to enhance workforce
engagement overall.

The Board and | will continue to approach
the area of workforce engagement with
focus and rigour, finding opportunities

to further deepen and enhance cur
understanding of our people’s experience
of ABF, and in turn ensuring that our
leaders are acting on their feedback.

Richard Reid
Non-Executive Director

I (k)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE -

Board leadership and company purpose continged

Engagement with
shareholders

Individual shareholders

We have a number of rdividual
sharehe'ders, Al sharebn'ners are
ovites o atiend tie AGRY nopersen,
have acress 1o our webs e and rec
electran ¢ corunuk cal ons

cu o he

We rave a ogeda
o AR COTTITH NI ATINNS
charehoiders, making sire b
G"Tec‘r Y, o optate 10 an y 1178 ttv s
"r('\m trerr sharebo'd ros Ve alse
Ak a cedicated “zam at Egumit lour
‘h" eregstisn which icons a M
neads To meprove secanily and =f
of coramuncanaons and to reduce e
amount of paper we
LUsE e-seimmuricatl,
with sharchoelders wbere
ard encoaraas '«P'—r;rolw::e:'.“ Q Sl
TO e-CONTMILN CAationa . order to
‘educe further our paper usage. YWe
aleo arcourage the direct payment

of ohvidends into bans or building

a5 &

[

Institutional investors

Durimg the vear, U & Bosrd has

intaines
engagemer
the pLrposa

shareho'!ders’
Carmuany’

5
nerformarc

welders Theare has bc—er:
Anstitutor
nergtion P o:.r;y.
h is reluded in tine
Dhrectors Relm neration Report start:ing
o7 pEge S26, At escn Bostd H"Remu

INVESTTS G Th
furthear cetd\ 5

cewed, Inc L.d‘!:g By

12

IIEnRLY

Assoctated British Foods plc 201 ua

AGM
The AGNM provides & cunartunity for
dIrECIors 10 €Ngage witn s-areio ders,
snswar their questions and o meaet
therr nforeghy The AGN w Il ke held
o Frzay 9 Decembar 2022 at 11.00
ane at ine Corwress Certre, 28 Graat
Fussell Street, L ondan WC13
opanred that snarehclders will be able 0
atiendar Therg vl aleo ne the
SOSSID eqstered s =be'ders 1o

: rgs throuy® a livestesm
bsite Ve encourage ol
s ot attending nopersen on
woie by proxy in adve-oe of

| rasclutions put forveard

frotbe clowvele
: day if ey a g nol gttending N
Itis mtendad that shareholde:s
Wl neve the soporiurity 1o pul trar

u_&‘;‘ Its

&3 shareholdars
1

nersen

reeting ( sltendng o opersen or ogeed
o va the AGRM website) orinad
of the rreeung. Heaistered shar !
who log n o foliow proceedings throush
the Lvestream on the &GN website will
e able 1o submit questiuns during the
AGRN. Futber detads arg included
the MNotce of AGM amd GOCLT 0TS
SCCOMY g the proxy tenm. Al votes
are taken by a poll 0 2027, veting
leveis at the AGN were over 800 o the

Cornpany’s ssued share ceoral

Annual Heport

YWe publish a full Annual Revort and

nts ezch vear w WC” coriams a
g E—‘ercﬂ r\—won
cOrnorate gove

AACC0L
o

a8 neCt
; \:ts, The Annual Repcrt
Habie n 013 er forrat for those
Who eguest 1t and enour web :
wrnow abf oo i

Responsibi!ity/ESG
We puol sh a Respensib ity Report

1d ESG Insignts en the issues most
mzienal o e businesses within our
Group. The Company Socoretary acts
a5 @ focal oot tor comriiLmcauens
on malters of corporate responsibil iy
Du"lnq e yw e Corinany responded

sts ‘n- meetnros, telsnlore

veriten mfom-cuon fr-Jm

neeti Qs or
hoth exstirg

Meetings

Tre Chairman 1

argest institng onal ah ~olders 10

reas ther vicws ana discuss any ssues

or conceras, Dunra the year, the

"vilh a nLmher

s (ither

noor v |y) \d SCLSSET 7

tep e including the Compeny's
FOECN 16 gavalrance,

naiters

TEETS vl

e Company's

Ha annoancement of the
ts, e Company's
her vt

s are nvited oA

Veath s gueston

irtuaty wiere

Vit stitutional snarenolders
dnvesiors, These vews are

e elloveng Board meeting to

Uihey ere aveare of any is3ues
~e C“W RETE shar

H
are concerneavith,

Wehsite [www.abf.co.uk)
Our website s rogo'art
containg a comprehe
rEt onocn oot Cory

b updetad and

e range of

presenialons, press
relosses and contact detals, Tre crea

ina~cial 1es

ded cated to irdiv dual sharenolders s

NEves acdmit

contact infoi



Division of
responsibilities
Board composition

At the date of this repart, <h2 Boaid
the follevana dicectors:

LOMTRNses

Chairman
Yickae: Mclintock
Executive directors
Georpe Weson (IChef Fv
Jehn Bases (Finance Dire

Non-executive directors

Rud: Cavrie fQHI\ colndependen) ©orecoon
Erma Adam

Graban Hl:an

Woli~at Ha.
Damre ezt
R chard Re

> Biographical and related information
about the directors is set out on pages
106 to T07.

We corgionr the sice of the Board o
be lzrge encugh to ensure dve” cny arii
ety of skills v

20 armall ewo igh to ensurg
g geod g,

of cebata Ths v =3
Rz d oy tho extanal E;oard

=l out

n ZU22,
a's gl wrh are st out on
saness 115 :.:wd 116,

rinan and the Crhief
evdratey held and the
rp%pon:l‘i"\‘ﬂes 5 clearly
cired, t:.:t out v e, and
:greso by the Bostd 1o ensure that no
one kas unfettered powers of dec s'on
Copies are avatabla onreguest

The Chamman s rezpunsible o g
cperevon enag leadeiship of the Qomd,
ensuirais effectiveress onid ssttng is
agenda The Chairman works woh the
mipany Secretary 1 set the & ga'aua for
pard meelings The Chamran prometes
aculte e of cgenness and %.nﬂe,

whch ras baan a kay factor i seekong
16 keep the size cf the Board ~elatively
srrall, and faciliteies constuctive Board
celatiens and contribution fram ail nor-

veell &5 ens

Com
B

Attendance of directors at Board and Committee meetings

Michae /9
Gevrge Was? /9
John Egson 29
Ermrra Adamo 909
Graham A an e
Ruil Cairr'e 949
Wolthart Hauszer ghs)
Carng Heather Rabbatls H/9
fucrard Bed . S

f"-‘h—r\. =Cation
TeClve dav— o-day ure rg

and rman ort of tho Group. Tho o=inf
execuive of each busingss withn the
Group nas authonty for that husivess a
repoils oirsctly to the Chigf Ex r‘ut:ve.

Senior Independent Director

The curposa of this ole s o2
soundirg board for the (r‘““‘

direciors awhore nece
nrde pwr*rl | Director s alm EEAL

Cconvay Conaerins 1o the Board vehics
I|‘r y have ‘:)can Lhatile to convey thrcagn
the Chanman or through the ex2cutve

ectors. Tha o e of the Seror
{ A D|rg(~<c,r 15 50t oLt i v q

able o request

NEdnthon to meet 1g Wit NCn-SAecuts
reciors wthﬁul the Chauman s
e 1re Cha'iman’s oernrmia
urtier de 5ol
ndependent Drectar
rhe non-exclulive directons

SR

2

meets with
o nther CLoasiors as Necessary.

The non-executive directors

The non-axecuive dractors, ~ addition

1o the rrasponsibilives for strategy
and business resu’ts, Diay & ~8y role n
provigng a sol o fourdaton for gcod
>orate govertanc agure 1nat no
Jal or groap dar w.e‘es the Board's

decision maki ng They eacn coouy,
or Fave cooupied, 5en o positions in
ingustry which, ‘a%’rw togethar, cover
3 broad 1z junsdict oms, bongino
err‘a! e

rspectives 1o the

Leraticns throvgh their

el msight fronn d ferent

Thu'* ev*ab"-

iern o cortrn
censon
C?l

[RRFEEN g

a'ﬂ:"gb 5

v UL.‘@.: exsnulve
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Y 1]

Beoard Comrnittees
1 erms of ieferencs T'r\r ]
Aot and Rernune

@ avalable on e

5 4 ebcnte, [T L
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ne otk of each of
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The i
HNosymighon, A
Comir it
Compary's
anti r ;a:d uw

Board independence
cnsdaredd by

Frona ’\da:"mo 15 1101 ¢

nts
e om,wwy 5 =Pajum;
sharcho cer Erma veas appenied
in Demmt: 2017 to renresent this
sharsgho ong on the Board. The Boad
consid t the other ~on-esecuive
d‘rer:‘r:-rs ale rdspanaet in charach—‘ v

1 udcemant and that they &r
‘(rom cw GUSINGSS O cLher
e o i eatanally
stk tha exercise of
c..m wdgeirent, Furlher detal's
serderce are inc'uded i the

ez 1ha

Cir

Commitment

The t=tters of appeomtmcnt fur the
Chanmrar and the ron-execuive drectons
set out e earected tme contnutment
reoured of them and are avetliale for
nspecton by any person dunng rormal
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Board induction
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Composition, succession and evaluation

Board succession
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Re-election of directors

Board evaluation
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Composition, succession and evaluation confinted
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Nomination Committee Report

Members

At the date of this report, the
following are members of the
Committee:

+ Michael McLintock (Chair)
+ Graham Allan

* Ruth Cairnie

+ Wolfhart Hauser

+ Bame Heather Rabbatts

= Richard Reid

Ajl members served on the
Committee throughout the year,
with the excepiion of Dame Heather
Rathatts who was appeinted on 2
November 2022.

Meetings
The Committee met once during the
year under review.

Prirmary responsibilities

In accordance with its terms of
reference, the Nomination Committes’s
primary responsibilities includedg:

Governance

Members of the Nomination

Committee are appointed by the

Board from amongst the directors of

the Company, in consultation with the
Chairman, The Nomination Committee
comprises a minimum of three members
at any time, a majority of whom are
independenl nun-executive directors. A
quorum consists of two members, being
either two independent non-exacutive
directors or one independent han-
executive director and the Chairman.

Only memibors ol e Mutinalivn
Committee have the right to attend
Nurninativn Corranitleg reetings. Otel
individuals suth as the Chigf Exesutive,
members of seniot foaarayengny,

the ‘et Pooplo and Performanco
Ulticer and axtarnal advisprs may

be invited to attend meetings as and
when appropriate.

Michael McLlintoek
Nomination Committee Chair

ieading the process for Board
ppeintments and making
recommendations 1o the Board;

reviewing regularly the Board
structure, size and composition
(inciuding skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity} and
recommending any hecessary or
desirable changes;

considering plans for orderly
succassion for appointments to the
Board and to senior management,
with regard to skilis, knowiedge,
experience and diversity,

keeping under review the lsadership
needs of the Group, to ensure

its continued ability to compete
effectively in the marketplace; and

being responsible for identifying
and nominating, for the approval of
the Board, candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise.

The Nomination Committee may take
independent professional advice on any
matters covered by its terms of reference
at the Company’s expense.

The Nomination Comrnittee Chair
reporis the outcorme of meetings to
the Board to the extent that any Board
members are not in attendance at the
relevant meeting.

The terms of reference of the Nomination
Comrmittee are available on the Corporate
Governance section of the Company's
website: www.abf.co.uk.

Committee activities during
the year

KSuscession planning

Hie Buerd wunlifines 16 snphidsise

yenw alisl skills in Buard recidinnes ds
well as continuing 1o factor in all forms of
diversity, inchading gender and

athinic divarsity.

As it is the practice that all directors of
the Board attend Nomination Committee
meetings, activities that would normally
be carried out by a separate Nomination
Committee are often dealt with by the
Board as a whole. A detailed review of
succession planning in respect of senior
management was presented to the Board
by the Chief People and Performance
Officer at the Board meeting in July
2022. This included a focus on the
approach to successian planning, the
development of talent and careers across
the Group, the status of diversity and *
melusian reporting requirements and
netwaorking across the Group,

Board appointments process

The process for making new
appointments is led by the Chairman.
Where appropriate, external, independent
consultants are engaged ta conduct a
search for potentiat candidates, who are
considered on the basis of their skills,
experience and fit with the existing
members of the Board. The Nomination
Committee has procedures for appointing
directors and these are set outin its
1erms of reference.

Process for appointment of a new

executive director

During the year, the Chatrman led the
procass for conducting a search for a
new finance director.

Spencer Stuart, an external executive
search consulting firrm, was engaged to
help identify potential candidates. The
firm is a signatory to the "Voluntary Code
of Conduct for Executive Search Firms’
on gender diversity and best practice

as well as being & member of the CBI's
Change the Race Ratio. The Chairman
has previcusly been a member of ‘
the advisory board of Spencer Stuart but
that role had terminated prior to

this engagement.

Potential candidates were considered on
the basis of their skills and experiance,
including locking outside the FTSE

250, Fallowing a rigorous process of
interviews with various members of

the Nomination Committee, the Board
approved in July 2022 the appointment
of Ecin Tonge as a director at 2 date

to be determined but no later than
February 2023.

Re-election of directors

The Nomination Committee members
considered the composition of the Board
and the time needed to tulfil the roles of
Chairman, Senior inrdependent Director
and non-executive director. lhey also
censidered the re-election of directors
prior to their recommended approval by
sharcholdors at tho AGM.

Michiae! MoLintouk
Nomination Committee Chair

/\’(/ Voen

<
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Michael Mchtock
George Weston

John Bason

Ruth Cairnie

Emrna Adamo

Graham Allan

Wolfhart Hauser

Dame Heather Rabbatts
Richard Reid

118 Associated British Foods ple Zi ¢



Audit, risk and
internal control

Financial and business reporting

Flegse see the Audit Conrm ttee Feport
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Risk management and

internal control

Tre Board ackinowledges s overal
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risk rmanagement and internal control
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Financial reporting
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internal audit
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Audit, risk and internal
control continuad

Assessment of principal risks
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fraud perpetrated aqainst the Group
angd the action taken by management
both to pursue the perpetrators and to
prevent reoccurrences,

External audit

Auditor independenge

The Audit Committce is responsibie for
the developrnent, implemeantation and
menitaring of policics and procedurss
on the use of the external auditor for
non-audit services, In accordance with

professional and regulatory requirementa,

Thoso policios are kopt under rowviowy

te moot ihe ohjeotivo of ensuring that
the Group benetits in & cost-effective
mannet from the cumulative knowledge
and cxperience of Hs guditor, whilst also
ensuring Lhatl the auditer mainlsins the
necessary degree of independence and
objectivity. The Committee's policy on
the use of the external auditor to provide
norn-audit services Is in accordance with
applicable laws and 1akes into account
the relevant ethical guidance for auditors.
Any non-audit work to be undertsken

by the auditor requires autherisation by
the Finance Director and above a certain
thrashold, by the Audit Committee, pricr
to its commancement, The Cormnmittes
also ensures that fees incurred, or to

be incurred, for non-audit services, both
individually and in aggregate, do nat
exceed any limits in applicable law and
take intc account the relevant ethical
guidance for auditors.

The Committee is required 1o approve
e use ol e exlemngl audilol W
provide: accounting advice and training;
corporate responsibility and other
assurance services; financial due
diligence in respect of acquisitions

and digposals; and will consider other
services when it is in the best interests
of the Company to do 5o, provided they
can he undertaken withans jenpardising
auditor independence. Tax services
including tax compliance, tax planning
and related implementation advice may
not be undertaken by the external auditor
except in very excentional circumstances
where specialist knowledge is required.
The aggregate expenditure with the
Group auditor is reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Neo individually significant
non-audit assignmentis that weuld require
disclosure were undertakan in the
financial year.

I he Company has a policy that any
partnera, dircetofd of 3enior managsrs
hired directly trom the eeternal anditar
must be pre-approved by the Chief
Feople and Performance Utticer, and
the Finance Director or Group Financial
Controller, with the Chair of the

Audit Committee being consulted

4E ApPIOPrIAto.

The Audit Committee has formally

reviewed e independeie of Lhe
erternal anditoe FY fas caportar to the

Cormmittee confirming that it believes it

remained independent throughout
the year, within the meaning of
the regulations on this matter

and in accorgance with its
rolessiugal slandsrds.

To fulfil its responsibility 1o ensure the
independence of the external auditor, the
Augit Committee reviewed:

= aroport from the ouxternal auditor
describing arrangsments to identify,
report and manage any conflicts of
intarast, and policics and proceduros
for maintaining independenco and
monitoring cemplianco with rolovont
requirements; and

the extent of non-audit services
provided by tho oxternal auditor.

Tho total foes paid to EY {for the 52
weeks ended 17 September 2022
were £10.1m, of which £0.9m
related to non-audit work. Further
details are provided in note 2 to the
financial statemeants.

»

Auditor effectiveness

To assess the effectiveness of the
externatl auditor, the Cornmittee
reviewed:

the external auditor’s fuifilment of the
agreed audit plan and variations from it;
reports highlighting the major issues
that arose during the course of

the audit;

teedback from the businesses

via questionnaires evalusting the
performance of each assigned

audit teamn, planning, challenge and
interaction with the business; and

a report on EY, as & firm, from the Audit
CQualty Review Teamn {'AQRT") of the
Financial Reporting Councl {FRC’).

»

.

N

The Audit Committee holds private
meetings with the external auditer after
each Committee meeting to review kay
issues within their sphere of interest
and responsibility.

To fuffil its responsibility for oversight
of the external audit process, the Audit
Comimitice reviowed:

the terms, areas of responsibility,
associated duties and scope of the
audit as set out in the external auditor's
engagement letter;

the overall work ptan and fee propasal;
the major 1ssues that arose during the
course of the audit and their resolution;
key accounting and audit judgements;
the level of errors identined dunng the
At ame

recommendations made by the external
auditor in their management letters
and the adequacy of managerment’s
response.

.

.

.

Auditor appointment

The Audit Commitiee reviews annually
the appointment of the auditor,

Lakiniyg i avtuuii e guditut’s
eftectiveness and independence, and

Associated British Foods plc Annual Report 2022

makes a recernmendation 10 the Board
accordingly. Any decision to cpen

the extarnal audit to tender is taken

on the recornmendation of the

Audic Connnge.

The Company's current external auditor,
EY, was first appointed at the annual
general meeting in December 2015,
with effect from 2018, following the
conclusion of 8 competitive tender
process. The Audit Committes is satisfied
with the auditor's effectiveness and
independence and has recormmended:to
the Board that EY be reappointad as the
Company's external suditor for 2022/23.
In accordance with applicable law and
regulation, the Company is required to
conduct a competitive audit tender
during 2025.

The Audit Committee has discussed
the mast appropriate time to carry

out the external audit tender process,
1aking into account the independence,
objectivity and quality of EY's external
audit and has concluded that, based on
current perfarmance, it is anticipated
that a competitive tender process

will commence in 2025, The Audit
Committee considers that a competitive
tender is in the best interests of the
Company's shareholders as it will allow
the Company to appoint the audit firm
that will provide the highsst quality, most
effective and efficient audit.

Compliance with the CMA Order

The Campany confirms that, during the
period under review, it has complied
with the provisions of The Statutory
Audit Services for Large Cormpanies
Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of
Competitiva Tender Processes and Audit
Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014.

h !
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual statement by the Remuneration Committee Chair

Ruth Cairnie
Remuneration Committee Chair
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Remuneration in 2021/22

STIP 2021422

ihe calculated mitturm an the S1IE
financial parformance measures for this
year 15 48.43%. 1he Lommitlee beleves
that this s an apprepriate cutcoms,
retlecting the stretching budget set, the
resilient performance of the business

in the face cf exceptional inflationary
headwinds and the progress against

strategic objectives.

LIVE 201922

In 202U, our pay outcomes reflected the
mmediate impact of CUVID-18 with no
SHY bemg paid, no LEIP vesting, andg
cuts ot HU™ of salary tor a substantial
part of the year for the executive
directors. Given the widespread societal
impacts on multipte stakeholdar groups,
this was appropriate.

Vesting targets for the 2018-21 and
2019-22 LTIPs were no longer expected
to be achievable and addressing this
required careful judgement and an
exceptional approach. We wanted 10 align
execulives' pay with the critical actions
required to develop and strengthen the
business, preserving and creating value
for shareholders. As | set out last year,
having the 2018-21 and 2019-22 L TIP
awards pre-destined not to vest dd not
align 1o our remuneration principles,

nor would it support the recruitment
and retention of senior leaders in a very
competitive talent market.

In 2021, and as disclosed last year, we
established a perforrnance framework
to support the Commiitee in applying
discretion in a fair and transparent way.
This considered performance across the
portfolio, as well as ESG achievements
and the experience of employees,
shareholders, and wider society. Last
year the Committee decided that 409%
of the original 2018-21 LTIP award
should vest.

128

This year, with the 2018-22 LTIP targets
made similarly ynatiginable due to the
irmnpacts of COVID-18, particularly through
ihw hahing uf progross s Julivering s
pipeline of new stores, we again adopted
a parfarmance frameaswnrk ta stppnrt nie
considerations of potantial discretion.

Group revenues, protit and EFS were all
much stronger this year as the business

recuvered irumn the nnpetls ol COVID-13.

'he Primark digital strategy and pipeline
of store openings showed significant
progress. We saw good trading,
ethcient operational performances and
pricing actions to recover signiticant
input intlation 1n our Food businesses.
Lxcellent work was donc i pregressing
our approach to ESG. However, there
have been additional headwinds with
Primark margins impacted by hoth the
consumer and inflationary environment
in surmmer 2022. Therefore, although
progress on our strategic KPIs has been
goad, this has not been reflected by a
recovery in our share price. Considering
the experience of widear stakeholders
and the decline in share price over the
three-year period, the Committee has
decided not to apply positive discretion
to 2018-22 LTIP awards, and these will
lapse in full.

Remuneration decisions for 2022/23

Salary and fecs

When determining salary increases

for our most senior executives the
Cornmittee was mindful of the

external environment and our wider
waorkfarce, Inflation is unusually high
and the incraase in the cost of living

is impacting all of our employees. We
have been pleased that our businesses
have focussed on ensuring that our
lowest paid colleagues receive higher
pay increases than our most senior
colieagues. Our lowest paid employees
in the UK will be receiving an increase
in ling with the increase in the National
Living Wage, currently expected to be
around 8%, with our wider average
budgeted UK increases in a range of
4% - 8% across the businesses for those
dalivering an acceptable performance in
role. Examples of other actions taken to
support our wider employee population,
including addiviung! utie-uil payrieits n
some of our businesses, are set out on
page 148. For the executive directors,
we have decided to apply an increase
of 3.5% of salary, which is significantly
below the average increases being made
for our wider UK waorkforce.
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The fees of the Chainnan and NEDs will
also be increased by 3.5%. See page 148
for detalls.

Board changes - appointment of

toin longe

Luring the year 1t was announced that
John Bason will retire as Finance Lirector
at the end of April 2023, In line with the
2019 and proposed 2022 Remuneration
Policies, John will be treated as a 'good
teaver' for the purposes of cutstanding
share awards and will be subject to post-
employment shareholding requirements.
Full details of the treatment of his
remuneration an retirement is provided
on pane 147,

We are delighted that Eoin Tonge will

be joining us as Finance Director. The
remunaration arrangernents that will
apply to him on joining are setout in
detail on page 146. His salary has been
set below that for John Basen and, as
discussed above, his STIP opportunity

of 200% of salary and RSP opportunity
of 125% of salary thased on a notional
LTIP award of 260% of salary} are in line
with our existing recruitment pclicies. Te
support his recruitmant we also intend to
grant awards to compensate for incentive
awards from M&S that he will forgo. in
determining these we foilowed a set of
guideline principles, ensuring awards
were of the sams valug, had the same
time horizans and, where applicable, had
similar perfermance conditions, as those
awards forgone,

As a Committee this year we have

been keen to ensure that simplicity

and alignment with performance and
value creation remain at the heart of our
approach. | hope that you will feel able to
support our proposals.

Ruth Cairnie
Remuneration Committee Chair




Remuneration Policy review
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT onrm

How our performance framework supports our strategy
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F{emuneratlon outcomes in 2021/22
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT oo

Implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2022/23

Base sofary

Benefits and
pension

STIP

Restricted Share
Plan (RSP)

Shareholding
requirement
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Short-term
incentive
plan {ETIF)

Restricted
Share Plan
(RSP}

134 Associated British Foods ple = 14

Purpose and link to business strategy Maximum opportunity
eI vises and rﬂf"v,nwm execunen of the strategy onan STIP cash of 120~ of hase s

=i Ul eneellive Alet s STIF shares of sU s of Dase ¢

g d(«trral mn shares nl 2

annee bazs and alyos
shareholders throogh th

Aesceptioral circumsisnoes,
e appomntment of a new executive
corouter, the ovaral raxm d
seancressad to 2507 of base ‘d.ow
s from 300090 Lnder the 2019

Qperation

Group finarciel pertornancs targets can ly to i to mO‘"“
the ST Pand are a d agairst financia’ measures used acToss
the Group o drnive oerformans

fredan

Fo'icyl 1o correct any shortfall &1

ESGards .‘ategwc perfoimerce measuies can an Jy o uw mreret. Any .nereasc vwould o 1:;@.9[
o R L ‘ adustrrenis n other elemenis of ¢

R packae 10 ensars that netcr:—.lv.-‘as

Not excessive

At A, 100 of the al'ecated
s vest, at taraei H0tL vast,
rreseeld 10 vest, ard beiow

: mresloln svvards lapss,

al the ve rase date

"to me ~oles thal fotow s tattle

Purpose and link to business Strategy Maximum opportunity

To mceniivise t t ot the Compary’s long-temn Upio 1257% of basa se'ary at zilocaton,
sirateny 8 - reation of orootenT aboder valua ) 3

sirateqy énd the C%mk n Gt oorg-termn snareho jvr valiie onsisrart with aur 2019 Poloy,

Operanon J(C(:P \mm croomtstanges, suah as

anry iequwf &Nt 10

whder the previous
orifall against

ri\/ 1o aH

il t

od around key Group f
y of the Lnderpin cnitens are not
|dﬂ>r wheth en it was appren
hares natvest {roiedn g o
LiT

Parforrrar
i ]‘,’fl‘f SU"*
ret,
10 sCcan

Coninittes ray use "'Hc»—-lr
tha Corvmittes deans this i

D ru
u'q‘

]

nearpin cntena for futr

( =

s e appropnate n oti'.er 2erranis of th pa: L age to
ensle att 1017 WEaS NO™ BxCessIve,

In ard ton to che srderpin critena, Comnittes wil
nave aoegral decretion o adjust vesting 'evessf 't bei aves
“his weli better refiect the urderiying aerfermance of the

amdlm or the Comipany uver the vestirg pericc ("r wi‘!ere
f).p cutcon 15 ot anpropnate in the contaxt of uninreses
[Sly ecled oroumstances

=

After vestirg, shares are normally subject to a farher twoyear

hoidirg perod on & net of tax oasis,

Discretion, clawback and malus
Plesse refer to the notes that follzw this laky

O

Dividend equivalents
A cash or shares ("-H-dend equwa'@rit avvard vl be made, pro i
o the numiner of shares vesing, at the releass datc.




Shareholding
requirement

Nan-executive
directors’ tees

Operation and link to husiness strategy Maximum Reguirement

Erecutives aie recu ed 1o butd abodirg of be y owred During employment
zsharas nothe Comgény. 7EO0%, of salary to be feld in the
Lirvesiea corditions! averds uodsr ourincontve plans do not ‘o of shiaies,
count toweards 1his it
Post-employment
Shares that Fave vosied end are subject to 8 noiding pericd Fvec  tive drectors are notreg'ly

macu red to retar, for two years
UCal eaving ~BF, a "o d-ng of
shares (—‘-(“L.m g ne lower of “he
SHATC UG TRGLITETNENT OF ther
actual sharehoding on

50t of et shares vested under STIR arrd LTIP ivast be
hedd wuatil the sharehcldrre reguiement 15 met.

Purpose and link to business strategy
T attract and retzn a ?fgh czlibra Chmnman and non-gxed . ivs
dreciors oy oficrng wraetitve Tee levels

Operation

The Charonan and e\'ee"t‘twe OUERCTONS TGVew Nol-Exec T
l2 n comparable conrpe
s, resscnsisilily a1 g

Lot oF Tees b

E S LT E SO
@ sikils "equired 1o ma- e g valuable conir bunor to zn
t.fr'v—c e bnam Fees are pad incash Hon—execut-ve dueciorns
lece, el oenetits
We pay additionzl fees to rpflkr‘ extra dut es &nd Ume

2 Cha fthe Movinator Committeg 2

comumitingris. As the
curenty tre Cor r
at plesant.

man, no fees pad forthisroe

Chairman
The Committee reviews tl e Charmen’s CHo othar bereatts

are paid 1o e Chanman

Shareholdmg
e encoura sl ha M uDa
3 1han noa diverse

that s s not poss-\b‘ >

SEXeCuUTve Chiestl
mesrnghul sharerolding . ASFE, reccgms
Board, indnadus lEans ray be sLeh
ur gy lake soime tire

Expenses

We reimburse reasonaile aspenses incurred 10 travell ng on
behslf of the bus ~ess and, whizre apphcahle, pay any 12x due on
sLCh expenses o0 a grossed-un bas 5. As HMRC recards trave! 1o
lha Fead offce as a benefitin kind, we pay any tax due oo such

*XPENSES 0N 3 Jrossen-un basis

@
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Notes to the Remuneration policy table

Legacy awards
Tz Comimn
rsSCrRions avalla

JayITenls
voithstard ng jlm e

v#5 Wi L Lo ks gy 1eLNEGTON |

N paynantst no

UL Y CORBeC TG v ih sl

above wiere

1ot ternrs of the paynenl wereg & ore the 2022 Sono the termis of the paymer: were
cors.gient vl the stareholde-apnio Jefl directoes’ temureraunr pohcy in force atire t. ey wele agieed This mieans inat

for anvested T2 and STIP share avands orly, the orovisions of the 2019 Po'cv vl cerurue 1o apay wavl such trmee as el fona-

RN IrCETTIVE awalds grant L—‘J urcler that policy have vesied Cr lapsac.

the terms of the payrent weg agresd at & tme wher the rélevant rovicuzl was not s direcle

oo ~on of the Comimaites, ihe payrient weas rotin conswiaraton for tha od v :

X
>
:

(]

awarts of vanable rernuneranon ard, 10 relaton 1o an sward ever

For these purposas payntants’ nc'Laes the Cormiies
sirares, the terms of the veynent = 'a”re i atthe e the award is grantsd.

Minor policy amendments
T

e Conmttes reseves the night o crdntets o the 2022 Po forreg Ll oo
adimmisiraive purposes o o take acrourt e 10 legislation, winout seekng sha
of @y LTI12 or RSP vesting o S'T' P eing padd, deterr oz that Matz a

avy of the fullowe g appel

cant fosses (0 s Group company,

resilted Tnoao
nropety,

iy by Parucipant,
o part of the Particpant;

Soard has iougnt oris libey to onrg aoy Sioup company iAo
QUD COMpaMNY;

crentizly fa rreason for dizvissai ardion s such ihat the

WHS LS00
10 st cpprwl-a e stai
e Company as 1o \“%ble evidence of fraud or m
« che Company Fas become aware of 2oy matenal wrengdo.ng ¢
= the Part ¢ pant Fas acted in any maarerwhich in the opimon
matenal distepute or s nhatenaldy anverse to the 1cresis of a
v thore s a breach of the FPartic part's er np|um~em coniract et \s ERvle)
Partic'pani could be sunemarnly dismiszed by the smiploying Grouo ool mmy
» the Participant isn breach of a fiduciary duty owed to any Croup c¢
o z Partopant who has ceased to b2 an emiy’ O,/E-J wasin przach of ther emnloymesnt contract of T duciany duties ina marner inal
.u: prpv:mfd the grant or Sweardd Pad tte Comoany been swvars {or .L.‘\y wvaret of that nreach, and of
armpaEry vas net aware for ot fully aws oy alter Boeth,

S
;G

mg 13 pe an Errwioyee, ard
the BQCIIU decides to perm e Yesurs of Tha Avand,

nasoiion. malus and/or clawbaus COL'd apniy 0 resncnse e folow.rg widsr busaess ant o G
« a Group company or business it ihal ernploys or employed the Partcipant, or forwhien the 2aric responaible, has

fersa a matenal | anagement,

e Compas‘uy L fers @ matenial imssiaterient of Jinancial acocounts:
= cepuiguonal ham; or

« corporate faiure.

cipating nthe STIP RSP or legacy LTIP & ioipaT equrad 1o agree that e Contmttss May cause
fL\IPq\”.CJIdmwhr‘n[.vc dls o leose (nowhaole or in ay wnerate ¢ awsach under any 571P,
vhic they warloipate, may rcducn ary amaount : N, ray e & the particpant 1o
lanisal G'atrw tm wwfer shares or Bl bgck to the Company. rortho i siing = 2022, 2023 ard 2024, the
nealds end clavwback ru es rerain those thar epphed under the 2010 Dc\w

136 Associated British Foods ple =



Discretion
The Cornimities v, w'\, seret
fron e C'} ool the 2022 Poloy
2 8Tent Wl DLSINeSs D8 OHrana ano “1'( ned vath the rieresis o
5 0 L. sereticn By he Comeites i sglavon o the STIR f:rnu‘ R‘?P |
I 00, ard w ll e disclosan

< ~ETE Are To U ienrdend ron
L rooust set of pnme L:‘Ps o ensatg that rroertive cuirome
stebebholders, Ar
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sntar on renort. In particular

LETLTY T s

dracilig

ar RSe

e Cominetlee o the
nable, aporopraid ard not

wlior underprs
et o7 subalLIen
1 atenally less 2 Vehion it was ang Ca I\,f sel;

« Dheattosted in *J‘ EVETLO al\y varauen of the Co
3 2t the valie of the Cormpany”

s oave any
Comn

oz diecend or olher

Area F huv ard operatcn

,—\‘; e T c\. e DO TEoruT U eEneOanvEe e 5
QOverall e e'i rsT futore esecative drectors
relt Noortee poIscs tc DLT OV, e BT RRGENS
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20D I resed

The rationale “or the vackage offeicd vl e explarmed 1 e sohsecasnt annaal mrleneniat o0

report
Base salary Baze salsry vwol'd be set et gn approp ate evel to reoru tha bast candiiate, nesed entbsrsxals
BRNeHErCE {—‘“'I current remaneration, ta<ng ima account market cata and otner intarmal salanies,
Reiocation Harew ewscutve direcior nesds fo re ccate, the Campany ray pay:
= acal ancl ather reaszorabie exparn aung to moy g howse, inc uding lemporany
accomaodation it rocared,
. cg 2 owances of up o B of veinigh 1 “or Qua Tyiny

. SL‘hC’O\ toas xr dopendsant gw\u gn veher2 there are cultural or lzngrage considaranors
8

osts for the G

eagrutive, ngnar partner and o
iy or oihar \ \k., ;,here AN et ve s racrLited froms

CUTE,

2 for Doy o a:‘d"c-r sel! rg a fam

. - .
« reasgnabe’ aedior
hicnee firdin tETLINS a8 ¢
s tax 'cQLMH._,.:a .m costs for an agreed penoa, ard
» any tavdue, crossad op, on any ie'ocaten-elated paymiants Lsisd above
Buy-out awards Iradd o to normal incent ve awards, buy-n.t awsids be mads
e individuzl feav g e cdrrent et LJ\’\'» it required, ire Comrills
t"'Y“"O {-ﬂd vc-m— of au \'rrr s {@ e in any 'rp‘-m—n ent avvare, laking
jala : s may be mado

riy DLy-nLl e Cornitler would 4150 have regard to the
weraton package. The Cominitlee wotld aim o v mise
Ar‘.v awards
soec.fy that
rents

tg value af

s of the new rerru:
ny. heveaver, Doy-cut awards are mot “L‘b‘UCI calo wm\ A ERHTILTY
se broacly ro more vaisable har“ those berg replaced Wherey ;
at ‘ec:st 507 of avy vested suy-oul gwards sthou'd be retaned unul the sha-eh L..d:.‘g “equirs

Cther elements

Non-executives

diibe 2077 2oloy. We wou'd not
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How pay and conditions of employees were considered when setting the 2022 Directors’
Remuneration Policy

Iroup s geograph o ly a4
cersii'e conpanssas vl aden

ther Grevnp wehien saTing =0 i

o very o feront o

FatkeTs Af A resdt s sl cut to mave
. Tintas s mndtul 0F cur reward prac TI(-
»—r\m( T TEmMUrSrau \ iurthe e tve directons, We engnaoed

aof our erploy g ouT eveLtve Temure:

The srractare and precmples of short e ccenuves fur O are corsietent it e appicach taker for
he Che® Esscutive ard For em-\, Direcior. The ("crwwt 008 _m“.f-'ie( W lh 2 o the iermuneraton strooturae far weeo ters of

awvors with the Compary 1w ensure consistecy of
SVWaTUS RLIDRS T|‘\e brCLID = has ove! qwr]l 1 o7 ali casih-bhaseid

nont belcw the ewscutive direciors and use
Fe Comriee approves 3l share-ba

SN AT

apnroach. I\rrw Lo,
LT F awa ds.

£ ENSCUTLaE, a8 e 1 lsad such alarge, o
moeniivise the 2erire the lorgiem Pea 0 and grovvih
10ag the arganisat.or,

s desigr ed 9 ATt act and ratan the hi
. CGI‘y [s] _:' ks mmesses, We am o
tg, theleky GyMient OnportLo

Statement of consideration of shareholders’ views
Tre Conmittea Char const
proposed 2022 © ,,,/_ .,\.e Corrmies
nthe g DRIGaEcn aken A overvigys of the |
pags 127,

dted weth the Covnary's argest shiarehoiders. © X boge corsulten veere o tive of e
siened Lnr.—‘{uwly to the fesnn sk nto gccourt thar fecehack

ok recalyed end nde Comm ttee Chz Us leter o

Executive directors serving as non-executive directors

Toencourage self-deve'opment and exiernal nsght, 1he Commirtee nas detentered thet, vatn the
ard thie Chet Executive, execillhve directo’ s may serve as non-exzculive drectors of other comparasin en
s caraed,

of bath the Cha
rdivicual e

ez g any

Service contracts and policy on payment for loss of office

FProvis on Jo\ vy :mt: :

Notice period 12 montig’ fy or the sirector o e Compary Con ‘e T nspection at g
Compary’ Ceorrracts anc service agiesiments ars net &80 alaniss o fees ave
changed.

Executive Resignation

directors - Mo oaymens on departute, evenif, oy mutue sgrecnent, the rot 21od s Cut SOl

contractual ] ]

termination Departure not in the case of resignation

payments 5%‘7»"" e contracts zl ovy for the Company 1o ierminate ernp'oymiant by oay ng the director in ey of

soma or a3l of ticir nolice per |oq The Company miéy aetermine that such a pay rent is made 1 monthly
ff““1?' eSO & ) sayerd m el of rouce neay compnss the s that e dirsctor
woould otherw se have e &-'ved durirg the relevant pericd. The Compary 12 conrmitied 1o the praac
of Mitigat an and wol'd raduce menthly msta’ mients 1o ek accourt ot amounts recaved from
slonzive ampoyment

By cxception, the Company may peirmatl an exacuive dracior 10 work for us s a contiactor or enro.oyee
elier the enc of the r nouce pericd {0 & e ted penod to ensurs an =Hective hand-cver andfor to sliow
e for 8 seccessor 1o e appointed.

Settlement agreement
7

mhittee may agres ~easonabre payments in se '11\emcn cofiggal clans This ray include an
sation 1 respect of ther statutcry niohts under emp'oyrrent drotector leg s'aien
rezsonabls

|' ment to Comre”
2 UK orin other iumed ctions. The Cornmittes may also incluge im soch payn
'e-mbmseﬂ‘:erzt of professoral fees in conraction vtk such agraerr 2rts.

The Comnnmtt ay rake cayments In respect of sai
maieral berefits hed worh departure tneluding fer a de |@d

£10,000 in agoregate ‘or ihese lesgung the Dusinass urder an agreems
res'grann

Relocation Good leaver*
support ar execulive was e

Ay fe

teo to he Ui et the slerr of her en o'oy mant, s

Leaver due to resignation/misconduct/poor performance

Y10 s made

Al
PR P
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RSP, STIP
shares and legacy LTIP
awards

Non-executive
directors - contractual
termination payments

nol paid nied of notice.

0 u_y &bl Crerat on

Gand Ieaver

The Committaes

vear 1 which 1h i r‘
fofowing the year erd. in LI & case of Cu_r.h, payEent nay he ag
ihe approach ‘or cter STIF narvcirants.

3 payiienl prooata for tme and perlcnnance lor the inanc s
dacs Ary agreed pavmp"l will be made \“ the Ded

ated, This s ¢

“ern

v

Resignation
1 ar executive director ceases o ha employed
pubtished, ro STIP s va'd.

ore, or s under notice vehen, Wl year resulis are

Leaver due to misconduct/poor performance
MG paymeart s mads,

Good leaver*

STIP shares awards

Wliers e performancs eondien on STP shares &
su:_‘:;e‘c.t “oa service conmten, Tl vas
Cormmm tiee vail decide the ewie:
performance cond TIion s satsied and, wriess e Cor £
o retlect the penod fiom the 't of the portornance cered anni e dete of
avards will veat gn tne noivral veginyg date or at such r**\‘-';" Gzta zs ihe Comm:
U the caae of death, . =g meay e accelerated. Awards ortigrs of &

as alicady bao aclugved ot
sor other aloeat
reoaid 1o the exdant o vihieh 2ny
= detenmines otbersse, pro-rating
en Su(h

=
D
w
W
ol
I

110 which they

RSP awards
de v oz by vest at the ueual vest
n, and, unless e Committee de te
art oF the vestng period unti!

i1 oT any
diom

RE

Legacy LTIP awards
The Copnties vl daside the exter
nzece condiion .8 sanshed and
ectthe pericd fron the sta of the e
gl vest an :i‘e SOCTE v

rase of sl vesting e

ErUS vest, Naving

nEnce perie
tsuch othar o
tard. Awards of

sy Titles determrines.,
vards that do ot vest

Leaver due to resignation/misconduct/poor perfoermance
All congiricng! awards 'apse.

Change of control of the Company

Mne evert o 2 change of cortial, gl unvesiend a zncl LTiP veoulld vest,

&0 1o the Comntities considsning the extert d‘: any periomrance condions or anderping
eC 10 e relsvart awee : =ved and, unlgss the Comimitiee determunes
athenwise, IFe proportar o ance pernd worked by the directar prior to the change of
corual For ST P stares, allwill ves: on Hc gyt of g change of cortol,

“f[J

Appemtment s for wree yvears unless termunated by either party un six morths’ rotice
Continuation of appointment dgepends on perfarmance and re-election. MNon-eveculve deectorns
woicaly serve two o three three-year ferms.

At this year's annual general meeting, a:l directors are gtand.r
the UK Comorate Goverrarnce Code, Where a1 novicual do
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Composition of prospective remuneration 2022/23
George Weston John Bason
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Annual Remuneration Report

Single total figure of remuneration for executive directors {audited)

Varaiur

J
&

Ja
{ 21307 1,485 G
Varalie vay ST e de?elrsr_z Shalesy 1123 745 730
LTR G9i 0 456
Trtal vanable romineeration 1611 745 1,226
S nale totai Tgure, 3,323 1,697 2,182

Pensions
I 2021722 George Weston had an

& servic

froremise of 1495th of fral pens

Cnas e Day
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ree yerrs' fluciuating earminos),

out of the Associated Britich F oods Pension Schesme on b Al 2608 cmd 128 @ ie"rred ienctit ithat scheime; the
h@ DrCMISe IS prov ded wrder an EFRBS. His pens'nn benetits are payai'e from age €5, Mo alternative defred benefit

s ate ava lehie 1o any i ir berefits eany. Fis ecor Les nensio a1 17 Septermoer 2022
8 per annur

ermbies who chnoses to tare the

Aswe nave disciosed 0 tno past; employess who ware in oar DB persion scheme vwren it closed o naevy members contmue 1o
arcrLe herefits dl’wj"l 1lis schenme. George VWesten's FIRBS parncipation is corsistent wilh 1118 &pproach. f—‘.s artof 1
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rd of December 2022 or the cate whon the EFRBS s fully accruea, vehichaver s earhier Theref e, Fe el ro

and Wil POt recei e a cask a'lovance i lew of panzion cort bUJ-C’\b

5 yeer's
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He f\rteﬂ m.‘- ; -

& ve3s nroviden

N orece ;;t o

o
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DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION REPORT

2021/22 STIP

Achievement against financial targets
hie lanle e wvy e = the firzrcst nefor:

e 5T

and e ca'cLlated owcorne Tor tive cash elemert

T o RN
Adusted cpsraung orsl fm 1,256 1 IIERES 1.636.1 ld"‘ -l)
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Achievement against objectives
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and operat anal tnal of
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* Succe
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- imoemerntation of

* Vivergo star-up delivered.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPQRT -

LTiP 2019-22
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LTIP 2020-23 and 2021-24 performance ranges
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BIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT uriteitied

Executive director departures and appointments

Appointment of Eoin Tonge as Finance Director
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT cuiinias

Payments to past directors and payments for loss of office (audited information}
Mo paymeris sweie Mare 0 tha ye

Cxecutive diteclors’ shareholding requirements (audited information)
sts belove 3% 31 17 Seotenber 2022 ramenad 1me same at B Noventher 20022
require et

There

=i Co
B e B g b o et Jeceboal iy
George Waston' i T T
Wittirgton mvestmenta Lo ded,
oroirery srares of r’]p nfa 5,37 Hia fhc IE] 6,323 6,328
Assomaten 2ritich Focds pla,
ovgimary shizes Of 57 o 2504, of saiany 3,795 550 448340 306,213 FR.503 1,177,101 120,560

Jdohn Bascn

d Batish Foods i,

Mon-executive directors’ remuneration and share interests

dive drecturs fees v rovevven during 2027 and 1t was delermrad that fees shou'd ke e eascu by 205 veihveTect
4

Non-exa:
from 1T December 2022,

Fees effective Focn

1 Dec 2022 10

Mo

L
Cl\«'weﬂ £A40,000  £225,000
Addinional fes for Senicr Indepandent Director resnensiid Les £21,000 £21,000
Adcn onel fee for Commnittee Cran (Audit/Rerruanaration oyl F23,500 £23,500
Adcitonal fae for resaonsibility for workicreo engegemnert £23,5C0 {23,530
Adz tonaifes “(‘. cha rng Privvark Faarce and R e Commmitice £18,060 £19,6C0
Drrecior £78,250  £/B.000

2022 2022 2022 2022

o £000 £000 £000  Cun E000
Iiichael MoLlintock o Co4z il W 4217 - - 477 417
Suth Carne 120 120 120 - - 120 120
Ricrard Rewd 142 S 112 - - 142 145
Eqvima Adarro 75 7 7B - - 7 75
VoHhar Haouser 76 /5 76 - - 7 75
Cranam Allar 76 75 76 - - 76 75
Heatner Raobatts i ) 76 41 76 ) - - 76 i

Pegt or D-chany joiraes Ve Gosnd or 1 W 2021,

Non-executive directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited information)
The foiow rg sheiencldings are ordinary snarss of Assocated Brivie ) Foous ple Uness stated otherwise The interesis “era.mead
the same at 8 WNovember 2022,

Mhchae! Mol ook ’ 24,000 21,500 7
Ruth Ca mie . 5,223 2,223 70
R hafu Fe'd 3,347 a3za7 310
K= Viated, ardbinany shares of 5ip 1,322 T352 e
Feads o' wdinary sharss of 57/ o 511234 04 260 5,910
7161 3918 1257
10,000 &.00C 174 o
- - O
T SR ¢ HERE i ER| - = i TR '
N o [ = I ; et
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Directors’ service contracts/letters of appom‘rment

ooyt B IS IR R P

Executive directors
g2 Weston V2 nenhs i2 nrantis Relirg contract
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT conirued

Directors’ pay in the context of the Group's wider pay practices
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CEO Pay Ratio
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Additional disclosures

Total shareholder return {TSR) performance and Chief Executive's pay
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Members of the Retnuncralion Curnmittee
in the financial year and as at the date of this report, members and Chair of the Cammittee have been as follows:

Role on Committee Indspendence Year of appointment Meetings atrended
Huth Lannie Chair somor Indopendent Laractior 2U44 oid
Wolfhart Hauser Member Independent Director 2015 8/8
Richard Reid Member Independent Director 2018 8/8
Michael Mclintock Member Chairman 2017 8/8
Graham Allan Mamber Indepcndent Dircctor 208 78
Heather Hahhatts Memher Indepandent Dirpetnr 2 HiH

George Weston (Chief Executive), Sue Whallay (Chief Psople and Performance Officer), and Julie Withnall {Group Director of
Reward) attend the meetings of the Committee. No individual is present when their own remuneration 15 considered.

Graham Allan was unable te attend one meeting during the year that was scheduled at short notice. The Commiitee Chair engaged
with him in advance of the maeting to ensure that his views were taken into account.

The Chairman was considered independent on appointment and, as such, is a member of the Committes.

Statement on shareholder voting

Resolution Date of AGM Vates tor Vctes against  Votes withheld
Directors’ Remuneration Policy 2018 December 2019 96.23% 3.77% 088,600
Directors’ Remuneration Report 2021 Decembear 2021 88.64% 11.36% 1,650,382

We were pleased last year that 88.64% of those voting Telt able to support our considered approach to applying discretion,

We have engaged with our largest investors to better understand why some investors were unable ta vote in favour of the
Remuneration Report in 2021. For some it was a matter of policy to vote against discretion, regardless of how the discretion

had been applied, and for athers there was a concern that, given the timing of COVID-19 and of our year end compared to other
businesses, approving discretion for us might encourage others to apply discretion, potentially in g less careful manner. One
shareholder expressed openness to considering discration, but had some issues about our assessed outcome, which we took into
account when censidering our approach to discretion this year.

Remuneration Committee advisers and fees

Following a competitive tender the Commitiee appointad Deloitte LLP {Deloitte) in March 2020 to provide it with independent
advice. Deloitte are members of the Remuneration Consultants Group and adhere 1o 1ts code in relation to executive remuneration
consulting. The Committee is satisfiad that the advice 1t received in the year was objective and independent. This advice included

independent meatings with the Committee Chair during the year.
During the year. the other services that Deloitte provided to the Company were corporate and employment tax advice, advice
related to transactions, and risk and controls-related advisory work. The fees paid to Deloitte for Committee assistance over the
past financial year totalled £126,400.

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP and Addleshaw Goddard LLP provide the Company with legal advice. Their advice is made available to
the Committee, where it relates to matters within its remit.

Internal Board evaluation 2022
Reiterating the view from the axternal Board evaluation in 2021, the finding from the internzal Board evaluation n 2022 was that the

Remuneration Committee was universally considered to aperate very well, with the Chair being regarded as deing a very good job.

Compliance

Where information in this repert has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP it has been clearly indicated. The report has
been prepared in ling with the requirements of The Large and Medium-sized Companies Regulations (as amended, the
recommendatigns of the LK Corporate Governance Code {July 2018} and the requirements of the UKLA Listing Rules.

8 November 2022
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DIRECTORS’ REPQRT

Directors’ Report

The directors of Associated
British Foods plc present
their report for the 52 weeks
ended 17 September 2022,
in accordance with section
415 of the Companies Act
2006. The Financial Conduct
Authority’s Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency
Rules and Listing Rules also
require the Company to
make certain disclosures,
some of which have been
included in other appropriate
sections of the Annual Report
and Accounts.
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DIRECTORS' RCPORT continned

Authnrity to purchasa owm charag
The Companies Act 2006 empowers the
Company to purchase 1ts own shares
subject to the nacessary shareholder
appraval. At the last AGM, authority
was given to the directors to allow the
Company to purchase its own shares.
This authority expires on the date of this
year's AGM. The directors propose 1o
rengw this authority ot the 2022 AGM for
the torthcoming year.

Amendment to Articles

Any amendmaents to the Articles may be
made in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 by way of
special resolution of the shareholders.

Significant agreements —

change of control

The Group has contractual arrangemeants
willi inany paities inchuding direcius,
employees, customers, suppliers

and hanking groups. The fallowing
arrangements are considered to be
significant in terms of their potential
impact on the business of the Group as
a whole and could alter nr terminate on a
change of control of the Company:

+ the Group has a number of borrowing
facilivies provided by various banking
groups. These facility agreements
generally include change of control
provisions which, in the event of a
change of control of the Company,
could result in their rengagotiation or
withdrawal, The most significant of
these is a £1.5bn syndicated loan
facility dated 9 June 2022, maturing
in June 2027, which was undrawn
at the year end. inthe eventof a
change in control of the Company, the
lenders may request cancellation of
the commitment and repayment of any
outstanding amounts;

on 18 February 2022, the Company
issued £400m 2.5 per cent Notes due
16 June 2034. n the event of a change
of contrel of the Company, in certain
circumstances set out in the Terms
and Conditions of the Notes as

set out in the Prospectus dated

14 Trbiruary 2002 tweliivhi s availabiy
on the Company's website at
www.abf.co.uk), noteholders shall have
the option to reguire the Company

to redeem or repay the notes at their
rrineipal amnnnl tngether wilh interest
acoruod to (out oxcluding) tho dato of
redemption or purchase;

£87m (approximate sterling equivalent)
of private placement notes in issue to
institutional investors. In the event of &
change of control of the Company, the
Coempany is obliged to make an offer of

-

immaodiate ropayrmont to tho romaining
note holders: and

+ Cross-currency swaps in place totalling
$100m to swap afl of the private
placement debt dencminated in US
dollars to suros.

There are no agreements between the
Company and its directors or employees
providing for compensaation for loss of
ottice or employment that occurs as a
tesull ol A fakenver bid

Political donations

During the year. the Group did not make
any politicat donations or incur any
political expenditure {within the ordinary
meaning of those words) in the UK.
However, under the wider definition of
those terms in Part 14 of the Companies
Act 2006, the Company and a subsidiary
of the Cormpany did incur politicat
expandilure to the approximatc value of
£12,250 during the year. The Group did
nnt make any cantribitinns 1o nnn-LK
political partics during the year.

Firancial risk management

Details of the Group's usce of fingncial
instruments, together with information
on our nsk objectives and policies,
including the policy for hedging gach
major type of forecasted transaction for
which hedge accounting is used, and our
exposute 1o price, credit, liquidity, cash
flow and interest rate risks, can be found
in note 26 starting on page 186.

Research and development
Innavative use of existing and emerging
tachnologies will continue ta be crucial
to the successtul development of new
products and processes for the Group.

The Company has a technical centre in
the UK at the Allied Technical Centre.
Facilities also exist at ACH Food
Companies in the USA, AB Mauri in
Australia and the Netherlands {including
the new Global Technology Centre
openad in the Netherlands in March
2021), AB Enzymes in Germany and

the new pilot piant in Rajamaéki, Finland
opened in early 2021 by cur joint venture,
foal. Theae centres support the technical
resources of the trading divisions in

the search for new technology and

in manitoring and maintzining high
standards of quaiity and food safaty.
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Branchos

The Company, through various
subsidiaries, has established branches in
a number of different countrias in which
the Group operates.

Dis¢losure of information to auditor
Each of the directors whao held office at
the date of approval of this Directors”
Report confirms that:

so far as each diractor is aware, there is-
no relevant audit information of which
the Company's auditor is unaware; and

+

each director has taken all the
reasonable s1eps that they ought

to have tzken as a director to make
themself aware of any relevant audit
infarmation and 1o establish that the
Company’s auditor is aware of that
information.

For these purposes, relevent audit
information means information needed
by the Company's auditor in connection
with the preparation of 1ts report on
pages 158 to 165.

Auditor

Resclutians for the reappointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as auditor of the
Comparty and to authorise the Audit
Committee 10 determing its remuneration
are to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

Annual general meeting

The AGM will be held on 9 December
2022 at 11.00 am. Details of the
resolutions to be proposed are set out

in a separate Notice of AGM which
accompanies this report for sharehalders
receiving hard copy documents and
which is available at www.abf.co.uk for
those who elected to receive documents
elecironicaily. All resolutions for which
notice has been given will be decided cn
a poll.

Thi Directors’ Report was approved by

tha Baprd ayd 4igned on its behalf by
Pau r
Com ebsktary

8 November 2022

Assocciated British Feods plc
Registered office:

Waosion Centre
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Statement of directors” responsibilities

Staternent of directors’ responsihilities
11 Fespect of the annual repott and

the financlal statements

The directors are responsible for
prepaning the annual renort and the
Group and parent company financial
slalernents it geeordance with applicable
law and requlations.

Company law requires the dneclors

to prepare Group and parent company
financial staterments for each financial
year, Lindor that law thoy are roquired to
prepare the Group financial statements in
avtutddice wilth Adupied IFRS und Have
elected to prepare the parent company
financial staterments in accordance with
UK Accounting Standards, including

FRS 101.

Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements
unless thay are satisfied that thay give a
true and fair view of the slate of affairs
of the Group and parent company and of
their profit or loss for that period,

In preparing each of the Group and
parent company financial statements, the
diractors zra reqguirad to;

selact suitable accounting policies and
than apply them consistently;

maksa judgements and estimates that
are reasonable end prudent:

for the Greup financial statemants,
state whether they have heen preparer
in accordance with Adopted IFRS:

for the parent company financial
statements, atato wheother applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
ity thie parent curnpshy Mhanisl
statemenis, and

prepare the financial statements on
thc going concern basis unless it is
Inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent company will
continue in business.

Thr dirnrtors arn responibln for kneping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
LATIPIANY 'S TrAtSAGHONS Al ischss
with reasonalile sceurdey 3y sny time the
financial position of the parent company
and enable them 1o ensure that its
tinancial statements comphy with tha
{ompanies Act 2006. Thay have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasenably open 1o tham to safequard
the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations,

the directors are also responsible for
preparing a strategic Keport, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance statement
that complhes with that law and those
regulations. The directors are responsible
for the maintenance and integrity of

the eorporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website.
Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in
athnr juriadictiona

Responsibility statement of
the directors in respect of
the annual report

We confirm that to the best of
our knowledge:

+ the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set
of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, hahilities,
finangial pasition and profit or loss of
the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a
whole and

the Strategic Reportincludes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and

the position of the Company and

the undertakings included in the
consoldation taken as whote, toqether
with a description ot the principal nsks
and uncertainties that they face.

On behalf of the Board

Michael Mclintock
Chairman

George Weston
Chief Executive

John Bason
Finrance Lhrector

8 November 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPQRT

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of Associated British Foods plc
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Respnnsibilities of directors

As explained mare fully in the Staterment
of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on
page 157, the directors are rasponsible
for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal contral as the directors
deterrnine is necessary 1o enable the
preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing
the Group and parent company’s zhility to
continue as & going congern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liguidate the Group or the
parent company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to

do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements

Our abjectives are 1o obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from
material rmisstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high lavel
of assuiance, but is not a guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs {UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaterneants can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud
{rregularities, inciuding fraud, are
instances of nen-compliance with laws
and regulations. We design procedures
in ling with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect irregularitias, including
fraud. The risk of not detecting a

material misstaterment due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting ong
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through coffusion, The extent to

which our procedures are ¢apable

of detecting irreguiarities, including

fraud is detailed below. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention
and detection of fraud rests with both
those charged with governance of the
Company and managemant

Our approach wags ae follows:

* We abtained an understanding of
the legal and regulatory frameworks
that are applicable to the Group and
determined that the most significant
frameworks which are dirsctly
relevant to specific assertions in the
financial statements are those that
selate to the reporting framework
{UK adopted International Accounting
Standards, United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, the
Companies Act 2006 and the UK
Corporate Governance Cade) and the
relevant tax laws and regulations in
the junsdictions in which the Group
operates, In addition, we concluded
that there are certain significant laws
and regulations which rmay have an
effect on the determination of the
arnounts and disclosures in the financial
statements being the Listing Rules of
the UK Listing Authority, and those
laws and regulations relating to health
and safety, employea rnatters, food
standards and food safety

Wa understood how Asscciated British
Foads ple is complying with those
frameworks by observing the cversight
of those charged with govermnance, the
culture of honesty and ethical behaviour
and whelher a strong emphasis s
placed on fraud prevention, which

may reduce opportunities for fraud

to take place, and fraud deterrence,
which could persuade individuals not to
commit fraud bacause of the likelihood
of detection and punishment.

We assessed the susceptibility of

the Group's financial statements to
material misstatement, including how
fraud might ccecur by meeting with
managament from various parts of

the business to understand where it
considerad there was susceptibility to
fraud. We also considered performance
targets and their influence on efforts
made by management 10 manage
eamings or influence the perceptions
of analysts. We considered the
programmes and controis that the
Group has established to address risks
identified, or that otherwisa prevent,
deter and detect fraud; and how
senior management monitors those
programmes and controls. Where the
risk was considered to be higher, we
performed sudit proceduras to addrass
each identified fraud risk, These
praocedures included testing mantual
journals and were designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial
staterents were free from material
fraud or error.

Associated British Foods ple Anrual Report 2022

* Based on this understanding we
designed our audit procedures to
identify non-compliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures
involved: journal entry testing, with
a focus on manual consclidation
Journals and journais indicating large
or unusual transactions based on
our understanding of the business; -~
enquiries of legal counsel, Group
management, internal audit, divisicnal
management and all full and specific
scope management; and focused
testing, as referrad to in the key audit
matiers sacticn above.

A further descriptian of our
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial staternents Is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's

website 2t https/iwww fro,org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters we are required to
address

Fellowing the recommendation from the
Audit Committee, we were appointed by
the shareholders on 4 December 2015 1o
audit the financial statements for the 52
weeks ending 17 September 2016 and
subsequent financial perinds.

The period of total uninterrupted
engagerment including previous renewals
and reappointments is seven years,
covering the B2 weeks ending 17
September 2018 until the 52 weeks
ending 17 September 2022. The audit
opinion is consistent with the additional
report to the Audit Commitiee,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the
Company's members, as a body, in
accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companrias Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitied by law, we do hot accept or
assurne responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Simo%ﬁywn LL'A

{Senior Statutary Auditor}
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young
LLP, Statutory Auditor

Birmingham
8 November 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated income statement

for the B2 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the 52 weekhs ended 17 September 2022

Profit far the periodﬂrrecogﬂiéed in the income statement
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FINANGIAL STATFMENTS

Consolidated balance sheet

at 17 September 2022

2022 2021
_— Mcig L Ly
Non-current assets
Intangitle assets 8 1,868 1,581
Property, plant and equipment 9 5,539 E.286
Right-of-use assets 10 2,456 2,643
Investments in jcint ventures i1 201 270
Investimonls in ossociotcs 11 85 80
Employes benefits assets 12 1,393 640
income tax 5 23 23
Deferred 1ax assets 13 158 218
Qther recoivabics 14 58 E5
Total non-current assats 11,941 10,790
Current assets
Asspts rlassified < hald for galp 14 4h 13
Inventigries 16 3,259 2,101
Biclogical assels 17 105 a8
Irade aud ull e revsivabiles 14 1,758 1,367
Derivative assets 26 475 124
Current asset investments 25 4 3z
Income tax 67 58
Cash and gash equivalents 18 2,121 2,275
Total current assets 7,834 6,105
Total assets 19,775 16,895
Current liabilities
| iahilities rlassitied as held tor gala 19 {14} -
Lease liabilities 10 {318) (289)
Loans and overdrafts 19 {157) {330)
Trads and other payables 20 {3,114} {2,3586)
Deivative ligbilives 26 {208) (34)
Incemic tan {160} {172}
Provisions 21 {87) {71)
Total current labilities {4.053) {3,282)
Non-current liabilities
Lease lisbilities 10 (2,9386) {2,592}
Loans 19 {4380} (76)
Provisicns 21 286} mn
Dieferred tax iabilities 13 {647} (363)
Employee benefits habilities 12 (79} {147
Total non-current liahilities {4, 168) {3,608)
Total liabilities (8,221} {6,891)
Net assets 11,554 10,004
Equity
Issucd capitsl 22 45 45
Other reserves 22 178 175
Translation reserve a2 402 {34}
Fledymey reswrve 22 164 43
Netained eanniings 10,649 9,692
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 11,418 3,021
Non-controling interests 106 8
11,554 10,004

Total equity

The financial stalerments on pages 166 to 232 were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 November 2022 and were signed on

its behalf by:

Michael Mclintock Jahn Bason

Chairman Finance Director
L

A
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Consolidated cash flow statement

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Significant accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Significant accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Accounting estimates and judgements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 Septemhber 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Operating segments
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Depreciation finciucig ot ngh -

MH flelR i3 uW
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
2. Operating costs
2022

Operating costs
Cast of saies nc'ud ng anertsaiorn of ria:

i

gibiles! 13,219
1,465
1,045
206

15,935

Operating costs are stated after charging/(crediting):

L rp oyae benefits Pvp

o 2,812 2,639

cruaate of ror-cperat
Arpariusanon of operate
il J\I(Iy Tair Vd
Pialins leas inazes on digg
Deurecstion of pregperty, pant ara .
gpreciat o of nght-af-uss gssets end nen-césh gzse adjustvents
Trzrsarion costs
tifect of hypenriatioray e
Othzr uper:‘:w"g INCOMme

Resoarch and develnomert [oRd el el

Auir

L

o

-

™
ooLa
[l

QHCHTIES 16 7

cerd for traci gy {23) &
= for trading 17 iZ2

o

Fa value ganrs on fir
alr valieiesses on fhancal ¢

he reorre & H‘\C LCe

*o ke anounts shaoer 3 E\O\/L

Exceptional items
2022

The 1coime s
progey piart as d £4
Prmary Ve Trat antarea the Germen market in 2009 ard '~c:h\e\.e-c 'w":.'y hgh g

SIOMeS M ANy Dty O g v retal g€ hng s
me dpg.u 9’1 \ N the ryears up to
an mads Lvary w.m!..tely 1i°a1 <;z-:!95 e

ve mnweI for ret ,\\ r8. A3 8 consogLencs, the %L\Jrv

socophionag: charce of £208m compnerg non cashowr tedoens of £72m e

=ent 10 year incluosd an
mrant and @ witedown of fla-lm of ngrr-of-use assals roiat ~ 1o the tapta
(;\Lr\cut esIncur e

o of stere

ed

C1a yaar,
CCarmany 1s a
f-:;.' G—“rma—w al the

TeOLTES LS 1O CLgnIse an mparment vwehich has hem m_ 11 dasevc nancial stad Ever s, WWe
preTinted (@ our loyasl oo ln Tiera in ths mport martotand we are now rey N eTRIgs! i

g-term nrotfitabn iy, These optons ncluds the f‘olﬁr“'ml o optinise the re .y store as 1as

the feotprint of the oveall stors port‘elic. Also £49m of the £63m excoptional charge i

ol
for this financa. yvear was “he de-recca~on of the seferrad ‘A\ aszels relating 1o Germany.

wra gna other sugar
in 2020, a4

a i riher
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2022 NI
T S B TR S LI . £m i
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of the audit
Grow acdit of 1he iy 1.6
Avc of the Conpary's & 7.8
Tetal audir remiunaration .92

=
o e

.CD
i

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of non-audit related
Services

Sudditrg'ated gestan0g Services G.4 a4
A reces 0.5 0.3
i srelatedisnureratop ) - 08 o7

3. Emplayees
2022 0E

Average number of employees
Usited Krgaonn 41,526
Lurcpe & Adrca 73,155
The Ancercas 6,102
As'a Panlic 11,490
132,273

4

o

4

e o B B A1
ool
Qo

[h]

2022 v
Moz fm -

Employee benefits expense

Viveges ard =alzres 2,350 2,209
Sota seeanly conli Dotions an e

it ors to dotined contrbunion schones 12 87 2

T
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n
el
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o
o
o
%)
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=
o
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4. Interest and other financial income and expense

2022 2027
Flose- - Em o in

Finahce income
Cash and casn equivzents angd cLie! 3852t INvesTonts 19 g
149 9
Finance expense
Eark inans and overdrafls (20} 116
Al OTher borowines (8} i1
Legse lizh lnies N} (81} 184
Otha- payables 2} %
= - {111} AR Rl
Other financial income/{expense)

|t

21 orcome onermnoves hanet T sohern 2s5ets P2 84 s3]
tchags onemp oves pencfit schams al'mes 12 {74} K3ty
17 {1} i1h

: It sch e R ] 1y
9 4 -
13 o1

{ rharge on nrecovedale st
manna mee
opnign ex

Fotier firgec
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

5. Income tax expense

2022
Current tax expense . T
UK - corporaton tax at 1955 {2021 - 190 44 pIs]
Overceas - coruural.on 1ax 244 208
UK = ioverl/urier proy decn pror Deniods {12) 9
Owvereeas — over provaded nopror peliocs 1 i)
237 254
Peferred tax expense
UK deterrad tas 18 13
Overeoas dederrod 1ax 72 137
Uk — over provided 1 prior P ncds (3) 13)
Overazas - ovel provioed i pror oo iods {8) B
79 127)
Total income tax expense in the income statement ) 356 257
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Frotit pbefore fasaton 1,076 7in
Less srare of prof Lalten tax from jmint ventures Ang asscoidics (109} 172
Profit before taxation excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates 967 646
Moeminal tax ciharge at UK corporation tax rate of 1892021 - 1290 184 123
ant lower 1ax rates o OVerseas earnings 4 33
rges in léx rates or the income siazment 2 17
srs Nel deduct ole for tax purposes 63 Gl
3 Coveleg by 1ax Carreccgnised capitallvssas 6 13)
Defer-ed tax rctrac c.r,d 120 9
Adwiguments i respect of pror per ods (23} 12
356 227
Income tax recognised directly in equity
Deferred tex associeled with defined barefiz eorames 198 T4
Deferrcd tax assoaiatsd with share-based paymsris 1
Jefe 'w-i 1ax assec ated with moy i Ny ROS TN 28 P4
Cetared tax assonaied with move 1S 1 -
,,,,, R e e e e -2 -
The UK corperation 1ax rate ¢ frem 1 Anns 2023 Th gisiat.on o efect thase cnan Vas
eracied beloe the ba \a ce sheet date and U F [o1%% C.m::‘d lax has Ceen caleu'sied acco dorgly
[~ April 2019 tre Eurcoean Comrnission pab! shao its decizor on the Group Financing Exen pronin the Uk's cortiolled foregn

ion foura thatl the UK lew oid not comply woith EU State Ao rules moceian o reumstances. The
1stional grogps that nad fnancing

cemnpary eg.sation. The Commis
i as an rargements that may e inpecied by this cecision as oo ght otfer Uk-based nu's

ngenents 1 ne vt the UK's legislat onin foree at the U me. The Uk Governmznt, tha Group and 2 number of cther Uk
CONICEr €8 apPed’ et against this dec 310 to the Seneral Couri af the Burepean Union 1GCEUY On 8 June 2022, the GCEJ fourd
in favour f‘f the Commission's enging! Je\, resc't of this, in AL e Group and vdrous

ust 2022, the UK Governrient
T Buropean Un o We e
ary provISIor IS el

culated

‘:EJF MicxTUdim

&7 835 appeaied CCEL o o e Court o7 Justice ©
i 10 be i'“r:m 2021 mv.) h(-\«"@ver we o rat consider thz
cranrent \th hee csu2. Foliowirg receipt of chergng rouces Irom B Feve
e \n“ef‘ S0 HMPL nie priory ment remats that v o provisian
‘e vl comtir ue 1o consider the impact of the C\rl“\fzmw decisian on tne Grcup and 1
VI3 on

5 1R
I:.Mer n;‘.

comenta

erred "axaton baa et a g anzhsed n noie 13,
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6. Dividends

2022 iz 2022
o . pence per s!]?rew N N _ _£m B
2020 ! - - - -
2027 rienrs - &0 _ 19
2021 1 34.30 - 271 -
13.80 - 109 -
4&10 670 380 ) 49

am dadend wss Joctared on 76 Lok 2022 and weas prd on 8 ULy 2022, The 2

t
be pedor 13 .Jd‘md"\-’ 2023 1o siharcholdes o the reaister on 16 December 202

iof 29.9p, taral va ue

Aim ncluding ire specis

Dvidends rala Ks) *hc verad we
dadend of “2En for £109m).

7. Earnings per share

=arciigs per sharg at

md awveenghted avers
ed gvarage ~un |LJ_ i

1) vearnad,

naserd o) e profit et outable o 2oty sh clders o
tanching during e year of 789 mil on (2027 - 720 mw\-cn
sharas Fe'd Ly th T cyee Share Owvenersp Flan Trost

The zaloula
£/00m
Tre caloula
N r.\-h.chl

~dispasal of nen-clement assets ang the sals
transact.on Costs, amao 1

d eamings per ord rary share, wh ch P\'c‘
SuTe Lf |5 BS54 A’[@"mdt oy af ary.
vonalh 1tems and any &«

ticn of nen-
‘te- tax \,red 5,18 Phrj“:ru 1o provide clanty on the underlying performance

Tranedacton oste of £67 and amertis: oheopgraticg intargibles of F47m0 2021 — £3rm and £50n7) showen 23 a0, ustng den's
belovsinclude £l and E3m respective v 12027 — £nil and £2rn respectivey! INCUTed Dy jeinl ventu =3

ooauted we ghiedave

b chivtne effen

Nt eccount ©

et There s ro dfferece b 1S
2022
- - — - PR - “ - “ - — . v - N - - - . - - P R [— - £m -

Adjusted profit for the period 1,034
Disposal of non-current assets 7 4
Sa'e and closute of busimecsas {23} 20
Acud ed mveniory Talr valus adjasinents {5} e}l
N AR R Al (6} i)
{206} i1h7]
ax afoct on chove ac ustments (63} 23
Arrortisanon of non-operating miangbles (47} (501
Taxr credin on non-cperating intangibies amrortisaticn ar-d good.aall a 5]
Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 700 178

2022

pence

Adjusted earnings per sha 131.%

Disposal of ~on-cuirent asgots 0.9
Sazand COsJIE O DUSINGSSES {2.9) 2.5
Acqared nventory far value sojastmrenis {0.6) 0.4
Trarsact on Losis {0.8) 10 44
Excontional rems {26.1) (19N
1 ‘ {8.0) 3.0
A ¢ ‘60] 6.3
Ts cr-—di o7 non eperating Intengibes @ ~ i goodveil 1.0 0.5
Earnings per ordinary share 88.6 535
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

8. Intangihle assets

Cost
A2 S mrher 20020 1,231 250 441 251 163 5 517 2888
Acquisiti - extariiay pJchased - - - - - - 20 26
Acquied throunh Bus) Lo hinetions - 16 - 3 - - 1 20
3 - - - - - 120 1200
rnflatioazary econamies 4 : - - - - - 4
;“!H"a.‘r(f o ewcharoe s (12 1 kT A _ 33 RR
1,236 214 18 71 108 5 D9l 2,605
- - - - - 138 138
=5 9 33 5 - - 173
- - - — $19) 193
class{’an as neld for sz’ - - - - - (A {16)
rnflaticrary econa ) &) - - - - g
Eftect of movements i forg exchangs &4 27 75 13 1 — 23 179

At 17 September2022 1414 285 488 - 290 110 5 697 3,288

Amortisation and impairment
AT 12 Septenbier 2020 15 204 3

Armor o for the year - 2 5] 74
ltapair : - - - - 2 2
Cffact of iroveents 0 foreign exchange 13} 1170 i (5] 6 - i1 i
4118 Septerber 2021 2 195 372 200 129 3 251 1,274
Amort'sauer tor the yea - 7 22 < - 24 at5]
Cther disposs - - - - {1} (it
Transler to as d as heid for sa'e - - - - - - tdy 28
Effect of mioverrenis in ‘oie'gn excharge 20 19 21 11 1 - 22 34

At 17 September 2022 122 221 415 226 116 5 322 1421
Net book value

A112 Septen.ber 2020 1,160 g 78 9 - - 260 1,629
At 18 Septleniber 2027 1,124 13 57 ] - - 314 1,031
At 17 September 2022 1,292 64 73 &4 - - 375 1,868

g

iur foibe anicurts dincosed ahove, there are E12m1 12021 — £000 intangible assets cass oo a3 assets helo for #ale (ses

rote 15)

e

sting temin the inconre statarnaentincludes

200w,

rating rrargo es of £47m 2021 - £50m) shovan as &
red oy joint vertugs in addiion to the amiounts show

Arrgrtigation of non-o
22027 —£2m)

Impairment
Asat 17 Septermmber 2022, the consodated ha'snce sheet includad goodwedl of £1.232 12021 - £1 124mi Goodwil e 2 located to
the Group's cash¢ HCGUsY, or groups of ZGUs, that are expectad 10 berefit from the synergies o the busness

combmgtion that gave nsc (o the goodvad, as Toile

7
eraiing LS

P T L T
Ougry 37 Imcar
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&3 used wwers Loty
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T
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

9. Property, plant and equipment

; temiber 202C

saternally porchssed

ot movements In Toreign ex s
AU 18 Septembar 2020

Acqu.sitors - exlerally purchs
Acqurad rrough bus e oM
winer d

1ete!

nf VIR

assgls undar construction
assets classiied as
E*fec* of movenients in foren exchan
At 17 September 2022

held

Depreciation and impairment

oterrher 2020
stion for the year

ert on sae and closure o

assels passifiedas fedfor sae

Hect of moverments i forewg_m sxehengs

1o Sentsinngr 2027
eciauen for the year

Impairmiart

Imparent on

Otber cspossls

Transfer finiffron assets classificd as held for sale

Elient of movements in foreigr excharage

At 17 September 2022

Net bhook value

At 12 Sepzember 2020

AU ig eraber 2021

sale and closure of husiness

At 17 September 2022

200E, T

1802020

o adaditng
s for
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2,/43 1,035
5 50
i {101
126

{25

1
[ 13
23 164
t5?) 53]
ax 223

721 2,682
b 180
! 12
12 {7)
x pe1sY
(30 et
1220 -20)

759 2,827
A7 174
11 19
1) -~
(17 B0
33 g0

290

w
[ p—

2022 1383
1,948 181
1,991 1,299

20240 - £30nd uf pro

r@elm:d and and f.

148
286
2

party, plant and et
dnas.

340
605

Lir et

feat} 17,245
10 539
- B3
- 13
17 e
92 5!
11 743
1 135
a7

G <83

in

[V

60

A 568!
41 5,256
45 5,599

2022
£m

364

classificd as assets



Impairment
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

10. Leases

Rastof ihe Croup's rght-cf-uze assets are associeled vath oo leased propery pordel’'c e Hetail segment

Right-of-use assets

ara 2 N TE b, o
- e . - L -
aier 2020 3,345 47 i 3,383
37 18 1 118
Lease centves 3 - =
Other mavernanis )] - G}
Eftect of roverments i fo 57) [ied 1153}
AU 1S Seplerminer 2021 ) 51 63 2 3.37¢
Addivons 161 10 171
Lease reentives 46! - - (R
Jgh busiress comib.anations a3 - - 8
irposals i1} i1) ih 3
Cither movements “2 Z2 14
Effect of mevements in fore'gn exchange 107 2 - 108
At 17 September 2022 3,502 76 1 3,579
Depreciation and impairment
At 12 Septenther 2020 3e 17 i 103
Deprec ation for the year 279 17 - 286
Er NPONEITET - 17) - m
et of movemeris in loreign e<cha 1201 v - t21)
A1 18 September 2021 SR ES 32 | G77
Depreciztion tor ke year 763 13 - 281
impairmeant 134 - - 124
Other disposals i3 h 1) (3i
Effect of movernets in foregn exchangs 33 1 - 34
At 17 September 2022 1,073 50 1,123
Net book value ) i o o
At 12 Septonber 2020 ’ 2,500 30 - 2,990
AT 1S Septenrper 2021 o o 2877 C3 1 2849
At 17 September 2022 ’ ) T 2429 26 1 2,456
Impairment
The methodology Lsed 1o assess naltoluse asazets ferimpa tment ‘s the semie 35 that descr bed for imnarment assessnrents
e ‘f}

Lease liabilities

Cost

moa mient of nght-ol-vze gseels

[l

=]
<

relat ng 1o Prmmars fncladed vethon

1] -
2582 34 -
161 2

&0 K -
1220 tiEy - Ny
= - - 5
14 ” - 16
cteot o ety o Tt o ewchange 27 1 jS15]

At17 5
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2022
£m

Correns 330
Mon-conrent 2,936
3,266

G LT 2021 - £15m payakhi
. hc 2yIMenis comnprse (5321 (2021 - £2

e. The intersat
30 o DO Tan Al N

A 2020 - F
rent zne disclossd et
VIZ0Z ] — £8dr ) interest.

Other information relatmg to Ieases

Tha Group had the | B lrares ard fowvine fea

B £m i

Laa ard buil ge 7 - }
Faant aro maca ne 2 1
Fistures and Tirinas 1 2
3 i

paviments that do rot ferm part af he ezee iab iy, Cash cufows of

lesses “
e Pabilty are erpectad 1o oe riads 1 the rent 12 months,

Tl 2021 = £ of varialhle
Tdonet fore pert of the leas

alraceiis of £Am 202 £E8m1weie o \40\. e "r\dtmq ol C"Fhl g leases The wtal of fulers nuninum rente;

nahtof-uze ass

11. Investments in joint ventures and associates

12
D vider s ecaved 1]
Effect of movemants im foregn exchange (4:
A118 Septomber 20721 i o o - _ L - 60

»’-\cm suors

“rofit for the parod
Cividends receved

Eiler, uf moventents in Toreig
At 17 September 2022

sk hangs

donncte 29,

= a5 of joint vetues and asscciaies are

rcluded in tee conschdated fancal statemenis are the fo ey Tems et represent the Croun’s share of the assets, habanes

srd proftof jont ventures ang assoaates,

LT SErT o Searmiies
2022 2022 20
fm £m T
Non-current assets 202

46 o8

Cluirent assels 641 427 207
fent fathles (475} 2051 (386) 12785

“on-rurrent baimiites (87} oy (3) el

Gogdw 20 19 1

Wet ascets ) 301 s 85 Go

Fever e ) 2,165 T hER 1,313 214

50 L5 18 13
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

12. Employee entitlements

The Croun cperates a nort

wrof del e benefit and del

ced cLning

S ARTr T N
WCLE S NOE exjeoserd 1o .
[ERI=IR] =R

nely 0° eciueria
ek gid mgret imesum
=es comiply At local

he da 1ed penaftoso I.en e ;\'pc:e U e Urc up oA
and T =l assuImpto o nfia
unasual, entty-spac fic or

N

14}

UK defined benefit scheme
rncpal UK defirad bered
fundled t S gy LOEITIR |H[ = FIL
B l_l|" tinfined bie

. s a
omployess,
Sf“‘: 2027

Liothe Grows znd

d Brinsh Foc

O

~2 Group'’s UHT 1Y

zrd

200, using e corrent LN n‘-;;li'rm‘

oF et

4 g1 5 Al
= e assers vas £3.317m,

=t termzl fuoding val
citef £302m Tire m
5 after aloang tor e

\IJJ Iy EStED
a3t seehs
InT anian, ntorost
M place,

S0%: of toal

dewe

> e, [His i iendea to hedge

Tt

the S¢f

'-*e(f rvestiicTis n ie equity of e Coninaty, although it s possibie
e nts 1 Acme &ty funds,

The Scheme s *u
that t-e Schemre

'jed final

ke

enees
el taclhemesz, whilh e

s Tor e ch the coage nas £42m

Srates a nLrber of
m'a\\l .]fdfln 1Z07% = U< £10mmn,

12 Grony's defined benedit schemes ai thae year enc were!

2022 2022
UK Cverseas (RN
%o %u

]
o
L
[N

4.6 0.9-135 1.8

2.6-34 0-55.0 2.6-3

3.7-43 0-40.0 374

( 1.9-3.2 0-40.0 203
¢ nrev ted 25-28 - 0-23

J R W e
=)
L
12
=

bonds cons se L
ol sgcon

Dhecount rates are datanmured by iefeenca to mark 't vialds at the ua saince sheet dat
win the esumsted tern of the obhoat ars. This has sdong i conparctGn w th e

mpt ars on coth the Retal Poce Index ang Cor sumver Poce i-des measures of miflatien

cend o reman stabie i he g tesm,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

12. Employee entitlements cornfing=d

“reportng n the Group's Mancial ciatements, o es aro asessssd by aciuar ca nging 176 pioneieo

g gccounting vaia s diferant Hom 1 raeult oblamed usicg the ‘unding hasis, manly dug "o aifeent ascumpuons visd 1o

I ¢
proect scheme hambtes.

The def ned menef.t scheme | TRA2027 - 26+0) In respect of act ve participanis, J07L 12021 - 2374 7

paricnants and 21 -3

Tihe weiihted aver age duation of 1re defined bone
sghernes 12021 - 17 yoars for both L and overseas F,Ch@,m__ .

Income statement
Tre chiarge to s ncome Slemeaent Tor entpioyee hergll sor &nes comrrises.

2022

VOB roa! {45} 146)

C

Past sorace cost - [y
Defired cortnbuton schermres {87} BN
Taotal aperating e {132} (13Nn
Df‘rr rted i ciber financial Toonweicxpenset
Fetinterest income an the net pens or azsel 10 -
\[WS[FQI charge on irracoveables surplus {1} {1}
Matunpact on profit before lax ) o {123} BT

Cash flow

Croun czsh Tes comEnses contibutons pad to funded sihenes of £3Gm 12021
— 30 taro ber £Tes of EJ: 12021 — £2m ). Controutions w funasd cefined henefit sehemes
&8 SLEIEC 1D nero :i:c icns 1o el ned cornbuton schemres arconted to E87m (28027 - £5 1)

Tetal coninbuii
cor R

funden sohemes and benefl wJuy menils o R reszect of unfu

ey E.{mw- 11 1A UK and £107 overseas, otal hrg £39m £

£idnm,

ty eapected o be apjpiro T
ttall ng £40m

Other comprehensive income

Bemegsuren enia of tha net pension asset recogmised 11 oib & comtmeehentIive s oome 312 85 0 Iows)
2022
£m
Fowrn on sehemne asseis exciudng s nounts ac NeT rerest i e meeime state i (582) [S155)
Al gamsmo&seﬂ arising from changes 11 1 S ATPpLieNS 1,440 {10711
Lgains/licsses) ansing lom cherges N demoarapt © assuniplons 1 143
Expenence lnsseslgains o scherne L abitegs (3B} 12
Charys in unrecognisad surplus {10} (124
Remaazu-ements of the net ¢ ‘on assst ) 821 h53
Reconciliation of change in assets and lahilities
2022 2022 L2210 2022 ey
assets liahilities b s net ael
£m £fm o ~£r~n4 . E’r': }
'"uf\,"éar - ) T 4728 ‘ T{4,209) 11208 519 {B3)
arce cost - - (45) [RE (45} 146G
Shatiens 8 7 (8) i7) - -
E-nnioyver contnbut'ons 36 39 - - 36 29
Zenefit paymeris {154) 1731 156 4 2 3
ory - - - 1)

84 59 (74)
(s82) Lo - - (582) Lé-

- - 1,440 10T 1.440 o

- 12! Y 11
- - {38} 12 {38}

31 i {(28) 24 3
4,151 a7 {2.795) LT 1,356
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Reconciliation of change in irrecoverable surplus

2022
&1 basinring of year a o {26) 1131
Charge recegnised in other conmarelegive incoine {10} 1124
Irterest charge on recovarail’e surpius {1 {1}

Eitect of movemienis in ‘ore gn eacnanys (5}
Atend of year ) ) B o . ) 7 (42) 126)

13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

AT 12 septeibher 2020

Arrount credited to he ingama statement

Arrount credited to eguity -

Acoured through busness c,ombm.;at:c:l".s - ) - - - - 5
“ifect of cranges ntax ates on 1

acoTme stateinent 25 5] 15} s - 15 id) 17
Eifect of cnanges i tax rates on equily - - - a - - - 24
Eifect of I‘\yp-‘;.mf\r innary ecoremies taken

o cperating nrofit pi - - - - - - 2
Effect of mmovemenis in “ore.gn =xcnange | 10 & i - 5 3
A718 & per 2021 137 G0 {1071 ;

i

- ("
—

o

= 0
L

&

s

3

STl Clatd L o e rastme statement 34 i5) 27 3
et ered *Fd Y3 egLIty - - - 154 28 2 - 184
2

GSINELY CLIEL G0N S - 22 ~ - -

Acgared thiou
riizct of chang
neore

CHect of Chaiues “1ds Tetgs G eluly - - - 44 - - - 44
Cffect of Aynerni alianary annnnimis
te Opgratn u prulil 3 3
Transter 1o assats/diabilties he'd for se 2 5 - - - - - - 5
Effcot of mioverments » foreian cxwebenge 6 10 {4) - - {8} - 4
At 17 September2022 187 117 {78) = 324 _ 40 (75 (28] 483

ntavorater onthe

[ antein|

aken

TEAZMOZ02T - £28m0,

I

Previcacna and orar temrporany differences includs proveions o T1835m 2027 - £19
ax credits of B8 (2021 - £015inm and otlier ten porery d.ferences of 227012021 — €Dk

RTIE DCloa

ain defeired tax asseis ard liabilit 23 have heen offsat in tha able shove, The [o%owing s the analysis of ire deferred 1ax

ces iafter (,MS for firanc 2irencrtng »

Osen!

[Feferrad tax -ab it

M IZ07 1T - £nl)

Inascition ta the annunits
~cle 1Di.

ceces of £3-
2027 ‘40?‘ - AUZT

Deferedtaxe
12021 — £170m!
B ‘ecog

AL IS t::ew,

ot on, the Crow
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
far the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

14. Trade and other receivables

2022 2UM
- . . - Em o Em
Non-current — other receivables

Loans and recaratles 29 32
Other nor-curiant avestnraents 29 73
55

58
Current - trade and other receivables
Trade recoivahies 1,311 1

—_—
] RO
o C —

43l

(S ) IEc)
i

& are £3m 12021 — il irage e

I addition o 1he aioLnts s.aclo
sale lsee noig 151

v

re dustiors corsider that ibe carmvong amcunl of receval’es approxirates far .

~ote 20

For desais of credit ris< enposw e ¢n trade and cther rece

Trade ard oiner receivab'zs include £20m 12021 - respect of Tina’
ano fecorvabies and LMo currert ciner £ T OROTCAT Ent ‘
“eosvabiesh Mimnoun: 1éase payn > Are sooyear, £16m helween one and Hive
shan five yoars 12021 — £4m wvion one vear, E170 hetween o0e ganad Sneg years and £1 10 'noriore than five yearsh

s reden

The firance 'eace recemalles reats o oy, Rant and enutprres s feagen 1o a lomt vertoro oF the Croup

15. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale
ey SAT DUSINGSA, SUECLT 0 comrpst T o and sdannistratnee
diwa Chenere yveest bus re s

The Croup conently Grpadcts *6 .50
requttements. in e pror yeer, neld for sal

10 a4 Crnese iont veture,

sk Cheng S
.

e1g Aand lign ias 1e'als

s eqpocted o be suld

2022
Em

Assets classified as held for sale
irta~gble as 12 B
Propeity, Blant and equipme s 18 10
Irveniones 7 3

T

Liabilities classified as held for sale
Trade ard other payacles {14

186 Associated British Foods pfc £



16. Inventories

ceria @ and Conedntables
T NTOGIess
Fimshed goads and geods Feld for rosg’s

Vo

zare C7M 2021 - £2me of mvertor s Ceasified as esxs=is he o for sale

1 additie mto b e nis diee osed above,
leen nete 151

17. Biological assets

S
: Tra
£ Lo
AT 128 2020 66 72
Srred to Inventory (G (105

Tr
Tlrchasoes
Changss i fair va e

At 18 Septs

o
(4]
N — o

~J
w

o o
o~ —

Tr’ans‘er.cd 10 TNEOICTY 1131 113) 1128)
rurchases - 5 5
W S - (1 (i
Changes n fair value 124 i0 A
7 i g

=flect of movemants in foregr evohenge
At 17 September 2022 S L L

Growing cane

ghle, vairo the t,r siforraunn avalable in the

e darvaue of Grow ro care s determuned usimg npuis that wre unobsey
cincumstsr ces for vaiuing the growsing car dtherefore Te nta the Zevel 3 gory of T80 va e measuremient. Tre “oloa ng
ere used in the Jarﬁr BN worose tonndce 117 Sentenraer 2022,

AKSUTIPHONS v
Expected area to harvest (hectares) 6,028 19,207 16,163 8419 9,612 75,802
Estimated yield (tonnes cane/hectare) 67.9 103.7 115.9 93.5 72.6 71.0
Average maturity of growing cane 47.6% 67.4% 65.7% 67.7% 46.2% 72.4%

South Africa Malawi Zambia Eswatini Fanzania Mozam!?;que

The foi'oving 3ssumsuans weare used 17 the

Fer i T [
Expacted & e3 ‘o harvc st vibotaras) 2,664 9,526 5515
E stimated yeln nonnes carefheciz e 102.0 739 =36
67770 4627 710

erage matdtity of grovng case

A 175 change 1n the Unobee ryal: o inputs could incrgase or cecrease the fair vatie of growing care o3 folovrs

2022 pisng|
+1% S % -1 1
e e 0 B Z B
’ 1.2 (1.2) i1 111
14 (1.4} i [y
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equ valents 1,447 b

1,016
Cash and casn egoavales o & 22 227h
Reconciliation to the cash flow statement
Sank overdraite 19 {126} 113G
Cach and cas» eguivalanis in the casn dlow statemons 1,995 2129

Casl ard cash equiva ants o the tame of the halance shae 2,121 2075
227

sy ek om0t ran:

oo The2 3pone

W ey markats for per oas of op te thres months wiuch ea

Tra carnying amount of cash ang cash scuvalants anp ox mates fai ve La
19. Loans and overdrafts

2022 2
Current loans and overdrafts

Securec
Urs

ooy 1 -
cued lcars and ovonrdraits 156 330
157 230

Non-current loans

Secwgd 'oans _ 1

Urzecured loars 480 75
480 76

28 837 408

2022 ez
e fm o

raft 13 126 6
+ GBF faed rate 390 g0

JSD f'aatirg rate 8 3
+« USD I'xed 1ate 87 217
EUR floating rate 2

.
&N

o {ther fived

Secored '0ans compnse amounts horrowsed o comrercial san<s 210 3

N ovendretls gereraly hear interes:

subsiciares. Ba a1 f'oating rates
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20. Trade and other payables

2022
£m

e m e e . T - ’ o 1362 7 _9uu
1,275 897
2,637 1,935

477 451
3,114 2,386

ACCruzis

Ceferred pootre arua ctiver noncfrgrerl navaby'es

I andmion o tme amour s disc naed abo

2 note 1k

deented woelect tar

. nis e enable par ;,sc't""
sup o A llhind party bank earaar than s

sn

inpsnea’
?IJED!ICI’" soe discrenon, 10 3
eiter fuangg rates ‘hcn ne 5\1[

ate. The Group roceves oy tenefit from

Faymaent terms for supphes gre wgentical, o
hese areraemerts
ty bank as ehn 1o
Sk floves are nelacad

Loonedersa
nn o rade
MO0 AT OLEENG Gy

Contractua- terms snd inaoice
amounts owved 7o the
wehm omerat g cagh 1l

fe

Atyear end, the vzlue of inve ces sald by supplers wider senp y chaim irancig arrar gements s A5 120271 - £27m).

21. Provisions

i i 32
R (& 172
Eifect o‘ movenents in fore gn excherce 1 1 2 1

At 17 September 2022 o 55 26 38 N3
] 22 87

15 726
55 20 3 113

Tnancial hshlites vt oy siere comansed delerred consideration ' both vears (cee note 26}
Restructuring
LCIUNTG PIOVISIoNS IrcLie Dusness restruciure costs, incuding redundancy, asscoated wehirtre Groun's announced

rese restruciuring provisions are largey expected 10 be utiised 10 the ~ext Thancial yet

reqigarisanct plans.

Deferred consideration
Deferren conaderation complses 237
cften imred 1o perfor

es acguired by the Group v.hich

5 \,f Ameunts due o thie previous cvoters of huse

At

Other
Oiker prov sion

A n1a and seatranty rlanms ans ng o e cale ard closure of pus e The sxten

b utibss:

and TIng ©7 gl on of hese Crow SICGNS 18 e L ndertan oiven the natuie of the c'anms « nihs s e of nErranies

Associated British Foods plc -~



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

far the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

22. Share capital and reserves

Share capital

A 13 Septambar 2’21 dand fully paid share capital compnsen 781,074,183 ordmary

shsieg 0f B CTotal romnal eweas £10m

QOther reserves

£173m of other & s rase o the carcellat an of share pramam aocount by 3. fZmsese nz010 28
traisfer to capita: redemptien rgserve folowarg redemption of teo nshcr £1 oe rema ning £3m comprises

gafarred vax. Alare

S COnMRroTenss g i

& £dm aareased gain on H\JHEI nONis
£d a3 nen-thstrbu

Translation reserve
1 |—Hr* VTSSO GOt erments ol foreign

e85,

g Gron’e et

yE

Hedging reserve
Tre hedging res
amounis recyeled frem the heade
rEcted 10 ooour,

nst of
o transaction 8 no ionger

cri that trey

LLGT Orveen

23. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

2022

In Jancary, the Gro ~ecialty rored ents ese i Tranes ¢ad aly produamg and farnsaug
colyolenols-h t ; mENTS indusiny. : el e xnand the Group’s portichs of
products and © N5 R SerVing e p?"rar‘nm_-ﬁt t Cdﬁ, nutehonal @td foord merkat sectnrs

Greun acgured Gr. guisit o contnt:

Wt expand 1s
uiluie pusiress in Finland an

: azsols and hainlhites.

the Greup aso eca

s business n Augt's

aloLis tC

el
fir
Net assets
Intangible sssets - 54 27 7 =2
Property, plant and cqupment and 1 abof-use 74 1 1 12 14
Wiork capital 17 3 11 11 26
Cash arg overcraiis 10 6] 1 3 10
Leans 173 ]t 13 $S1 (23]
l.= iahlities 1= - - 12 £33
Provisions 171 17 - - 17
Taxation i 141 i 12 12.3]
HNet «Jdenut ebye and habo ites i5i 32 29 14 75
Gooder 91 12 12 85
Totei consderauan a3 1 25 10
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2 ESEM o noe-one atng ntanah
fcr.n—u tes hal
f153m

IO K

PATANTY: TG 2iourts v
s toch:

m. Cash fiow on
derancn ess £1001 casn and creraraiis @

ribntion to g0 enislng !om veirg m China

OGS T0N

Squired DR He
ing £12m cagh corsideratc 4 £2im defored cansidaraton

Bosere recogrizes et thor g dafarrod

aria

AcT o veas 14, coman

s intangibze assets of £19m, w

corsiceranon for toes
acguired giclnden nos

The Croun ais pakary cgredients omt venture 0 Chisa with Womer Hate
coferred ¢ ITSTGT e Al s,

Disposals
2022

vy s e ot venture vt
L0 ron-cagn oA

‘) 15 nel gon
Crgratated 4

e UK ard £ of vearmanty prow:

e Crouy g so rele 238 4 E£2m of : ¢
C\‘:LJBLd ‘ngred ents tusinasa i L' Unitec Sta!es,

2021

The Croun sold a4 numiber of Chae
Ireeraliona Grc,u: cash cons'd
E11m Cresuling i ret proces
restraciunng costs .wd afBmoanon:

HInese eint Lenture wi
The jO:ﬁt VeRLLTE

214 nasery ingren grts Lsnes
ration was £38m vtk £bm of cash disposed o
5 nf £45m, MNet =0 \.'\-'ere £33m v h DOV Sione
recy g of

[he Groun agreed tre sale of a faciary in Ch
wittten down n 2019 when the prc“f d it veriurs vath
£70m was neuded in orofit o0 22'e ard cosure of buziness  This was reversea in 20

20N e

Cosule provsinns o £3 1 re alirg 10 disnosdls m
ciosure of [ 3t : 21 Grocey, brthin As
WLPCRT IO en 370 \.rn 18lezsed i e Lontial ard UK

S 0I5 ViETe i lonoer req: re andwere released w a2 and
‘i cf fl e wrevious y
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
far the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

241. Share-based payments
n 20 2EYDIeNLS SoheT s 0782021 - 017 Tha

ORErELCN GLling e p..:lzm,

statamnent o equity-settied =

saitien share-basoo pe

The anaual chaaa |
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25. Analysis of net debt

At

17 September
2022

Em

724 - (31}
- 1224 17 {480}
i€ a6 193 (3,252}
155 37 HEE 1007 {3,763}

Sror-temr o

Lona-term loans

Lease han 1nss

Total abiives ‘rcr HOAMCIg ao v
C ard in hand, casn e i
o 2155 - 7 1,995
Curigni 2522t mMuesimrerts 01 - - 2 4
. N 11232 1373 g8 i24) {1,764)
P20
L et
i
Seortter eans ’ T 65} ' 0O VeV
Long-term loans {3180 i3 - 202 22 1701
Lezse han iles 230 - oM 165 13.281)
s frem fingncimg actvites 218 10 G 193 2,800
Lanain hand, cagn equ va erts aid
: 1,909 340 - - 160;
Curnent asset iInvgcinters 3z Z - - 12}
12,08 13 oo 131

Tas ol

gm’\m-ut' ]
) i et
recGne hatior
Met cast excnding ease halil-tes s £ 4883m 12021 - £1,. 907000,

SOV 2RV U

PowT gnove comipnse e £157m

£328rm {2021 — £86m of pank overdraits plus the
12021 — £230m) of current eans and overdrafis an

3imi202° -

v oh the *zce of thga lx

& =

velyl corvinse the £3,25 21“ lLGZW £3,
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Current 3
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments

Fingnc.al msrements ingude £3m 12027 — Eruly of *rovde and atler tecamvalyes oo £1 112027 — Sl of Tade ard other
V- L - L o N s - N Y g i . . ‘: B . . . s . <’

reclass ficatl o 9 madio
a} Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilities

2022

£

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Casly o cash eglavalernis 2,121 2275
Currrgnr asect oy 4 an
Trads ar s Girer 1,567 1.4
Ot ar non-cuiient rece vabies 23 32

At fair value through other comprehensive income
Ments 29 23

At fair value through profit or loss
Dervaine gssets not designazes i a cesh low Padg ‘.‘q ‘clatioanshig.

« cutrency denvatves (excluding cress-curanoy sy 50 Q
o cornmiedny Jervatives 3

Designated cash flow hedging relationships

Dervative 28578 das grated and elfective gs rash fow hadung nstrumenrts

* CUTTERCY dsrl ATVES (exCILDING CIOSS SUrency SWaps 70 72
* CIOSE-CUNENCY SWals 29 1
« cormndity detivatives 323 19
Total financial assets 4,225 3,700

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and cther payakles (2,651} 1,925)

Secured loars (1) H;
U” roured 03ns end overdraits dar velug 2022 - £57 11 20271 - £117 (636} 00!
Lease Labites dan value 2027 - £3.17 10, 2021 - £3,292m} {3.252} 13,287

Defered consicderation (20) RN
At fair value through profit or loss

Derrvetive habihiies nat des.oozied i 3 cash flow "|~’3-'J(1mq relztonstyg
* CLrercy oer val ves lesclading oross curency swaps! {5} (1}

s commadity der vatives (3}
Designated net investment hedging relationships

Dernvatve iabiities designated as rel irvestent bedgrg instrurents

SE-CUTTENCY Sviape {7} 1zl
Designated cash flow hedging relationships

Dervatve hebites cesignated and atfectve as cash flow heogr

. oo

rurments.

» cunency denvatives iexc.uding ENCy SYans) (17} i)
« nterest denvatives 3 -
» cammncdty donvative {170) 16!
Total financial Ilabllmes (6,765) 5,670

t (2540)  (1,3c8
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PO e s g
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notional
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£m £m £m fm ~ o

Financial assets

Car Cy deiivalives

{eacluing CrOsS-CUITENCY 2,183 - 120 120 1,360 31 31

Crosa-cLImanoy SwWa) 94 - 29 29 223 - s 4.3

Corrvodity darvatves 434 3 323 326 s gl B 0
2,726 3 472 475 1776 1 120 124

Financial liabilities
Currency cenvatyes
lenct Lding CrosSs-cUrency

Cross-curercy 5.

921 - {22} (22} Her; - i)
68 - {7) {7} 196 - 1124 112
400 - {3) {3} - - . -
366 - {173) {173} 1€ ¥ il
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments oo

¢} Cash flow hedging reserve
1 tai'e aentifics the mcven
rpecied o oocur The

=ris 0 the cash flov Peaging reserve dunng *

Hads in ach the cash Towves are exoactod to mpac

Tie fpilowmen
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Currency
derivatives
[exeluding Cross-
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currency) swaps derivatives derivatives Total )
£ £m £m ) Em £m o S [ o
pErItg DalErce (14} {1 - {28) (43} A () - 2 ¥
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. everLe 5 - - (4) 1 a - - 14} 1
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+ othe financial excer
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Defercdiax 5 - {1 24 28 3 . - 1
g g oalarce (41) - 2 {115} {154} Ay 1 - 28 1231
Slowss are expectad
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E : (6} - - {10} {16} 1 - HeX 15
« betveeen ong and wo
15 1 - - - 1 i - - il 12
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- - - -~ - - til - - 1)
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d) Financial risk identification and management
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial |n_,trumcnt confinied

g of tha G Ou, s camnody fonvau contacs are ¢'a
v be hold, for the nurg of tne Group's ordinary wpe
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S
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e, et wely
(ii} Interest rate risk
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(iii) Foreign currency risk
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2022
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=

Change In falr Lhange s tarr

Carrying value of hedging value of hedged

amaount  Furthest instrument used to item used to

Contract assets/ maturity Hedge determine hedge determine hedge
nulivnal {tiabllitdes) date ratic inettectiveness effectiveness
£m £m £m % £m £m

Current

Dee g
* curEncy denvavves teveludme CUFTENCY

s 2,102 54 Sep23 100% 54

areted cash flovy henging relanon

BNy

{54)

e conmmicdity dervalives 739 152 Aug23 100% 152 (152}

o ETeST e BWED 400 (3) Aug 23 100% (3)

Non-cunrenl
Nas nirated cash o e

= CUnCrey dENVAUVER (e

‘ 32 (1) Sep24 100% (1}
¢ CrOSS-CUITENCY SWed a4 29 Mar24 100% 14
< 20 1 Llan?24  100% 1

Dosgrated net mvesty ool hedy iy elal orships:

s CUIC Oy denval ves (0ss-CuUn ency s ans - 88 (7) Mar24 100% ) E

200

Current
Desgnatad cash 1'ovy henging relatiorah s,

s curency denvatives fexe adrg Gress CuErenLy

ena) 1,267 16 Sep 22 10055 16

+ CIOSS-CUMTenNcy Svaps &0 28 MNardl  100% i

= corwnodity detivetives 350 33 Aug 22 100 34
TEStmert Fedg g Gl 3

: Cv Swans! 178 gt s 22 1037, 10

Non-current
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LU U ErTy
21 1 DecZ? 00 ]
78 16 Niar 21 SO0 163}
4 - lzn 23 “Q0 -
e g
5/ e WarZl 00 ] 5
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
far the B2 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial |nstrument5 aoirtirnef

Clypicaly hased ond o
struivent 13 anaysed 90 an cnge:ng basiz Seuces Pf noss

rarsdiluns

hedoging |
s acesuit of wir g orvaide or, iy cectan cases, ¢ifferent i rhed o th : the \u: [PRats WINS LAV & wer** As et 17
Sepienaer 2022, £2 133m of Torward foreign currency contracis 'je’w'\gl'waled as casn low “eﬁ'r'PC were nJtstanding (2027 -
£1, i, argely inrzlztion o purchases of USD (L1 453m) and saes of EUR (£21.2m; viith va qomELRbes un o Septerbes
20 ahted aversge bedge rates for thase gontracts are GBPUSD 1.21, EURUSD: 1.0= cmd DHI:UP 116 Waighted averaoe
e Y osecurmeney swaps are CEPUSDI 1 70 and GB2ELR: 1.26G. Commindity der vaives designated as cash Tiow
= 2o of undelly cg hedoed cams, w0 vary na mEanties ap e Jen
The analys s of the Group's fore ¢r cureroy exposure 101 nenoial assets and e’ 2o Ny corrercy ©F dapemirauonr ‘s as folloyws:
2022
Stetling US dollar turo Other Tutal
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash enuiva ant 1 78 10 38 127
Trede and oter e - 55 54 24 133
1 133 84 62 260

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payeb ea {29} (512) (38) {17) {596)

Unsecurcd loens and ove: drafts - {90) - - 190)
{29} (602) (38) {(17) (686)
Currency derivatives
Gross amountsa recenahbla 93 2,143 98 256 2,590
Grozs amnouris payable {2) {202) {428} {57} {689)
91 1,941 {330} 199 1,801
63 1,47_2 i {304} 244 ) 1,47{5
2070
JCRA! S ToT.
r i
Financial assets
Cashoand cash egi’valaris 1 z1 22 40 114
Trade aro oiher recevas!e - =] a5 g 102
1 120 5/ 5l 247
Financial liabilities
Treda and other payakles 19 1381} 126) 18} 1134}
Urswcared loars and overdralls - {2151 - 13) 12211
115 o)l 136 11 1665)
Currency derivatives
Gioas amounts recaivable 62 1,274 197 221 1,865
Gross 2 nounts payeble 12 (132 1431; (50] are)
50 1,241 12344 171 1,238
42 762 1202 2:9 =20
d during “he year
000
Usdeder oo T - 137
E N 14
Austalan dollar i ~ 182
ovena sensltivily anz ves trersactonal Currenc'as a

:::IaI ON 8XPDO

NG anaicd i the

“he Group's main -
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Sensitivity analysis

2022 2022
impact on impacton
profit for total
the period equity
L £m £m
Starhig _ 6 5

US dolizr 19 172 2 87
(19) (41) 1z 20
16 22 17 o o4

:f_'\ Jars

e Groep's prob b olore lexaf 1 2 avareen 13
sted o show g 1050 stengibering of sterhnig. A srlarbot o
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vity anowe s caleu
S CPe Rt oNs e
cn il Cefore

ar

2022
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) = busihasse s
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el a0 v T then custanrers, aad Tom certain

Lo
SR

i Achivitas

S LI TN .
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sk io he:

2022

£m

Casn 3n¢ 0ash cqunalens 2,121

Curtent gssel investnents 4

[vade =nd osther recovabyes 1,567
Otrer rorecanent reresvanlas 29 F
Imvastments 29 23
Dern i 53 a
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te sre o
Sare e

veslinT
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments «oiineed

Counterparty risk profile and management
The 1alhe beivw gralyeas [re Group’s current agsst mvesinments, cash aGuivalonts ang et va

3 0¥ Cred't exposure

2022

Derivatives

Currency Cross-

Current asset Cash derivative currency
investments equivalents assets swaps Commodities Total
" o § £m . fm  £m o Em fm ) - Em
- - 299 2 - 10 311
2y 4 955 103 22 - 1,084
BEE - 157 - - 157
B - 9 - - - 9
2 - 16 - - - 16
Notrated L - - = 35 326
Total S - T4 1,447 105 22 325 1,903

2021

Derivatives

Currency Cross-

Current asset Cash derivative currency
investments equivalents assets swaps Commuodities Total
£m £m £fim £m £m £m
2o 22 : - 2 B
3 1,118 kA 27 1 1,200
ZEB - 318 2 5 - 327
83 - 12 - - - 19
3 53 : - - ol
Mot ated - . - ) 27 37
Total . o R 32 A58 24 32 40 1644

sclusaie and have e sontod the or of year conparatives

Trade and ather receivables
Sgnr cant CorCentrations of creatnsk are very imited 85 4 resui‘ o the Group's

s astablshad crecit poloy at e credit status
i CThis includes exteral credt vhe sle gard T osome Cgs . C\E lrits are
: jd ‘or all significant ar igh-nsl custemars, whaeh w e nutstanding without

are ¢ yniorored by
e, Custlonners that fal o meet the Groun's bencamark

cosgres are monitered gt Group leval

» appropnate level of mang
2l C & reglaar
sact N d prepaynTent bas:

diticral aporoval from ¢

s AgQreysie ex
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sobd sLbect o retenten of title so thatl, in the event of non-payimant, Greus may

cically re qu\r—; colateral nrespect o ther teceven

d &

The Gieup prov-des lormmparran of fmencis! asses ncluding trade
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments corninecd

e

st o fmanacial ablities al the ha'ance sheet date and

sbig analyscs the comnegciig Lrceccuntes cashi'ovs ra

ST steS 172 10 CENYy.Ng amioLris:
2022
Due Due Due
between between between
Due within 6 months 1 and 2 2and 5 Due after Contracted Carrying
6 months and 1 year years years 5 years amount amount
Mooz £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trane and othaer navebles 20 {2,623) {28) - - - {2,651) {2,651}
Sccwed cans 18 - {1} - - {1} (1}
ad .nans and overdralts 19 {152} (17 (103} {31) {470} (774) {636}
s hatnhties 10 (197) (214) {409) {1,115) {2,400) {4,335} (3,252}
Drateried coneddarat on 21 (4) {12} (1) (3) - {20} {20}
Derivative financial liabilities

S TN TN

Do

Wy TI0S S
ts (15} (2} (1} - - (18} (22)
» Commadity tpaynTe s (170} {1} (2} - - (173) (173)
« Intecest rate denvatives inet payiments) (3) - - - - (3} {3)
Total financial liabilities (3,168} {275} (518} {1,149) (2,870} (7,975} {6,758)

2021

ERAE Carv ¢
RO EisleNIgH
o . o _ B {m fre
Non-derivative financial liabilities i '
Trade i coner payables 20 [NNERESY 2¢ - - {1,955}
19 - - i - o)
i i9 L2201 19 {135 i75) - 105}
10 11730 18 13871 11.048) 12,510 13,281)
Deterred corsideration Z1 161 - 151 - - 14
Derivative financial liabilities
» Curnienoy denvativas [exciug
[N Inel payIme 5) 120 - - - 7 1)
vodoy derivatives inat payinenis) 123 i) - - 16} (1G]
Total financial liabilities 17,431} i224; 402 1,123 12515 16,696} 15,608
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2022 Z01
Facitity Drawn Undrawn '
Em £m_ Em
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Fobic Bome 034 390 390 - - - -
U3 privzte nlacenent B7 87 - 207 297 -
Flavo 77 12 65 333 1 o
) g 7 2 & 1 2
2063 496 1567

Con ns 2 Bevni
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

28. Related partles
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29. Group entitias
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities continued
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities venintod
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities <o
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities coniiroed
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30. Alternative performance measures
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Note A

2022 .
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399

10.7%

Arjustert anecat ng aroli
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2022
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2021
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Gy
£
2022 B o
Aapustod op 399
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. Alternative perfaormance measures ooy
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Company balance sheet

at 17 September 2042

2022 2021
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1 - 15
Bigli-ul-use assels 2 o) 12
Investments in subsidianies 3 1,287 720
—_ 1,296 747
Current assets .
Debtors:
* due within one year 4 3.163 2,576
*« duz after one year 4 98 146
Employee benefits assets — due after cne year 5 1,366 633
Derivative assets 30 44
Cash and cash equivalents 1,408 I,b5b3
o 6,065 5,052
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafis — unsecured {2) {229
Lease liabilities ? {3) {3
Other creditors 7 {4,013) (3,322)
Defivative liabilities {3) -
- {4,021) {3.554)
Net current assets 2,044 1,498
Total assets less current liabilities 2,340 2,245
Creditors: amounts falling due after ocne year
Bank loans - unsecured {481} {74}
| ease liabilities 2 (7} 1)
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 7 {1986} (243)
Employee benefits liabilities 5 {22} {371
Deferrad 1ax fiabilities 6 {324} {137)
{1.030) {502)
Nel asyeis 2,910 1,743
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 8 45 45
Capital redemption reserve 8 2 2
Hedging reserve 8 - 4
Profit and loss reserve 3; 2,263 1,692
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,310 1,743

The Company’s profit for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022 was £426m {63 weeks ended 18 Septembar 2021 — loss of £44m).
The financial statements on pages 233 to 239 were approved by the Board of directors on 8 Novernber 2022 and were signed on

its behaif by:

(ORI

Michael McLintock Jobhh Basox

Chairman

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company statement of changes in equity
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

I
o P
ia

Total comprehensive income
La2s for the parod recegnizes »ohe recie s H -
hdelinsd benefir -
sassified ooohitar -

Transactions with owners

v dernds peid 1o egu Ty shareho dors -
Net movernent 1 o n hels -
al tiansections we th ove -
Balarce a3 21 18 Sepien-ber 2021 A5

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the percd recoa™scd i lhe income siatemsat -
HRemeasdrernenr =i -
Defered tax ARSI -
Fomis That w 1 iozrofit or loss -
e subsen.enly rec assife -
O-her conrorehiensive -ncoma -
Toial com DiEransive ronme -

Transactions with owners

Div riends paid 10 eqdty shareho darg -
nooden s nigia -

My ement

fed

ctal transactons w th owners -

Balance as at 17 September 2022 45
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Accounting policies

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Notes to the Company financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Intangible assets

e Tegt
£
e 20027 14 9 23
543 T4y - [F]
At 17 September 2022 - 9 9
Amartisation
A1 18 Septeniber 2021 - 13 il
Amartigst o 7 - 1) VT
At 17 September 2022 - (9} {9)
Net book value
AT1E Sentenhe 2021 it 1 14
At17 September2022 , _ - - -
Tia geoovs balanes cpoaet ol 1oa auhsdiary wnoea ng at oock «gue
2. Leases
Right-of-use assets
o o o o ae
Cost
A1 B Zemtenhker 2020 13 a
At 17 September 2022 18 18
Depreciation
AT18 S 2 2077 & e
Ceprecauen for the vear 131 2]
At 17 September 2022 {9 {9}
Net bool value
A1 13 Septerrber 2421 12 12
At 17 September 2022 ) B ) ) o 9 9
Lease liabilities
Toos
e . . L e Bl
Cost
At 13 Septsntier 2027 14 14
Renaynrent of lzase Lanllizs i i)
At 17 September 2022 10 16
wrret ’:“ 3
rend 7 7
10 10
3. Investments in subsidiaries
At 1E St}iﬁ‘,‘ﬂ ar 2021 Fo0
Aol nins S8l
At 17 September 2022 o 7 ) 1,287
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

4. Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year
Anreuets ened by subsidianics
Crher rehtors

Comuorzlion las recoves

Amounts fallmg due after one year

The crecioss consider that tre carny, ng an aurt of delios aporeximates tres

5. Employee entitlements
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6
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30
115%]

60
617
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6. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
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Amoun?
Amount
Disposals

At 17 September 2022

7. Other creditors

Amounts falllng due within one year

Amoums falling due after one year

reLcis eveed te enhs dancs

e e Y s Chrs g Thial s
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8. Capital and reserves
Share capital
4t 18 Septenber 2027 5 oseucd and fuly paas
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d 701067188 crd nary
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9. Contingent liabilities

Whera the Co~ Ty 2SI o Hinancs 5 :
the Comipdry vensiers thase 1o he msur and zoeounts for therm as suen, T 2 contract s llesten
Tire Company kad provgen £484 1 of guararices o Lhe crd nary courze of business & ember F022 12021 — £373m;.

10. Related parties

Campaey i ”[:I-j =1 i,O"FO‘H.“Q uh, \ (3 (jr—;r e

npany.

Tt
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11. Other information

Emoluments of dlrectors
The revansraton of the

'y
h

Lerat on Repaornt

Employees

Tivws Comizpany hac an

Auditors’ fees
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Progress report

Saturday nearest to 15 September
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o ,
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- 115G 5
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i 3 il
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240 Assaciated British Foods ple ~ - 2 &t



Glossary

"y

]
=

ot

‘}’_J

Fa Ao

OO
Nolw

T
&

> Conrpany

m morm o

-
L Y
v

no
N
oy (Y I-

‘H“
y

GRAP
e Group

LTI

set finapce

CRENSE

Ux Endorseire

n A 47

muar General ivieeting
Cative Pmrcrmamce Mieg
the board of Ascociatec 2t
on D'sclasure Projoct
geEnealing wril
As «oUciE(i "i'\tﬂ? Foods pic
Consamer Froe index (UK
chviroryerial, Socel and Govelr
Employes Share Owneraap Flan
Ernst & Y qu Lib, tx, Cene .wjr,f stanitory Audi
HAREETIMEA G \-’wao Errist & Ya. g LLF weo
on the ;.‘If" uf o wlated 1
NUTROT by
Repoin g Caunci
*iPFC"

tenifarn

LM Fensien

ch Foods oie, TS subsicer 2s and iis
verires and “ssmi:—.res

Heglth, Satety and anc WrEn

iFhiranc al Rep 'wg nterpresatiors Commities

ternatinnal
sternational Firanc al B
Long-term incentive plan

the sum of finance meerre, hinarce exe
noone cn the Tace of the conse dated Mmoo o stalerment

At Tas% For-;

e

Assaciated British Foods pic Anoce Scpon 2070 241



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company directory
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